STANISLAUS REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY

156 5. Broadway, Ste. 270, Turlock, CA 95380 (209) 668-5490 (phone) (209) 668-5695 (fax)

Board Meeting Agenda

September 28, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, CA, Second Floor, Yosemite Conference Room

Chair, Gary Soiseth Interim General Manager, Michael Brinton
Vice Chair, Chris Vierra interim Legal Counsel, Phaedra A. Norton
Director, Amy Bublak Board Secretary, Tish Foley

Director, Ken Lane

NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS: The Stanistaus Regional Water Authority (SRWA) meetings are conducted in English and
translation to other languages is not provided. Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary,

EQUAL ACCESS POLICY: If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, contact the Board Secretary.
The Board is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and services. Please allow sufficient time for
the Board to process and respond to your request.

NOTICE: Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the Board on any item
appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Scheduled Matters, before or during the Board’s consideration of the item.

AGENDA PACKETS: Prior to the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority Board meeting, a complete Agenda Packet is avaitable for review on
the SRWA’s website at www.stanrwa.org and in the Board Secretary’s Office at 156 5. Broadway, Suite 270, Turlock, during normal
business hours. Materials related to an ftem on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the Agenda Packet are also
available for public inspection in the Board Secretary’s Office, Such documents may be availabte on the SRWA’s website subject to staff’s
ability to post the documents before the meeting.

1. A. CALL TO ORDER

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG
2. RECOGNITION, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS & PRESENTATIONS: None
3. A, SPECIAL BRIEFINGS: None

B. STAFF UPDATES

1. Interim General Manager Updates (Brinton)
2. Finance Director Report (Burke)

C. CONSULTANT UPDATES
1. West Yost Associates will provide the Board with a project status update. (Nakano)

D. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: This time is set aside for members of the public to address the Board concerning
any item that has been described in the notice for the meeting, including Consent Calendar items, before or
during consideration of that item. You will be allowed five (5) minutes for your comments. If you wish to speak
regarding an item on the agenda, you may be asked to defer your remarks untit the Board addresses the matter.




Board Meeting Agenda
September 28, 2017
Page 2 of 3

10.

11.

DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND DISQUALIFICATIONS

CONSENT CALENDAR: Information concerning the Consent items listed below has been forwarded to each Board
member prior to this meeting for study. Unless the Chair, a Board member, or member of the audience has questions
concerning the Consent Calendar, the items are approved at one time by the Board. The action taken by the Board in
approving the Consent items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items.

A. Motion: Accepting minutes of Special Meeting of August 3, 2017 and Special Meeting of
September 7, 2017

PUBLIC HEARINGS: None

SCHEDULED MATTERS

A. Request to certify the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the Infiltration Gallery
Testing Project (Proposed Project) (SCH No. 2017082019); adopt the Mitigation Monitoring
and Reporting Program (MMRP); approve the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project; and direct
staff to file a Notice of Determination (NOD) with the State Clearinghouse and Stanislaus
County Clerk within 5 days of project approval. (Horizon Water and Environment)

Recommended Action:

Resolution: Certifying the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the Infiltration Gallery
Testing Project (Proposed Project) (SCH No. 2017082019); adopt the Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP); approve the Infiltration Gallery
Testing Project; and direct staff to file a Notice of Determination (NOD) with
the State Clearinghouse and Stanistaus County Clerk within 5 days of project
approval

B. Request to approve minimum experience requirements for general contractors and ground
improvement subcontractors for the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project (aka Raw Water
Pump Station Phase 1), approve project plans and specifications, and authorize
advertisement for bids. (West Yost)

Recommended Action:
Resolution: Approving minimum experience requirements for general contractors and
ground improvement subcontractors for the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project
(aka Raw Water Pump Station Phase 1), approving project plans and
specifications, and authorizing advertisement for bids
MATTERS TOO LATE FOR THE AGENDA
BOARD ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION

BOARD COMMENTS: Board members may provide a brief report on notable topics of interest. The Brown Act
does not allow discussion or action by the legislative body.

NEXT MEETING DATE: October 26, 2017 - Regular Meeting



Board Meeting Agenda
September 28, 2017
Page 3 of 3

12. CLOSED SESSION: Public Employee Appointment. Cal. Gov't Code § 54957(b)(1) “Subject to paragraph
(2), this chapter shall not be construed to prevent the legislative body of a local agency from holding closed sessions
during a regular or special meeting to consider the appointment, employment, evaluation of performance,
discipline, or dismissal of a public employee or to hear complaints or charges brought against the employee by
another person or employee unless the employee requests a public session.”

Title: General Manager

13. ADJOURNMENT



Iltem 3B1
Board Synopsis

: STANISLAUS REGlQNA
WATER AUTHORITY September 28, 2017

To: SRWA Board
From: Michael Brinton, Interim General Manager
Subject: Interim General Manager Report

The members of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) have continued to meet with
West Yost Associates to support the continued development of the Project. The items
covered since the last SRWA Board meeting includes the following:

L g

Held Executive Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and TAC Meetings

Prepared July Program Management Status Report

Preparing on US Army Corps permit

Submitted Fox Grove Park access agreement to Stanislaus County

Coordinated with California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) regarding Fox
Grove access permit

Preparation of draft Project Definition TM

Outreach with Wet Well contractors

Preparation of prime contractor and specialty subcontractor wet well prequalification
requirements

Prepared and edited 100% design Wet Well documents

Prepared for survey flight of finished water pipeline alignments

Continued raw water quality sampling and testing

Prepared Bench Test Results TM No. 1

Met with Nazareno regarding property acquisition

Submitted CDFW with first written offer for easement purchase

Completed pubtic review period for the IS/MND on the Infiltration Gallery Testing
Project

Drafted responses to IS/MND public comments, mitigation monitoring and reporting
plan and Notice of Determination

Received comments from CDFW on Streambed Alteration Agreement application;
working to develop additional information/responses

Continued preparing administrative draft EIR for submittal to TAC

Distributed cultural resources technical report to TAC for review

Mr. Nakano will provide a more in depth review of these items. | will be happy to answer
any questions.



21-91L02 Aniey Wd gi:¥
21-8L02 40} AAoY 4o Alewung L102/636
IWAMS\RHEINIIONYNIASIURUL N0 SYNO\SE\NoBEDY00 NG,

SE'6E8'cY) (00°626'28) (00°526°28) 00°0 sainjpusdx] (fepun} JAAQ sanusAsy
ST'0Z8'691°7 00'LV'6PS'E  00°LLS'292°L  00°096°982°Z sain)lpuadxy jejo .
000 00°05 0005 000 sefileyp sjueg
000 00°000'L 00°000'L Buiues )
8662 00°005 00005 so)ddng
S0'00L'G2 00°6¥.'08% 00°'06%'9 00°'$62'08S S80|AISG [BjUBlILOIALT
09°¢82'S01 00°000cZ1 00°000'¢Z1L saJaQ - poddng unupy
¥0'280'8 00°005°ZL 0070052t Bununoooy)eoueury
181212 0000522 0000622 [eousjd
00°002'2e 0000222 0000222 [ebs
Hoddng uipy [ejuswyedspiay
000 00°000'0¢ 00°000°0¢ 000 uofisinboy Auedoiy
00°000'9 00°000'0S 00°000°05 000 BumuIS g
65°081'062 00°09L'06¢ 00°091'06¢ 000 LB JsuoD/ubiseq Jiop 1o
00'5/¢ 00'6LE 00628 000 sang
1298y 00'086'Z 00°00§'g 000G abejsod
1666 00061 00°08 00°004 saidooojoyd
000 000 000 000 se|ddng
92'96%'vE 00'051'28 {00'056'2) 00°000'06 [osunog jebe jevads
ZL'p8s'ege’) 00'L68'VEL'E  00'920'602 00GL8'6eP'L Juby weibicid saoineg orueD
00°00%'s 00°00F's 00°00Y 00°000'G NpNY JUBHNSUOD
OF'¥E££°09 00°000°08 00°000'08 SuolE[OY JA09)
STUNLIANTJXT
09'659'¢LeC 00'96Y°99P'c  00'9£S°6.L°L  00°096°98Z°Z $8NUBAdY |80t
09'659'8E] '} 00'8¥Z'eeL't  00'89.'68G 00°08¥'eL L ¥oopn g jo A0 - uoynquuuo) Aousby
00°000'SLL°) 00'8¥Z'eel’l  00'89.'68S 0008P'EVLL 8182 Jo A)ID - uonnquucy Aousby
SINNIAIY
219102 119102 sjuswipuswy jebpng SUWEN JUNoAIY
femoy jobpng lewbugp
pajipneun papuswry

(2102-61-6 PaIEPAN)  11-010Z A4 404

fuoyny ierep [euoiboay snejsiue}g



sapusby o) Sestadxg a1eoo)y

Wd 86y
£1-9102 J0} AUy jo Amunimg LLOZIELE
—Sszm—otni..woz«.z_%B:N:Eckéum«zoﬁu%aduﬁnzna oo
Sa310AU| buIpUuEsho
85'658'6.€ suofnqiguo) pepuadxsun
oo saoioau| Bulpuesing 'sse
88'66¢€'6.8 L L8161 LG L8) suolngiuod papuadxeun
oe'e
ZL798'199°T  STOZRBOL'Z LVZE5 L6V (z2ese'tog7)  (oc'sz0'ee’t)  (95-049°02E')) sainjipusdxg jejo
¥0°0 200 200 Butpunoy
eR LA 8186 LstgL Fa12L'L) {Z6'985) (26'59G) sasuadx3 snosue|edsIy Jaylo pue seyddng
0000%'s 00'00%°G {0000F's} {(00'00£'2) {ao'00s'z) HpoY [ewapg
09°208'2¢81  09'€El'sol Q0v20'2e (09°208'ZE1) {(0g'e06'g9) (08'c05'a0) IsBeuep eisuen wes
00°061'6E 00°002'22 CO°0G6'EL {o0'051's8) 00'5L5°21) (op'ss5's1) fatioye vdr wisuy|
99'806'cL ¥0Z80'8 29°428's (so'606'E1) {cabss'a) {eg'vyo6e) $891u8g Buuhoooy
287608 L1 eLeL's 0528¢2'Y {8£'605°Li) {69v54's) {69¥52's) SEOMIES [EoUR)D
Hoddng SARBRSIUILDY
00’0009 00'000's {0o°000'9) {00 00t'e) {o0r000'c) Bumtusied
BS0BL'0BZ  65°08L°062 {09°081"062) {oc060'srL) {0£ 080'5rL) ubiseq jlamn 1aan
SLER0 LY 9T96F Ve Bt IvS'ZL (9£€v0' L) (g2'12s'ce) {eg125'ce) sesusxy jefa epysnQ
ZOOUS'EBL'L ZL'PBS'ERE'L  06GLO'GLY (20°009'c64'E)  (L0°008'968) {10°008'988) S80I juBLuaBruel osforg
0G'GPZ'662  SO00L°SPe Sh'apscL {og'abz'e5e) (st zzo'seL) (s2°ze9'szL) $80IAI93 [EJuaIVOIAUT
Ot vEL'09 ob'ves'oy (orree'oa) {oe 281'08) (0e291'08) SUONEIEY WUBWILIBAOD
saimpuadxz
09'B0L'0P0'E  09°659°CLE'T DO 6F0'ZZL 0$°802'040'E 05°18V°ZZ5'L 04'1ZZ'BLS) suonnquuon Kaushy jejog
09'6y9'28 09°'5p9'2S 09'5t9°zg 09'Gk9'zg L1-910T 105 WL NS LIS - $8107 0} ypaln)
00°C00'0OF8  00'000'0%8 00°000'cre 00°000's24 00'000'398 {2102z ‘sz Aep) usodag yip
00000'00F  QO°C00'00F 00°000'00F 00000002 00'000'00T (2102 ‘¢ Aey) ysodag pig
00'926'196  00'9Z6'L96 00'926'496 00°000'00% 00°'926'28F {910z +equisnon) ysodaq puz
00'880'cG 00'gg0'es 00°880'¢S 00'880'cS L1910 10} ewin NS wiisul - sa1an o) ypaiy
00'vL0'zE 00'v20'2e 00'v20'28 00°pi0'eE SL-GLOZ Jo) awn WD wilialu - sa1eg of Jpasn)
00°546'v89 00'5/5°v69 00°'G.6'v69 0528t Lpe 05 L8¥'IbE {910z 1dy) usodag 15
suognquuoy Asuaby
12304, L9102 o1-5102 SL0Z 26Q HOOUNE Jo Al $0aD jo Al
aoUlg 10t
aje( o} Joslosy L10Z-61-6 Jo se peyepdy

fuoyny sejepm jeuciboy snejsiuelg



2E-910Z Aoy Wd gLy
219102 J0; Moy jo Aeutung LLogiBLse
WARSIRHEIZONVNESEUEUNaMIas YN DEsIto B eaoopnmy

se6E8'ehL (00°c26°28) {00'52628) 000 sainyipuadxy (Jepun) 19A0 sanussay
§2'028'691L° 00'LIV6YS'S  00°LLS'TOZ'L  00'096°98Z°C sain)puadxyg |ejo}
000 6005 00°05 000 sebieyd jueg
00'0 00°000't 00°000°L Buiuiesy
8662 00008 00°005 seljddng
S0'004'sve 005172 '98% 00°054'9 00°662°085 SIVIISS |BjUSLLLIONAUS
09°'€€.'601 00°000°'cZL 00°Q00'eZL sa18) - poddng unupy
$0°280's 00°006'21 00'005°Ch Bujjunoosvjepueu4
18121 00'005'2¢ 00°00¢'22 [BoH8|S
0000222 0000222 00002'2e jeba
poddng utupy [ejuauiedapiay)
000 00'000'0¢ 00°000'0E 00°0 uonisinboy Ausdold
00°000°'g 00°000°05 00'000°0S 000 Bunuiad
85°081°062 00°091'06¢ 00°09L'06¢€ 000 b 1suoDubIsaq e 19
00°6.¢ 00'G.€ 00'5.8 00'0 sang
1298y 00°066°C 007005'2 00°0G abejsod
1666 00'0GL 00'0% 00001 s91dooojoy
000 000 000 000 seddng
9Z°96¥%'pE 000528 {(00'086'2) 00°000'06 [osunoy (e jeedg
TL'¥8G'E8E") 00'168'vEL'E  009.0'S02 oo'sig'ecy'L Jwbpy wesboig ssomteg joejuoy
00°00'G 00°00's 00'00F 00°000'S UpNy Juejnsucy
oF'#E£°08 00°000°08 00°000'08 suoleiey }A050
STUNLIANIIXT
09°659'€18C 00°96¥°99%'c  00°9£S°6ZL°L  00°096°082° sohuaasy tejo)
09'659'8¢EL') 00'8ve'ees’t 00892685 00°08t'SiL'L 390Ny jo Al - uolngquuue?) Aoushy
00'000'62L°1 goeve'ees't  00'99.'689 0O08F'EYL L sa190 Jo AiD - uonnguuog Kouaby
SANNIATIY
219102 Li-9102 sjuswpuswy 3ebpng Jwep junoady
femoay jobpnyg leutbug
—uoﬁ_ﬁam:ﬂ_ Umﬁ:m«:ﬁ.

(210z-61-6 PoiEpdn)  Z1-910Z7 Ad 403

Ruoyiny 1sjepp [euoiBay snejsiuelg



sapualy o] sasuadxy eyrooky
LL-950Z 403 Qv jo Amwuusng

?....Em—n:agwogu:uuznzmﬁuuaw«zuﬁmg:na.ﬁﬁu_._ga gnolif

S8'S5E°62C

0G0

8R'GSE'6.E PLLIEEBL tLrPEinL
oo
TLEZSE'I99'E 97028691 IV ZESlER (e2z5€'1997)  198'925°08E°L)  (S£'9.5°08E})

¥0°0 Z00 Z00
€8/l 2£'/86 (R-37-]R {8 LiL's) {Z5°58¢6) (z6°ges)
as'00F's 0000¥'s {00'00%'S) {(00'004'2) {ooooL'z)
09°/08'2€1  09'€EZ'SOL oobLo'ze {09'208'/€1) (09'c06'a9) {08°c05'g8)
00'051'5¢ pooog'ee 00'086'zL {o0'051'5¢€) (o0rses'si) {00'g25'21)
99°606'¢L ¥0'Z80's zo'lze's {oo'ens'cl) {e8v56'0) {ee'vse'o)
28608 LL Bzl 057282t (3c605'LL) (6ov5L's) (69'v52'G)
00°000's 00°000'9 (00'000'9) {oo000'e) {oo"0o0'e)
65°0RL'062  8S'08L'052 {09°081'082) {oc060'GYL) {oc'060'sk1)
SLER0' Y 9z 96F've BbIbS'Z) (5£'E00'Lp) (gg'Les'ez) (s 125'ca)
20009664t ZIL'PBS'EBE'L  06'SLOOLE (eopog'ess’t)  (Lo'oom'sss) {10008'a68)
DG'SPEBST  SO'00L'SHE SH'Gra'el (05°5vz'ss52) (sLzzg'szL) (61°zeg'szL)
OF'PEE'09 oF'bee'0o (0¥ pet'0o) {oz 28108} {0oz°281'08)
09'802'0¥0°C  0D'659°CICE D060 2L 09'802°60°E 058V ZTSL 04 1Ez'ele’s
09'6re'28 09'5r'2G 09'6h9'zs 09'5v9'Zs
00°'000'0¥8  B0'00D'OFE 00'000'0vR 00°000'5s4 00'000°'698
00°000'00F  0G'000'00F 00°000'00% 00°000°002 00°000'002
009Z6'298  00'926'/96 00'926°296 00'000'005 00'9zs"Lop
00'850'€S 00'880'cs 00°880'cS 00'880'cS
00°'v20°2E 0042028 0¥20'2e 00720'28
00°G26'v69 00'546'v69 00°G/6'P69 05285 1pE 08" 28¥'1vE

%0y, Li-910Z 8i-5107 8102 20( ¥oounj j0 Ay se81ag Jo 19
asujg fejol,
a1eq o) Josfoiy

Wd etir
LI0ZBLIG

sucHnguIuoy papuadxaun

sanjoAu| Butpueising ssa

SUOHNAUILIOD papuadxaun

saimipuedxs jejo |

Supunoy

sesuadxz SNOSUB{@DSI Jo1J0 Pue sajjddng
Heny fewexg
Jebeuep [Bl1auss) Wusuy
Rawone v wspu
saopueg Bugunonoy
S82MES [BO8D
Hoddng sAneRSiULpYy

Bumnuiey

ubisaq oM yom

sesuaxy fefa sppsng
sa9jAeg Watuebeuspy oaloig

SADIAISG [BJUBSLLILOHAUS

SUORE[EY JUBWILIBACS

seinyipuodxz

suoyngiiuon Lsuehy jejoy

41910 10§ SR WO WSl - 59197 0} upaln
(2102 'gg Aeg) usodaq yip

(2102 e Aepy) ysodaq pig

{910z requianon) ysodag pug

LI-9L0Z 20§ SN D wsiuy - $BIBY) 0) Jpain
81-6102 10} sl WO wirejul - saue) o} Jipesn
{9102 |udy) usodag 15|

suonnquon Asusby

410Z-61-6 Jo s® pajepdp

Auopny sajep [euoiboy snejsiuelg



DRAFT Minutes
Special Board Meeting

STANISLAUS REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY August 3, 2017

1. A. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Soiseth called the meeting to order at 10:03 a.m.
PRESENT: Director Bublak, Director Lane, Vice Chair Vierra, Chair Soiseth

ABSENT:

None

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG

2. RECOGNITION, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS & PRESENTATIONS: None

3. A. SPECIAL BRIEFINGS: None

B. STAFF UPDATES:

1. Interim General Manager Mike Brinton provided an update of items discussed at recent
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) meetings, including:

Completed staff report and presentation on initial project capacity, project cost
and residential customer rate impacts

Coordinated with Horizon regarding wet well environmental documentation and
permitting

Submitted permit application letter to Central Valley Flood Protection Board
Finalized letter for permanent pipeline easement through state property
Completed May and June Status Reports

Continued analysis of raw water samples

Completed appraisals for the easements/fee title needed for wet well construction
Finalized job description and request for proposals for the General Manager
position

Talked with the Wildlife Conservation Board about the Streamflow Enhancement
grant funding opportunity

Prepared scope and budget for the bridge period between Project Phases 1 and 2
Received unanimous approval at Assembly committee hearing on SB 373

Finalized Treatment Process Technical Memo No. 2

Discussed extent and timing of the required Watershed Sanitary Survey with
Division of Drinking Water

Met with Division of Financial Assistance staff to discuss Drinking Water State
Revolving Fund (5RF) loan application

Attended State Water Resources Control Board and California Water Commission
meetings regarding grant and loan updates

2. Kellie Jacobs-Hunter, Finance Director, reported no formal update at this time.



DRAFT SRWA Board Meeting
Minutes of August 3, 2017
Page 2 of 5

C. CONSULTANT UPDATES:

1. Gerry Nakano West Yost Associates provided a project status update including the

following:

« Recommendation of Initial Project Size

Assembly hearing on SB 373 to authorize use of design-build procurement
Actively recruiting for General Manager, applications due August 4.
Prepared Phase 1-2 “Bridge” Program Management Scope of Work
Discussing the Phase 2 Work Tasks
Complete property appraisals needed for wet well construction and operation
Continued environmental documentation
Submitted environmental permits applications for wet well construction
Completed two Project Fact Sheets which are available on the SRWA website

D. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: None
4, DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND DISQUALIFICATIONS: None
5. CONSENT CALENDAR:
A. Motion: Adopting the Consent Calendar and apbroving the Minutes of the Special Meeting of

July 7, 2017. Motion by Director Bublak, seconded by Vice Chair Vierra, carried 4/0 by the
following vote:

Director Lane Director Bublak Vice Chair Vierra Chair Soiseth
Yes Yes Yes Yes

B. Motion: Approving Amendment No. 4 to the Agreement for Program Management Services
with West Yost Associates for services required to bridge the period between Phase 1 and
Phase 2 of the Project, as set forth in Attachment A, in an amount not to exceed Two
Hundred Seventy-Three Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-Five and No/100ths Dollars
($273,255.00) which includes a twenty percent (20%) contingency

C. Resolution 2017-010: Appropriating $273,255 to account number 950-53-552.43060_012
“Contract Services-Program Management Services” to be funded via contributions from SRWA
participating agencies

Director Lane Director Bublak Vice Chair Vierra Chair Soiseth
Yes Yes Yes Yes

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: None
7. SCHEDULED MATTERS:

A. Toby Wells, Ceres City Manager, welcomed the large turnout and provided an overview of
the Project Drivers, which include:
¢ 100% dependent on ground water
» Degrading groundwater water quality
» Groundwater depletion
¢ Increasingly stringent drinking water regulations



DRAFT SRWA Board Meeting
Minutes of August 3, 2017
Page 3of 5

» Ongoing and increasingly significant new costs with continued sole reliance on
groundwater

Michael Cooke, Turlock Director of Municipal Services, added information regarding the
wells currently in service and those that have been deactivated. There will be new State
regulations that will affect one-third of the wells, resulting in either abandoning them or
adding expensive treatment plans. Adding new well sites will still be needed even with
surface water supply.

Lyndsay Smith, West Yost Associates, reviewed the project goals and subject benefits:
» Improved water quality
o Improved supply reliability with a diversified water portfolio

Provide in-lieu aquifer recharge to support groundwater sustainability

Increased operational flexibility

» Provide environmental benefits to the Tuolumne River aquatic species

The Project phases include:
o Intake & Pump Station
* Treatment Plant
¢ Transmission Mains, 7.25 miles to Turlock, 5 miles to Ceres
* Local Facilities

Other project benefits include:
¢ Reliable conjunctive-use system
Drought resilient water supplies
Reliable water quality
Decreases hardness and minerat content
Benefits to the agriculture community
Potential to provide water to disadvantages communities and other regional partners

Projected capital costs are estimated at $288 million, from inspection to construction
completion in 2022, assuming the following:

¢ 15 mgd initial raw water pumping and WTP capacity
45 mgd raw water transmission main capacity
15 mgd Ceres finished water transmission main capacity
30 mgd Turlock finished water transmission main capacity
Conventional treatment process with ozone
Planning-level estimate for WTP and soft costs
Includes Ceres and Turlock local facility costs
Construction mid-point June 1, 2020
2 percent annual inflation
5 percent construction contingency

* & & & ¢ » & 0

Residential customer rate impacts are at the planning level only. These costs are not meant
to be cost of services, only used to compare alternatives of treatment plant configurations
and other impacts. Groundwater only rates are based on current regulations.

Funding opportunities were reviewed and could include Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Loan Program, Prop 1 Grants, US Bureau of Reclamation WaterSMART Grant. Any grants
would reduce the customer rate impact.



DRAFT SRWA Board Meeting
Minutes of August 3, 2017
Page 4 of 5

Next steps of the Project include moving forward on environmental issues, land acquisition,
predesign, funding applications, and water rights modifications. In 2018, construction of
wet well and water rights modifications to begin quality raw water sampling. In 2019,
permitting, procurement, design, financing, wet well construction, and local facilities
design. In 2020, permitting, design, and construction through to 2022 when commissioning
and operations begins.

Board Comments:

Chair Soiseth commented that the cost of water in our region is on par with other areas in
the State. Residential rates will increase regardless, but this Project brings long-term
stability by providing surface water. He stated the vision is to include smaller rural
communities tike Keyes, Denair, Hilmar, and Hughson.

Vice Chair Vierra commented that cities don’t have the option to do nothing. Current water
rates assume that nothing changes, but requirements for drinking water quality continues to
impact those cities.

Director Bublak encouraged those present to keep open conversations with the community
to strengthen the partnership in this Project.

Director Lane expressed appreciation for the Project updates and encouraged other cities to
partner so they can have sustainable water also.

Public Comments:

Chair Soiseth welcomed representatives from the County, State Water Resources Control
Board, TID, and other potential Project partners and opened public participation.

Jim Bruger, Denair MAC Board, asked about the projected size for the Turlock tank. It will
be 2.5 million gallons.

Michael Franz, Director of TID, stated this Project will bring stability and economic success
to this region, allowing the District to increase water flows in the Tuolumne River and
maintain a critical habitat for salmon. He commented on the additional threat to this
Project by the State Water Board’s SED.

James Maughn, State Waterboards Division of Finance, encouraged the project and
described the financing available. There are good loan terms and grants available through
them. They also consult with Federal agencies to identify funding. Matt McCarthy, Water
Rights Issues, stated early consultation is helpful to understand the types of water rights
necessary for the project.

Action: Motion by Director Lane, seconded by Director Bublak, concurring with the
recommendations of the Executive Technical Advisory Committee (Exec TAC) and
the Staff Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) to plan for an initial 15 million
gallons per day (mgd) capacity water treatment plant that will provide
approximately 10 mgd of treated surface water supply to the City of Turlock
(Turlock) and 5 mgd to the City of Ceres (Ceres)

Director Lane Director Bublak | Vice Chair Vierra Chair Soiseth
Yes Yes Yes Yes




DRAFT SRWA Board Meeting
Minutes of August 3, 2017
Page 50f 5

8. MATTERS TOO LATE FOR THE AGENDA: None

9. BOARD ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION: None
10. BOARD COMMENTS: None
11. NEXT MEETING DATE: August 24, 2017 - Regular Meeting
12. CLOSED SESSION: None

13. ADJOURNMENT: Motion by Director Lane, seconded by Director Bublak, to adjourn at 10:51
a.m. Motion carried 4/1.

Respectfully submitted,

DRAFT

Tish Foley, Board Secretary



DRAFT Minutes
Special Board Meeting

STANISLAUS REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY September 7, 2017

. A. CALL TO ORDER: Vice Chair Vierra called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.
PRESENT: Director Bublak, Director Lane, Vice Chair Vierra
ABSENT:  Chair Soiseth

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG

. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Milt Trieweiler, retired business owner, addressed the Board. He encouraged the Board to keep
an open mind and to utilize science and mathematics in decision making. He expressed concern

for future generations and the planet.

. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND DISQUALIFICATIONS: None.

. CLOSED SESSION:

A. Public Employee Appointment. Cal. Gov’t Code § 54957(b)(1) Title: General Manager
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 10:05 a.m. and reconvened the meeting at 10:55

a.m.

Action: No reportable action.
. ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting was adjourned at 11:00 a.m.



item 7A
Board Synopsis

STANISLAUS REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY September 28, 2017

From: Horizon Water and Environment

Prepared by: Michael Stevenson, Horizon Water and Environment

ACTION RECOMMENDED:

Resolution: Certifying the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the Infiltration
Gallery Testing Project (Proposed Project) (SCH No. 2017082019); adopt
the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP); approve the
Infiltration Gallery Testing Project; and direct staff to file a Notice of
Determination (NOD} with the State Clearinghouse and Stanislaus County
Clerk within 5 days of project approval.

DISCUSSION OF {SSUE:

SRWA is the project proponent and the lead agency under CEQA. For CEQA purposes,
the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project includes conducting research, testing, and
temporary operation of the Turlock Irrigation District’s (TID’s) existing infiltration
gallery and developing and collecting baseline water quality data and information for
water withdrawn through the infiltration gallery.

SRWA proposes to test the condition and operation of TID's existing infiltration
gallery, construct a wet well, and install and operate temporary pumping facilities to
ascertain if it is feasible to proceed with the separate Surface Water Supply Project,
which would be considered in a future environmental impact report if SRWA chooses
to pursue that project. SRWA would excavate an area to access the infiltration gallery
pipes; construct a wet well and appurtenant facilities adjacent to the infiltration
gallery; conduct air purging and test pumping of the gallery pipes to dislodge
sediment; pump river water through the gallery and into settling basins on adjacent
property; collect samples of pumped water, and dispose of the water, once any
entrained sediment has settled out.

In accordance with CEQA requirements, an [nitial Study and Mitigated Negative
Declaration (IS/MND) was prepared and circulated in August 2017 for a 30-day public
review period, from August 7 to September 5, 2017. Seven comment letters were
received; those comments and responses to those comments have been provided to
the Board. No new information was received during the comment period or included
in the comments that would require recirculation of the IS/MND under State CEQA
Guidelines Section 15073.5.



Agenda Synopsis
September 28, 2017
Page 2 of 2

The IS/MND identified potentially significant impacts that will be reduced to a less-
than-significant level with specified mitigation measures. Approval of the Project
therefore requires adoption and implementation of a Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Program (MMRP) under CEQA.

FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT:

Certifying the IS/MND and approving the specified Infiltration Gallery Testing Project
components by themselves do not have a direct fiscal impact. The proposed
resolution provides that approval of a contract for the construction and operation of
the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project requires subsequent Board approval.

INTERIM GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

The Interim General Manager recommends the Board concur with the staff
recommendation to certify the MND for the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project (SCH
No. 2017082019) in accordance with CEQA; adopt the MMRP; approve the Proposed
Project; and direct staff to file an NOD with the State Clearinghouse and Stanislaus
County Clerk within 5 days of project approval.

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: N/A

ALTERNATIVES: N/A



| Print Form ‘rl

TA- bibach |

Notice of Determination Appendix D
To: From:
X1 Office of Planning and Research Public Agency: SRWA

U8 Mail: Street Address: Address: 156 South Broadway, Suite 270

Turlock, CA 95307
Contact: Michael Brinton
Phone; (209) 538-5758

P.0O. Box 3044 1400 Tenth St., Rm 113
Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 Sacramento, CA 85814

K] County Clerk

County of: Stanislaus L.ead Agency (if different from above):
Address: 10211 Street, Suite 101
Modesto, CA 95354 Address:
Contact:
Phone:

SUBJECT: Filing of Notice of Determination in compliance with Section 21108 or 21152 of the Public
Resources Code.

State Clearinghouse Number (if submitted to State Clearinghouse): 2017082019

Project Title: Infiltration Gallery Testing Project

Project Applicant: Stanislaus Regional Water Authority (SRWA)

Project L.ocation (include county): Geer Road at Tuolumne River, river mile 26

Project Description:

SRWA proposes to test the condition and operation of TID's existing infiliration gallery, construct a wet well, and
install temporary pumping facilities to ascertain if it is feasible to proceed with the separate Surface Water Supply
Project. SRWA would excavate an area to access the infiltration gallery pipes; construct a wet well adjacent to the
infiltration gallery; conduct air purging and test pumping of the gallery pipes to dislodge sediment; pump river water
through the gallery and into settling basins; and dispose of the water, once any entrained sediment has settled out,

This is to advise that the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority has approved the above
(Xl Lead Agency or [] Responsible Agency)
described project on Sept. 28, 2017 and has made the following determinations regarding the above
{date}

described project.

1. The project [[_] will [X] will not] have a significant effect on the environment.

2. [] An Environmental Impact Report was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.
A Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.

3. Mitigation measures [X] were [[] were not] made a condition of the approval of the project.

4. A mitigation reporting or monitoring pian [X] was [] was not] adopted for this project.

5. A statement of Overriding Considerations [[] was was not] adopted for this project.

6. Findings [[_] were [X] were not] made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.

This is to certify that the final EIR with comments and responses and record of project approval, or the
negative Declaration, is available to the General Public at:
SRWA offices, 156 South Broadway, Suite 270, Turlock, CA 95380

Signature (Public Agency): Title: Interim General Manager

Date: Date Received for filing at OPR:

Authority cited: Sections 21083, Public Resources Code.
Reference Section 21000-21174, Public Resources Code. Revised 2011



Th-Biach 2

- Horizon

E&'W VWATER «nd EMYIRONMENT

Memorandum

Subject: SRWA Infiltration Gallery Testing Project
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH No. 2017082019)
Consideration of Comments Received during the Public Review Period

Date: September 15, 2017

To: Michael Brinton, Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
From: Michael Stevenson

INTRODUCTION

This memorandum has been prepared to summarize the comments received by the Stanislaus Regional
Water Authority (SRWA) on the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (iS/MND) for the Infiltration
Gallery Testing Project (Proposed Project). An IS/MND is an informational document prepared by a Lead
Agency, in this case, SRWA, that provides environmental analysis for public review. The IS/MND
analyzed the impacts resulting from the Proposed Project and, where applicable, identified mitigation
measures to minimize the impacts to less-than-significant levels.

This memorandum first summarizes the public review process undertaken for the IS/MND and identifies
the next steps in the California Environmental Quality Act {CEQA) process, and then summarizes the
comments received and provides responses to those comments.

CEQA PROCESS

In accordance with Section 15073 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SRWA submitted the IS/MND to the
State Clearinghouse for a 30-day public review period starting August 7, 2017. In addition, SRWA
circulated a Notice of Intent to Adopt the IS/MND to interested agencies and individuals, including the
Stanislaus County Clerk. According to the State Clearinghouse CEQANet database, the public review
period ended on September 5, 2017, During this review period, seven comment letters were received,
as listed in Table 1.

In accordance with State CEQA Guidelines Section 15074(b), SRWA must consider the IS/MND together
with comments received during the public review process prior to adopting the IS/MND. The State CEQA
Guidelines do not require the preparation of responses to comments for negative declarations;
however, this memorandum has been prepared to document that the comments received do not affect
the IS/MND’s conclusions that the Proposed Project would not have any significant effects on the
environment.

September 15, 2017



SRWA Infiltration Gallery Testing Project IS/MND
Consideration of Comments Received during the Public Review Period

Table 1. Comment Letters Received on the IS/MND
Comment Commenter Affiliation Date Sent
Letter
1 Arnaud Marjoliet, San Joaguin Vailey Air Pollution August 29, 2017
Director of Permit Control District
Services
2 Stephanie Tadlock, Central Valley Regional Water Quality | August 29, 2017
Environmental Scientist Control Board
3 Julie A. Vance, Regional California Department of Fish and September 1, 2017
Manager Wildlife, Region 4
4 Milton Trieweiler Turlock resident September 5, 2017
5 Patrick Cavanagh, Senior | Stanislaus County Environmental September 5, 2017
Management Consultant | Review Committee
6 Scott Morgan, Director State Clearinghouse September 6, 2017
7 Scott Morgan, Director State Clearinghouse September 7, 2017

At the time of approval of the IS/MND, SRWA will also adopt a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program (MMRP) for those mitigation measures identified in the IS/MND. The MMRP was included in
the IS/MND as Appendix E. Within five days following IS/MND approval, SRWA must file a Notice of
Determination (NOD) with the State Clearinghouse and the Stanislaus County Clerk-Recorder. A
resolution approving the IS/MND and adopting the MMRP, and an NOD, will be prepared for SRWA's use
in this process. This resolution will confirm that the SRWA Board of Directors has received and reviewed
the IS/MND pursuant to the provisions of CEQA and makes the following findings:

1. Prior to taking action on the IS/MND and MMRP for the Proposed Project, SRWA read and
considered said I1S/MND.

2. The IS/MND and MMRP are based on independent judgment exercised by SRWA,

3. The IS/MND and MMRP were prepared and considered in accordance with the requirements of
CEQA.

4. Considering the record as whole, and with incorporation of the mitigation measures, there is no
substantial evidence that the Proposed Project will have a significant effect on the environment.

5. SRWA's Interim General Manager is the custodian of the records of the proceedings on which
this decision is based. Records are located at the SRWA offices located at 156 South Broadway,
Suite 270, Turlock, CA 95380.

The resolution wilt identify that based an the above findings, the Board approves the IS/MND, adopts
the MMRP, and directs staff to file the NOD.

September 15, 2017




SRWA Infiltration Gallery Testing Project IS/MND
Consideration of Comments Received during the Public Review Period

COMMENTS RECEIVED ON THE IS/MND

During the public review period, SRWA received seven comment letters on the IS/MND (Table 1). These
letters are included with this memorandum as Attachment A,

Comment Letter 1 — San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District

Comment 1-1: The San loaguin Valley Air Pollution Control District (SIVAPCD) concurs with the IS/MND
conclusion in Section 3.3, Air Quality, that the proposed project would have & less-than-significant
impact with regard to criteria pollutant emissions.

Response to Comment 1-1: No response is necessary.

Comment 1-2: SIVACPD notes that violation of ambient air quality standards is typically determined at
the project boundary based on dispersion modeling, which is unnecessary if emissions would not exceed

100 pounds per day.

Response to Comment 1-2: Based on calculations included in the IS/MND {Table 3.3-3 [page 3-30]
and Appendix A), emissions would not exceed 100 pounds per day. Therefore, dispersion modeling
is not needed and the project as planned and designed will comply with ambient air quality
standards, in accordance with SIVAPCD protocols.

Comment 1-3: The project may require permits from SiVAPCD.

Response to Comment 1-3: Table 2-4 in Chapter 2, Project Description, of the IS/MND notes that an
Authority to Construct permit may be required from SIVAPCD,

Comment 1-4: The project may be subject to SIVAPCD Rules and Regulations.

Response to Comment 1-4: Section 3.3 of the IS/MND identifies Regulation Vill (Fugitive PM10
Prohibitions). SRWA and its contractor will also comply with other SIVAPCD Rules and Regulations as
applicable.

Comment 1-5: SIVAPCD recommends that a copy of the comments be provided to the project
proponent.

Response to Comment 1-5: This memo complies with SIVAPCD's recommendation.

Comment Letter 2 — Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board

The Centrai Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) provides general information ahout
the various regulations and permits with which the proposed project may be required to comply.

SRWHA is in the process of applying for the foliowing permits from the Central valley RWQCB:

= water quality certification under Section 401 of the Clean Water Act and
= general permit under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES),

September 15, 2017 3



SRWA Infiltration Gallery Testing Project IS/MND
Consideration of Comments Recelved during the Public Review Period

Comment Letter 3 — California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Region 4

Comment 3-1: The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) recommends that a discussion of
Incidental Take Permits and Fish and Game Code Section 2081 be included in Table 2-4 in Section 2.7,
“Permits and Approvals.”

Response to Comment 3-1: In Section 3.4, Biological Resources, the discussion under “Regulatory
Setting — State Laws, Regulations, and Policies — California Fish and Game Code” includes a
discussion of Fish and Game Code Section 2080 and incidental take permits. No revision to the
IS/MND is necessary.

At this time, take of species listed under the California Endangered Species Act (CESA} is not
anticipated during project construction or operations. Consequently, SRWA does not intend to apply
for an Incidental Take Permit, but may elect to do so in the future.

Comment 3-2: CDFW recommends that White-tailed Kite be included in Table 3.4-3.

Response to Comment 3-2: Table 3.4-3 represents species known to occur in the vicinity of the
proposed project area based on a records search of the California Natural Diversity Database. This
search did not return records for White-taited Kite. SRWA agrees that White-tailed Kite may occur in
the area, and this species has been added to Table 3.4-3 as follows:

Common Name Status Habitat Characteristics Potential to Qccur at Site

Scientific
Name/ Federal/State

Elanus leucurus --fSP Nests in tall shrubs and frees;
forages in grasslands, marshes, present within and adjacent to the
white-tailed kite and ruderal habitats. proiect site,

Possible. Suitable nesting habit is

Note: SP = state fully protected species.

Note that impacts on White-tailed Kite were considered in the IS/MND, and this revision does not
change the conclusions or level of significance of any impact.

Comment 3-3: CDFW recommends that a discussion of Fish and Game Code Section 1600 et seq. be
added to the regulatory setting for state laws, regulations, and policies.

Response to Comment 3-3: Table 2-4 in Chapter 2, Project Description, indicates that a Streambed
Alteration Agreement under Fish and Game Code Section 1602 would be required for the proposed
project. The following information about Section 1602 has heen added to Section 3.4.1, “Regulatory
Setting,” under “State Laws, Regulations, and Policies — California Fish and Game Code,” following
the first full paragraph on page 3-37, beginning at line 7:

CDFW regulates activities that will interfere with the natural flow of, or substantially alter,
the channel, bed, or bank of a lake, river, or stream, Section 1602 of the F&G Code requires
that COFW be notified of lake or streambed alteration activities. If CDFW _ subsequently

determines that such an activity might adversely affect an existing fish and wildlife
resource, it has the authority to issue a streambed alteration agreement, including

requirements to protect biological resources and water quality.

September 15, 2017 4



SRWA Infiltration Gallery Testing Project IS/MND
Consideration of Comments Received during the Public Review Period

Note that impacts related to F&G Code Section 1602 were considered in the 1S/MND, and this
revision does not change the conclusions or leve! of significance of any impact.

Comment 3-4: CDFW provides comments on Mitigation Measure BIO-5 regarding surveys for Swainson’s
hawk and white-tailed kite.

Response to Comment 3-4: SRWA appreciates these recommendations and looks forward to
coordinating with CDFW on appropriate refinements to the measure during the process of
developing the Streambed Aiteration Agreement for the project.

Comment Letter 4 - Milton Trieweiler

Comment 4-1: Mr. Trieweiler requests information about other infiltration galleries in California that
provide surface water supply.

Response to Comment 4-1: Before TID constructed the Infiltration Gallery in 2002-2003, the
technology was studied extensively. The subject of the proposed project is testing, rather than
construction, of the infiltration gallery.

Comment 4-2: The comment notes concerns about possible pesticide contamination at the water
treatment plant filtration system coming from the Tuolumne River.

Response to Comment 4-2: SRWA has conducted ongoing source water sampling to test for a broad
range of contaminants, including pesticides, that might result from the proximity of the infiltration
gallery to the landfill and the Waterford wastewater treatment plant. To date, no concerns have
been noted. In addition, Stanislaus County completed a study that concluded that the groundwater
gradient from the landfill flows south and west, away from the landfill and the infiftration gallery.

Comment 4-3: The comment cites concerns with the infiltration gallery being located ¥ mile from the
Geer Road Landfill.

Response to Comment 4-3: TID conducted extensive studies hefore deciding on the location for the
infiltration gallery at its present, existing location. The Infiltration Gallery Testing Project does not
include the construction of the infiltration gallery, which was installed in 2002-2003 by TID; instead,
it would provide water quality and capacity testing for the existing facility.

With regard to possible contamination from the landfill, see Response to Comment 4-2.

Comment 4-4: The commenter is concerned about the potential to create a cone of depression in the
groundwater aquifer under the Tuolumne River.

Response to Comment 4-4: Water being pumped from the Tuolumne River into the infiltration
gallery Is water that has been released from Don Pedro Reservoir, at quantities and schedules
agreed to between TID and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), which controls the
reservoir. In addition, the quantities of water being pumped for the Infiltration Gallery Testing
Project would be minimal and would be removed over a brief period of time and then used for
agricultural irrigation or returned 10 the river; the groundwater aquifer would not be affected.

September 15, 2017 5



SRWA Infiltration Gallery Testing Project IS/MND
Consideration of Comments Received during the Public Review Period

Comment 4-5: The comment asks about additional sources of surface water if the existing plan is not
feasible.

Response to Comment 4-5: The Infiltration Gallery Testing Project would not provide a source of
surface water supply; it is a testing project to determine the water quality and capacity of the
existing infiltration gallery, which TID constructed in 2002-2003.

Comment 4-6: The commenter requests that science be used as the basis for building a Surface Water
Treatment system.

Response to Comment 2-6: SRWA intends to use solid scientific data, gathered during operation of
the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project, to determine the optimal design for the possible Surface
Water Supply Project.

Comment Letter 5 — Stanislaus County Environmental Review Committee

The Stanislaus County Environmental Review Committee has no comments on the IS/MND for the

proposed project,

Comment Letter 6 — State Clearinghouse

Comment 6-1: The State Clearinghouse notes the end of the comment period and transmits a copy of
the comment letter received from the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board.

Response to Comment 6-1: Comments from the Centrai Valley Regional Water Quality Control
Board are addressed above (Comment Letter 2).
Comment Letter 7 — State Clearinghouse

Comment 7-1: The State Clearinghouse transmits a copy of the late comment letter received from the
California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Region 4.

Response to Comment 7-1: Comments from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife,
Region 4 are addressed above {Comment Letter 3).
ERRATA

The following revisions are hereby made to the IS/MND at the specified locations in response to
comments discussed above. Underlined text is added; strikeout text is deleted.

Chapter 3, Environmental Checklist
Section 3.4, Biological Resources

On page 3-37, following the first full paragraph, the following paragraph is inserted beginning at
line 7:

CDFW regulates activities that will interfere with the natural flow of_or substantially alter,
the channe], bed, or bank of a lake, river, or stream. Section 1602 of the F&G Code requires
that CDFW be notified_of lake or streambed alteration activities. If CDFW subsequently
determines that such an_activity might adversely affect an existing fish and wildlife

Septernber 15, 2017 6



SRWA Infiltration Gallery Testing Project IS/MND
Consideration of Comments Received during the Public Review Period

resource, it_has the authoritv to issue a streambed alteration agreement, including

requirements to protect biological resources and water quality.

On page 3-50, the following additional information is inserted into Table 3.4-3 at the end of the
section “Birds” and before the heading “Mammals”:

Scientific Name/
Common Name

Federal/State
Status

Habitat Characteristics

Potential to Occur at Site

e

Elanus leucurus

white-tailed kite

~-/SP

Nests in tall shrubs and trees;

forages in grasslands, marshes,
and ruderal habitats.

Possible. Suitable nesting habit is

present within and adjacent to the
project site.

Note: SP = state fully protected species.

CONCLUSIONS

The comments received do not affect the IS/MND’s conclusians that the Proposed Project would not
have any significant effects on the environment. With the clarifications provided above, no changes to
the IS/MND are necessary, and no recirculation of the IS/MND is required.

September 15, 2017



SRWA Infiltration Gallery Testing Project IS/MND
Consideration of Comments Received during the Public Review Period

This page intentionally left blank

Septemnber 15, 2017 8



SRWA Infiltration Gallery Testing Project IS/MND
Consideration of Comments Received during the Public Review Period

Attachment A

Comments Received on the 1S/MND

September 15, 2017 9



SRWA Infiltration Gallery Testing Project IS/MND
Consideration of Comments Received during the Public Review Period

This page intentionally left blank

September 15, 2017 10



Comment Letter 1

San Joaquin Valley

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT

August 29, 2017

Michael Brinton

Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
156 Souih Broadway, Suite 270
Turlock, CA 95380

Project: Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND)
Infiltration Gallery Testing Project

District CEQA Reference No: 20170924

Dear Mr. Brinton:

The San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District (District) has reviewed the
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the infiltration Gallery Testing
Project. Per the IS/MND, the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project is proposing to test and
temporarily operate Turlock lrrigation District's (TID's) existing infiltration gallery for a
brief period in 2019 to evaluate and confirm its condition and allow research and testing
of the facility's pumping capacity and the resulting water quality (Project}. The Project
would include excavation of an area to access the existing infiltration gailery pipes;
construction of a wet well and associated facilities adjacent to an connecting with the
existing infiltration gallery; air purging and test pumping of the gallery pipes to dislodge
sediment; pumping of river water through the gallery and into setiling basins fo inspect
and test infiltration gallery and pump capacity and water quality; and disposal of the
water, once any entrained sediment has seitled out. The Project is jocated at
approximately River Mile 26 on the Tuolumne River in Stanislaus County, CA. The
District offers the following comments:

1. Based on information provided in the IS/MND, Project specific emissions of criteria
poliutants are not expected to exceed District significance thresholds of 10 tonsfyear
NOX, 10 ton/year ROG, and 15 tons/year PM10. Therefore, the District concludes
that Project specific criteria pollutant emissions would have no significant adverse
impact on air quality.

2. On Page 3-29, the IS/MND states that based on comparison of the Project
emissions to the District's significance threshold, all pollutants are well below the
construction emissions thresholds and therefore would not violate any air quality
standard or contribute substantially to an existing or project air quality violation. The
IS/MND concluded that this impact would be less than significant.

Seyed Sadredin
Exacutive Director/Aiz Polluticn Gontyol Officar

Koethern Begion tentrn] Region iMain Qffice} Southern Hegion
4800 Enterprise Way 19%0 E. Gettyshusg Avonue 34846 Flyever Doun
iodesto, CA 853569718 Froshe, CA 937260244 Bukarsfield, CA DI308.872%
Tak (208) 5578500 FAX: (208} §57.8473 Tk 1054 230-5000 FAX; (559) 230-608) Tl 661-387-5500 FAK: GBY-382-5585

worw.valloyair.erg vrvewhealyailiving cam

141

1-2



{

}

District CEQA Relerance No. 20170924

For your future reference, the District would like to clarify that determination of
whether project emissions would violate any ambient air quality standard is largely a
function of air quality dispersion modeling. If project emissions would not exceed
State and Federal ambient air quality standards at the project's property boundaries,
the project would be considered not to violate any air quality standard or contribute
substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation.

The need to perform an air quality dispersion modeling analysis (also known as an
ambient air quality analysis) for any project depends on the level of emissions
associated with the proposed Project. The impact may be significant when on-site
emissions increases from construction activities or operational aclivities exceed the
100 pound per day screening level of any criteria pollutant after implementation of all
enforceable mitigation measures.

3. The Project may require District permits. Prior fo the start of construction the Project
proponent should contact the District's Small Business Assistance Office at (559)
230-5888 to determine if an Authority to Construct (ATC) is required.

4. The Project may be subject to District Rules and Regulations, including: Regulation
Vili (Fugitive PM10 Prohibitions), Rule 4102 (Nuisance), Rule 4601 (Architectural
Coatings), and Rule 4641 (Cutback, Slow Cure, and Emuisified Asphalt, Paving and
Maintenance Operations). In the event an existing building will be renovated,
partially demolished or removed, the Project may be subject to District Rule 4002
{National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants). The above list of rules
is neither exhaustive nor exclusive. To identify other District rules or regulations that
apply to this Project or to obtain information about District permit requirements, the
applicant is strongly encouraged to contact the District's Small Business Assistance
Office at (559) 230-5888. Current District rules can be found online at:
www.valleyair.org/rules/1ruleshist. him.

5. The District recommends that a copy of the District's commentis be provided to the
project proponent,

If you have any questions or require further information, please call Sharla Yang at
(559) 230-5934.

Sincerely,

Arnaud Marjollet
Director of Permit Services

0 ¢ N T

s Brian Clements

Program Manager

AM: sy

1-5

12
Cont.

1-3



Comment Letter 2

:
K
zv‘.:!g':" Eomunn G. Bruown Ju,
Y AVERICT

SRy Marinow Roosiouez
ALCRETANY FOR
ENIAGHMENTAY PROTECTICH

ChLIFONKIA

Water Bords

Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board

29 August 2017
Michaei Brinton CERTIFIED MAIL
Stanislaus Regional Water Authority 91 7199 9991 7035 8421 1557

156 South Broadway, Suite 270
Turlock, CA 95380

COMMENTS TO REQUEST FOR REVIEW FOR THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE
DECLARATION, INFILTRATION GALLERY TESTING PROJECT, SCH# 2017082018,

STANISLAUS COUNTY

Pursuant to the State Clearinghouse’s 7 August 2017 request, the Central Valley Regional
Water Quality Control Board {Central Valley Water Board) has reviewed the Request for Review
for the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project, located in
Stanislaus County.

Our agency is delegated with the responsibility of protecting the quality of surface and
groundwaters of the state; therefore our comments will address concerns surrounding those

issues.
. Regulatory Setfing

Basin Plan

The Central Valley Water Board is required to formulate and adopt Basin Pians for alf areas
within the Central Valiey region under Section 13240 of the Porter-Cologne Water Quality
Control Act. Each Basin Plan must contain water quality objectives to ensure the
reasonable protection of beneficial uses, as well as a program of implementation for
achieving water quality objectives with the Basin Plans. Federal regulations require each
state to adopt water quality standards to protect the public health or welfare, enhance the
quality of water and serve the purposes of the Clean Water Act. In California, the beneficial
uses, water quality objectives, and the Antidegradation Policy are the State’s water quality
standards. Water quality standards are also contained in the National Toxics Rule, 40 CFR
Section 131.36, and the California Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131.38.

The Basin Plan is subject to modification as necessary, considering applicable laws,
policies, technologies, water quality conditions and priorities. The original Basin Plans were
adopted in 1975, and have been updated and revised periodically as required, using Basin
Plan amendments. Once the Central Valley Water Board has adopted a Basin Plan
amendment in noticed public hearings, it must be approved by the State Water Resources
Control Board (State Water Board), Office of Administrative Law (OAL) and in some cases,

KanAL E. Lototey SeD, P.E., cnsam | Pamewa G, Cneeoon PLE., BCEE, oxceutve orvicon

11028 Sup Canter Drive #200. Ranche Cordova, CA 85670 | wiwwl waterboards.ce.goweantralvalisy

&5 nccvcLen raren



Infiltration Gallery Testing Project -2- 29 August 2017
Stanislaus County

the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), Basin Plan amendments
only become effective after they have been approved by the OAL and in some cases, the
USEPA. Every three (3) years, a review of the Basin Plan is completed that assesses the
appropriateness of existing standards and evaluates and prioritizes Basin Pianning issues.

For more information on the Water Quality Controf Plan for the Sacramento and San
Joaquin River Basins, please visit our website:
http://www.waterboards.ca.govicentralvalley/water_issues/basin_plans/.

Antidegradation Considerations

All wastewater discharges must comply with the Antidegradation Policy (State Water Board
Resolution 68-16) and the Antidegradation Implementation Policy contained in the Basin
Pian. The Antidegradation Policy is available on page IV-15.01 at;
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvaileywater_jssues/basin_plans/sacsjr.pdf

in part if states:

Any discharge of waste fo high quality waters must apply best practicable treatment or
control not only to prevent a condition of pollution or nuisance from occurring, but also to
maintain the highest water quality possible consistent with the maximum benefit to the
people of the Stafe.

This information must be presented as an analysis of the impacts and potential impacts
of the disciharge on water quality, as measured by background concentrations and
applicable water quality objectives.

The antidegradation analysis is a mandatory element in the National Poillutant Discharge
Elimination System and land discharge Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) permitting
processes. The environmental review document should evaluate potential impacts to both
surface and groundwater quality.

Permitting Requirements

Construction Storm Water General Permit

Dischargers whose project disturb one or more acres of soil or where projects disturb less
than one acre but are part of a larger common plan of development that in total disturbs
one or more acres, are required to obtain coverage undar the General Permit for Storm
Water Discharges Associated with Construction Activities (Construction General Permit),
Construction General Permit Order No. 2009-009-DWQ. Coenstruction activity subject to
this permit includes clearing, grading, grubbing, disturbances to the ground, such as
stockpiling, or excavation, but does not include regular maintenance activities performed to
restore the original line, grade, or capacity of the facility. The Construction General Permit
requires the development and implementation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan




Infiltration Gallery Testing Project -3- | 29 August 2017
Stanislaus County

(SWPPP).

For more information on the Construction General Permit, visit the State Water Resources

Control Board website at:-
http://iwww.waterboards.ca.gov/water_jssues/programs/stormwater/constpermits.shiml.

Phase | and Il Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permits’

The Phase | and Il MS4 permits require the Permittees reduce poliutants and runoff flows
from new development and redevelopment using Best Management Practices (BMPs) to
the maximum extent practicable (MEP). MS4 Permittees have their own development
standards, also known as Low Impact Development (LID)/post-construction standards that
include a hydromodification component. The MS4 permits also require spacific design
concepts for LID/post-construction BMPs in the early stages of a project during the
entitlement and CEQA process and the development plan review process.

For more information on which Phase | MS4 Permit this project applies fo, visit the Central

Valley Water Board website at:
hitp:/fwww.waterboards.ca.govi/centralvalley/water_jissues/storm_water/municipal_permits/.

For more information on the Caltrans Phase | MS4 Permit, visit the State Water Resources

Controf Board at:
hitp:/iwww.waterboards.ca.goviwater_issues/programs/stormwater/caltrans.shtmi.

For more information on the Phase il MS4 permit and who it applies to, visit the Stale
Water Resources Control Board at:
http:/iwww.waterboards.ca.gov/iwater_jssues/programs/stormwater/phase_ii_municipal.sht
mi

industrial Storm Water General Permit
Storm water discharges associated with industrial sites must comply with the regulations
contained in the Industrial Storm Water General Permit Order No. 2014-0057-DWQ.

For more information on the industrial Storm Water General Permit, visit the Central Valley

Water Board website at:
http:/fwww.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_jssues/storm_water/industrial_general_

permits/index.shtml.

Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit
If the project will involve the discharge of dredged or fill material in navigable waters or
wetlands, a permit pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act may be needed from the

! Municipal Permits = The Phase | Municipal Separate Storm Waler Systemn (MS4) Permit covers medium sized
Municipalities (serving between 100,000 and 250,000 people) and large sized municipaliies {serving over
250,000 people). The Phase Il MS4 provides coverage for smali municipalities, inciuding non-traditional Smail
MS4s, which include military bases, public campuses, prisons and hospitals.



Infiltration Gallery Testing Project -4 - 29 August 2017
Stanislaus County

United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACOE). if a Section 404 permit is required by
the USACOE, the Central Valley Water Board will review the permit application to ensure
that discharge wiil not violate water qualily standards. If the project requires surface water
drainage realignment, the applicant is advised fo contact the Department of Fish and Game
for information on Sireambed Alteration Permit requirements.

If you have any questions regarding the Clean Water Act Section 404 permits, please
contact the Regulatory Division of the Sacramento District of USACOE at (916) 557-5250.

Clean Water Act Section 401 Permit — Water Quality Certification

if an USACOE permit (e.g., Non-Reporting Nationwide Permit, Nationwide Permit, Letter of
Permission, individual Permit, Regional General Permit, Programmatic General Pemit), or
any other federal permit (e.g., Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act or Section 9 from
the United States Coast Guard), is required for this project due to the disturbance (..,
discharge of dredge or fill material) of waters of the United States (such as streams and
wetlands), then a Water Quality Certification must be obtained from the Central Valiey
Water Board prior to initiation of project activities. There are no waivers for 401 Water
Quality Certifications.

Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs)

Discharges to Waters of the State
If USACOE determines that only non-jurisdictional waters of the State (i.e., “non-federaf’
waters of the State) are present in the proposed project area, the proposed project may
require a Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) permit to be issued by Central Valley
Water Board. Under the California Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act,
discharges to all waters of the State, including all wetlands and other waters of the State
including, but not limited to, isolated wetlands, are subject to State reguiation.

Land Disposal of Dredge Material
If the project will involve dredging, Water Quality Certification for the dredging activity
and Waste Discharge Requiremenits for the land disposal may be needed.

Local Agernicy Oversite :
Pursuant to the State Water Board’s Onsite Wastewater Treatment Systems Policy
(OWTS Policy), the regulation of septic tank and leach field systems may be regulated
under the local agency’s management program in lieu of WDRs. A county
environmental health department may permit septic tank and leach field systems
designed for less than 10,000 gpd. For more information on septic system regulations,
visit the Central Valley Water Board's website at:
http:t/www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/owts/sh_owts_policy.pdf

For more information on the Water Quality Cerfification and WDR processes, visit the
Central Valiey Water Board website at:
hitp://iwww.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/help/business_help/permit2.shiml.



Infiltration Gallery Testing Project -§- 29 August 2017
Stanislaus County

Dewatering Permit
If the proposed project includes construction or groundwater dewatering to be discharged

to land, the proponent may apply for coverage under State Water Board General Water
Quality Order (Low Risk General Order) 2003-0003 or the Central Valley Water Board's
Waiver of Report of Waste Discharge and Waste Discharge Requirements (Low Risk
Waiver) R5-2013-0145. Small temporary construction dewatering projects are projects that
discharge groundwater to land from excavation activities or dewatering of underground
utility vaults. Dischargers seeking coverage under the General Order or Waiver must file a
Notice of Intent with the Central Valley Water Board prior to beginning discharge.

For more information regarding the Low Risk General Order and the application process,
visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:

http:/fwww.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2003/wao/w
Go2003-0003.pdf

For more information regarding the Low Risk Waiver and the application process, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at:

htip:/iwww.waterboards.ca.govicentralvaliey/board_decisions/adopted_orders/waivers/rs-
2013-0145_res.pdf

Requlatory Compliance for Commercially irrigated Agriculture

If the property will be used for commercial irrigated agricultural, the discharger will be
required to obtain regulatory coverage under the Iirigated Lands Regulatory Program.
There are two options to comply:

1. Obtain Coverage Under a Coalition Group. Join the local Coalition Group that
supports land owners with the implementation of the Irrigated Lands Regulalory
Program. The Coalition Group conducts water quality monitoring and reporting to
the Central Valley Water Board on behalf of its growers. The Coalition Groups
charge an annual membership fee, which varies by Coalition Group. To find the
Coalition Group in your area, visit the Central Valley Water Board's website at:
http:l/ww.waterboards.ca.govlcentraivalIeylwater_issueslirrigated_lands!app_appr
ovalfindex.shtm}; or contact water board staff at (916) 464-4611 or via email at
IrrLands@waterboards.ca.gov.

2. Obtain Coverage Under the General Waste Discharge Requirements for
Individual Growers, General Order R5-2013-0100. Dischargers not participating
in a third-party group {Coalition) are reguiated individually. Depending on the
specific site conditions, growers may be required to monitor runoff from their
propesty, install monitoring wells, and submit a notice of intent, farm plan, and other
action plans regarding their actions to comply with their General Order. Yearly
costs would include Stafe administrative fees (for example, annual fees for famm
sizes from 10-100 acres are currently $1,084 + $6.70/Acre); the cost to prepare
annual monitoring reports; and water quality monitoring costs. To enroll as an
Individual Discharger under the lrrigated Lands Regulatory Program, calf the



infiitration Gallery Testing Project -6- ' 29 August 2017
Stanislaus County

Central Valley Water Board phone line at (916) 464-4611 or e-mail board staff at
IrrLands@waterboards.ca.gov.

Low or Limited Threat General NPDES Permit

If the proposed project includes construction dewatering and it is necessary to discharge
the groundwater to waters of the United States, the proposed project wilt require coverage
under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit, Dewatering
discharges are typically considered a low or limited threat to water quality and may be
covered under the General Order for Dewatering and Other Low Threat Discharges o
Surface Waters (Low Threat General Order) or the General Order for Limited Threat
Discharges of Treated/Untreated Groundwater from Cleanup Sites, Wastewater from
Superchlorination Projects, and Other Limited Threat Wastewaters to Surface Water
{Limited Threat General Order). A complete application must be submitted to the Central
Valley Water Board to obtain coverage under these General NPDES permits.

For more information regarding the Low Threat General Order and the application process,
visit the Central Valiey Water Board website at:
http:llwww.waterboards.ca.govlcentraIvalleylboard_decisionsladopted_orderslgenerai__ord
ers/r5-2013-0074.pdf

For more information regarding the Limited Threat General Order and the application
process, visit the Central Valley Water Board website at;
http:lfwww.waterboards.ca.govlcentralvalIeylboard__decisionsiadopted_orderslgeneral_ord
ersfr5-2013-0073.pdf

NPDES Permit

If the proposed project discharges waste that could affect the quality of the waters of the
State, other than into a community sewer system, the proposed project will require
coverage under a National Poliutant Discharge Efimination System (NPDES) permit. A
compiete Report of Waste Discharge must be submitted with the Central Valley Waier
Board to obtain a NPDES Permit.

For more information regarding the NPDES Permit and the application process, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at:
http:llwww.waterboards.ca.govlcentra!valieylhe1plbusiness_helpfpermit3.shtml



Infiltration Gallery Testing Project ~7- 29 August 2017
Stanislaus County

If you have questions regarding these comments, please contact me at (916) 464-4644 or
Stephanie. Tadlock@waterboards.ca.gov.

CZWZ@LL’W’-
({?‘Y Stephanie Tadlock

Environmental Scientist

cc:  State Clearinghouse unit, Governor's Office of Planning and Research, Sacramento



Comment Letter 3 |

State of California — Natural Resources Agency EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Governor
DEPARTMENT OF FiSH AND WILDLIFE CHARLTON H. BONHAM, Director
Ceniral Region

1234 East Shaw Avenue

Fresno, California 93710

(559} 243-4005

v wildlife ca aov

September 1, 2017

Michael Brinton, interim General Manager
Stanislaus Regional Water Authority

156 South Broadway, Suite 270

Turlock, CA 95308

Dear Mr. Brinton:

Subject: [nfiltration Gallery Testing Project (Project)
State Clearinghouse No. 2017082019

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) reviewed the Initial Study/Mitigated
Negative Declaration (IS/MND) from the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority for the
ahove-referenced Project pursuant the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and
CEQA Guidelines.! We appreciate the opportunity fo provide comments and
recommendations regarding those aspects of the Project that CDFW, by law, may be
required to carry out or approve through the exercise of its own regulatory authority under
the Fish and Game Code,

PROJECT DESCRIPTION SUMMARY

The Stanislaus Regional Water Authority (SRWA) proposes to test the condition and
operation of Turlock irrigation District's (TID’s} existing infiliration gallery, construct a wet
well, and install temporary pumping facilities to ascertain if it is feasible to proceed with the
Surface Water Supply Project, a separate water supply project being considered by
SRWA. The proposed Project would include excavation of an area to access the
infiltration gallery pipes; construction of a wet well and associated facilities adjacent to and
connecting with the existing infiltration gallery; air purging and test pumping of the gallery
pipes 1o dislodge sediment; construction of settling basins; pumping of river water through
‘the galley and into settling basins to inspect and test infiltration gallery and pump capacity
and water quality; and disposal of the water, once any entrained sediment has settled out.

CDFW JURISDICTION

CDFW is California’s Trustee Agency for fish and wildlife resources, and holds those
resources in trust by statute for all the people of the State. (Fish & G. Code, §§ 711.7,
subd. {a) & 1802; Pub. Resources Code, § 21070; CEQA Guidelines § 15386, subd. (a).)
CDFW, in its trusiee capacity, has jurisdiction over the conservation, protection, and
management of fish, wildlife, native plants, and habitat necessary for biologically

' CEQA is codified in the California Public Resources Code in § 21000 et seq. The *CEQA Guidelines” are
found in Title 14 of the Californta Code of Regulations, commencing with § 15000.



Michael Brinton

Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
September 1, 2017

Page 2

sustainable populations of those species. (/d., § 1802.} Similarly, for purposes of CEQA,
CDFW is charged by law to provide, as available, biological expertise during public agency
environmental review efforts, focusing specifically on projects and related activities that
have the potential to adversely affect fish and wildlife resources.

CDFW is also submitting comments as a Responsible Agency under CEQA. (Pub.
Resources Code, § 21069; CEQA Guidelines, § 15381.) CDFW expects that it may need
to exercise regulatory authority as provided by the Fish and Game Code. As proposed, for
example, the Project may be subject to CDFW's lake and streambed alteration regulatory
authority. (Fish & G. Code, § 16800 ef seq.) Likewise, to the exitent implementation of the
Project as proposed may result in "take” as defined by State law of any species protected
under the California Endangered Species Act {CESA) (Fish & G. Code, § 2050 ef seq.),
related authorization as provided by the Fish and Game Code will be required.

CDFW has jurisdiction over fully protected species of birds, mammals, amphibians and
reptiles, and fish, pursuant to Fish and Game Code §§ 3511, 4700, 5050, and 5515. Take
of any fully protected species is prohibited and CDFW cannot authorize their incidental
take.

CDFW COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

CDFW offers the comments and recommendations below to assist the SRWA in
adequately identifying and/or mitigating the Project’s significant, or potentially significant,
direct and indirect impacts on fish and wildlife (biological) resources.

Table 2.7 Permits and Approvals: CDFW recommends that a general discussion of the
CESA Incidental Take Permit and Fish and Game Code § 2081 be included in this tabie.

Table 3.4-3 Special Status Wildlife Species: CDFW recommends that white-tailed kite
(Elanus leucurus) be included in this table.

Page 3-36: State Laws, Regulations, and Policies: CDFW recommends that this
section of the IS/MND include a discussion of Fish and Game Code § 1600 ef seqg.

Swainson’s Hawk and White-Tailed Kite:

Specific impacts: The Swainson’s hawk (Bufeo swainsoni; SWHA) is a species listed as
threatened pursuant fo CESA. The species has the potential to nest in riparian habitat and
other mature trees located within 0.5 miles of the Project boundary. Suitable foraging
habitat, including dairy pasture, occurs within a 10-mile radius of the Project vicinity.
Suitable nesting and foraging habitat for the fully protected white-tailed kite is also located
within and adjacent to the Project boundary.

Without appropriate avoidance and minimization measures, potential significant impacts
include nest abandonment, which may result in reduced nesting success such as reduced
health or vigor of eggs or young, in addition to direct moriality. Any take of SWHA without

31

33

N

3-4



Michael Brinton

Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
September 1, 2017

Page 3

appropriate incidental take authorization would be a violation of CESA. incidental take of
white-tailed kite cannot be authorized and would be a violation of Fish and Game Code §
3511

Mitigation Measure BIO-5: This measure states that if construction occurs between
February 1 and August 31, surveys for SWHA or white-tailed kite shall be conducted, and
surveys will cover a minimum 500-foot radius around the construction area. The measure
also states that if nesting SWHA or white-tailed kite are detected, 500-foot buffers around
active nests will be established unless a qualified biclogist determines that smaller buffers
are sufficient fo avoid impacts on nesting raptors. CDFW recommends changing BIO-5 to
incorporate the following recommendations.

If Project activities will occur while active white-tailed kite nests are present, CDFW
recommends implementation of a minimum 500-foot no-disturbance buffer with no
reduction in buffer radius.

34
To evaluate potential Project-related impacts to SWHA, CDFW recommends that a cont.
qualified wildlife biologist conduct surveys for nesting SWHA following the survey
methodology developed by the Swainson’s Hawk Technical Advisory Commitiee (SWHA
TAC, 2000}, including all survey periods in the protocol regardless of whether Project
activities begin before all surveys have been compieted. CDFW requests the results of
these surveys, including a report of surveys to date at the time of Project implementation
and a final survey report at the completion of all surveys.

CDFW recommends that if Project activities will occur during the SWHA nesting season
{March 1 through August 31), and active SWHA nests are detected at any ftime within the
Project site or a 0.5-mile buffer, a minimum no-disturbance buffer of 0.5 miles around each
nest be implemented until the breeding season has ended, or until a qualified biologist has
determined that the birds have fledged and are no longer reliant upon the nest or parental
care for survival. If a 0.5-mile buffer is not feasible, take authorization through the
issuance of an |TP, pursuant to Fish and Game Code § 2081(b) is necessary to comply
with CESA.

CDFW appreciates the opportunity to comment on the IS/MND to assist the SRWA in
identifying and mitigating Project impacts on biological resources. Questions regarding
this letter or further coordination should be directed to Annette Tenneboe, Senior
Environmental Scientist (Specialist), at (559) 243-4014 extension 231 or

Annette. Tenneboe@wildlife.ca.gov.

Sincerely,
S //’Zf'ﬁf.{f, £ Z-z,/«— e

Julie A. Vance
Regional Manager



Michael Brinton

Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
September 1, 2017

Page 4

REFERENCES

SWHA TAC, 2000. Recommended Timing and Methodology for Swainson’s Hawk Nesting
Surveys in California’s Central Valley. Swainson’s Hawk Technical Advisory Committee,
May 31, 2000.



Comment Letter 4

Milton Trieweiler, A City of Turlock Citizen
Born in Turlock, Small Turlock Business, 42 vears
P.0. Box 2020, Turlock CA 95381-2020
Ph. 205-535-1274 Email: magictrain@aol.com
September 5, 2017

Michael Brinton, Interim General Manager
Stanislaus Regional Water Authority

156 South Broadway Suite 270

Turlock CA 95380

COMMENTS: SRWA, infiltration Gallery Testing Project, IS/MND

How many other California Cities use a River Infiltration Gallery like this one as a water source for their surface T

water supply? How well has it worked out for these cities?

The lower Tuolumne River is listed as an impaired water body; this designation is largely due to the presence
of several pesticides. How will we be able to prevent the increased concentrations of pesticides originating up
river in low river flow times, and being extracted by the River Infiltration Gallery, from overwhelming the
Water Treatment Plants filtration systems?

How many other California Cities have their Surface Water Supply Infiltration Galleries located less than ¥ Mile
from an unlined landfill?

What assurances do we have that the toxins in the unlined Geer Road Landfill will not feach into the aquifer
below the landfill and migrate to the River Infiltration Galiery?

How can we be guaranteed that the pumping of water from the River Infiltration Gallery will not cause acone |

of depression in the aquifer under the river, sucking up Geer Road Landfill contaminants with the extracted
water?

Do we have another plan for a source of water for our surface water supply if the existing plan is not feasibie?

Let us use science, and not antidotal information to build the best Surface Water Treatment system possible

for the future.
Sincerely,
!'/77’2,(;{. C—!D’L M_D'.p{..{_,\' .,*,.L,C.G L

Milton Trieweiler, P.O. Box 2020, Turlock CA 95381-2020, Ph. 209-535-1274

4-6

4.2



Comment Letter 5 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE

Jody L. Hayes
Chief Executive Officer

Patricia Hill Thomas
Chief Operations Officer/
Assistant Executive Officer

Keith D. Boggs
Assistant Executive Officer

Patrice M. Districh
Assistant Executive Officer

1070 70" Strest, Suite 5800, Modesto, CA 95354
Post Office Box 3404, Modesto, CA 95353-3404

STANISLAUS COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW COMMITTEE

September 5§, 2017

Michael Brinton, Interim Generai Manager
Stanislaus Regional Water Authority

156 S. Broadway, Suite 270

Turlock, CA 95380

SUBJECT: ENVIRONMENTAL REFERRAL - STANISLAUS REGIONAL WATER
AUTHORITY - INFILTRATION GALLERY TESTING PROJECT — NOTICE OF
~-INTENT TO ADOPT A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION
Mr. Brinton:
Thank you for the opportunity to review the above-referenced project.

The Stanislaus County Environmental Review Committee (ERC) has reviewed the subject
project and has no comments at this fime.

The ERC appreciates the opportunity to comment on this project.
Sincerely,

i/)(}iv{,uﬂz(}e«(/\

Patrick Cavanah

Sr. Management Consuliant
Environmental Review Commitlee
PC:ss

ce: ERC Members




Comment Letter 6

0““5“;%&%
_ STATE OF CALIFORNIA £ * °
s £ g
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE of PLANNING AND RESEARCH s W ¢
&
STATE CLEARINGHOUSE AND PLANNING UNIT e e
EDMUND C. BROW JR. KEK ALEX
GUVERNOR
September 6, 2017 Prector
Michael Brinton
Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
156 Scuth Broadway, Suite 270
Turlock, CA 95380
Subject: Infiltration Gallery Testing Project
SCH#: 2017082019
Dear Michael Brinton:
The Siate Clearinghouse submitied the above named Mitigated Negative Declaration to selected state
agencies for review. On the enclosed Document Details Report please note that the Clearinghouse has
listed the state agencies that reviewed your document. The review period closed on September 5, 2017, 6-1

and the comments from the responding agency {ies) is (are) enclosed. If this comment package is not in
order, please notify the Siate Clearinghouse immediately. Please refer lo the project’s ten-digit State
Clearinghouse number in future correspondence so that we may respond promptly.

Please note that Section 21104(c) of the California Public Resources Code states that:

*“A responsible or other public agency shall only make substantive comments regarding those
activities involved in a project which are within an area of expertise of the agency or which are
required to be carried out or approved by the agency. Those comments shall be supported by
specific documentation.”

These comments are forwarded for use 1o preparing your final environmental document. Should you need
more information or clarification of the enclosed comments, we recommend that vou contact the
commenting agency directly.

This letter acknowledges that you have complied with the State Clearinghouse review requirements for
draft environmental documents, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act. Please contact the
State Clearinghouse at ($16) 443-0613 if you have any questions regarding the environmental review
process.

Sincerely, /

7 ///f’”,{ﬁw

-
“Stott Morgan
Director, State Clearinghouse

Enclosures
cc: Resources Agency

1400 10th Street  P.0. Box 3044  Sacramento, Califormia 95812-3044
(916) 445-0613  FAX (916) 323-3018 www.opr.ca.gov



Document Details Report
State Clearinghouse Data Base

SCH# 2017082019
Project Title  Infiltration Gallery Testing Project
Lead Agency  Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
Type MND Mitigated Negative Declaration
Description  SRWA proposes to test the condition and operation of TID's existing infiltration gallery, construct a wet

well, and install temporary pumping facilities to ascertain if it is feasible to proceed with the Surface
Water Supply Project, a separate water suppiy project being considered by SRWA. The proposed
project would include excavation of an area to access the infiltration gallery pipes; construction of a wet
well and associated facilities adjacent to and connecting with the existing infiltration gallery; air purging
and test pumping of the gallery pipes to dislodge sediment; pumping of river water through the gallery
and into settling basins to inspect and test infilfration gallery and pumg capacity and water quality; and
disposal of the water, once any entrained sediment has sattfed out.

l.ead Agency Contact

Name Michael Brinton
Agency Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
Phone 209-538-5758 Fax
email
Address 156 South Broadway, Suite 270
City Turlock State CA  Zip 95380
Project Location
County Stanislaus
City Hughson
Region
Lat/Long 37° 37 1.65"N/120°50'51.7"W
Cross Streels  Geer Rd at Tuolumne River, river mile 26
ParcelNo. 018-003-008, 018-004-012, 013, elc.
Township Range Section Base
Proximity to:
Highways
Airports
Railways BNSF
Waterways Tuolumne River
Schools
Land Use agriculture, TID infiltration gallery, Fox Grove Regional Pari/A-2-40/Ag
Project Issues  Aesthetic/Visual, Agricultural Land; Air Quality: Archaeologic-Hisloric; Biological Resources:
Cumulative Effects; Drainage/Absorption; Economics/Jobs; Flood Plain/Flooding; Forest Land/Fire
Hazard, Geologic/Seismic; Growth Inducing; Landuse; Minerals; Noise: Population/Housing Balance:;
Public Services; Recreation/Parks; Schools/Universities; Sepfic Systemn; Sewer Capacity; Soil
Erosion/Compaction/Grading; Soiid Waste; Toxic/Hazardous; Traffic/Circulation; Vegelation; Water
Quality; Water Supply; Wetland/Riparian
Reviewing Resources Agency; Central Valley Flood Protection Board; Depariment of Fish and Wildlife, Region 4;
Agencies Office of Historic Preservation; Department of Parks and Recreation; Department of Water Resourees;
Calirans, District 10; State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water; Regional
Water Quality Control Bd., Region § {Sacramento); Delta Protection Commission; Delta Stewardship
Council; Native American Heritage Commission; Public Ulilities Commission
Date Received 08/04/2017 Start of Review 0B/07/2017 End of Review 09/05/2017

Note: Blanks in data fields result from insufficient information provided by lead aaency.



f_._ Zuwurts I Brsre g,
Cal GavERNcE

AW 4iS 1 G
N e
; [

ERLIFAANIA

Water Boards

Central Valley Regional Water Quality Conirol Board

29 August 2017

S04EITOr'S Orifce of Planning & Rasaarch
Michael Brinton 2D (4 Aree CERTIFIED MAIL
Stanislaus Regional Water Authority SEP 017 Yif 917199 9991 7035 8421 1557

156 South Broadway, Suite 270 STATE A ny .
Turlock, CA 95380 ATECLEARINGHO USE

COMMENTS TO REQUEST FOR REVIEW FOR THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE
DECLARATION, INFILTRATION GALLERY TESTING PROJECT, SCH# 2017082019,

STANISLAUS COUNTY

Pursuant to the State Clearinghouse’s 7 August 2017 request, the Central Valley Regional
Water Quality Control Board (Central Valley Water Board) has reviewed the Request for Review
for the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project, located in
Stanislaus County.

Our agency is delegated with the responsibility of protecting the quality of surface and
groundwaters of the state; therefore our comments will address concerns surrounding those

issues.
. Regulatory Setting

Basin Plan

The Central Valley Water Board is required to formulate and adopt Basin Plans for all areas
within the Central Valley region under Section 13240 of the Porter-Cologne Water Quality
Controt Act. Each Basin Plan must contain water quality objectives to ensure the
reasonable protection of beneficial uses, as well as 2 program of implementation for
achieving water quality objectives with the Basin Plans. Federal regulations require each
state to adopt water quality standards to protect the public health or welfare, enhance the
quality of water and serve the purposes of the Clean Water Act. In California, the beneficial
uses, water quality objectives, and the Antidegradation Policy are the State’s water quality
standards. Water quality standards are also contained in the National Toxics Rule, 40 CFR
Section 131.36, and the California Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131.38.

The Basin Plan is subject to modification as necessary, considering applicable laws,
policies, technologies, water quality conditions and priorities, The original Basin Plans were
adopted in 1975, and have been updated and revised periodically as required, using Basin
Plan amendments. Once the Central Valley Water Board has adopted a Basin Plan
amendment in noticed public hearings, it must be approved by the State Water Resources
Control Board (State Water Board), Office of Administrative Law (OAL) and in some cases,

Kar E. Loneiey SeD, P.E., enan | Pamgs G, Crezoon PB.E,, BCEE, sxcounivt orroon

SHHRGMMENTIL FRETTIN Ay

#1020 Sun Centar Drive #2600, Rancho Cordava, CA 35570 i www.waterboards.ca. govicantraivaliny

O sececian peren



infiltration Gallery Testing Project -2- 29 August 2017
Stanislaus County :

the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). Basin Plan amendments
only become effective after they have been approved by the CAL and in some cases, the
USEPA. Every three (3) years, a review of the Basin Plan is completed that assesses the
appropriateness of existing standards and evaluates and prioritizes Basin Planning issues.

For more information on the Water Quality Control Plan for the Sacramento and San

Joaquin River Basins, please visit our website:
http://iwww.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/basin_plans/.

Antidegradation Considerations

All wastewater discharges must comply with the Antidegradation Policy (State Water Board
Resolution 68-16) and the Antidegradation Implementation Policy contained in the Basin
Pian. The Antidegradation Policy is available on page |V-15.01 at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalleywater _issues/basin_plans/sacsjr.pdf

In part it states:

Any discharge of waste fo high quality waters must apply best practicable treatment or
controf not only to prevent a condition of pollution or nuisance from occurring, but also to
maintain the highest water quality possible consistent with the maximum benefit to the
people of the State.

This information must be presented as an analysis of the impacts and potential impacts
of the discharge on water quality, as measured by background concentrations and
applicable water quality objectives.

The antidegradation analysis is a mandatory element in the National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System and land discharge Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) permitting
processes. The environmental review document should evaluate potential impacts to both
surface and groundwater quality.

Permitting Requirements

Construction Storm Water General Permit

Dischargers whose project disturb one or more acres of soil or where projects disturb less
than one acre but are part of a larger common plan of development that in total disturbs
one or more acres, are required to obtain coverage under the General Permit for Storm
Water Discharges Associated with Construction Activities (Construction General Permit),
Construction General Permit Order No. 2008-009-DWQ. Construction activity subject to
this permit includes clearing, grading, grubbing, disturbances to the ground, such as
stockpiling, or excavation, but does not include regular maintenance activities performed to
restore the original line, grade, or capacity of the facility. The Construction General Permit
requires the development and implementation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan




infiltration Gallery Testing Project -3 29 August 2017
Stanislaus County

(SWPPP).

For more information on the Construction General Permit, visit the State Water Resources

Control Board website at:
hitp://www.waterboards.ca.goviwater_issues/programs/stormwater/constpermits.shtml.

Phase | and )l Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permits’

The Phase ! and I} M84 permits require the Permitiees reduce poflutants and runoff flows
from new development and redevelopment using Best Management Practices (BMPs) to
the maximum extent practicable {MEP). MS4 Permittees have their own development
standards, also known as Low Impact Development (LID)/post-construction standards that
include a hydromodification component. The MS4 permits also require specific design
concepts for LiD/post-construction BMPs in the early stages of a project during the
entitlement and CEQA process and the development plan review process.

For more information on which Phase | MS4 Permit this project applies to, visif the Central

Valley Water Board website at:
hitp://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/storm_water/municipal_permits/.

For more information on the Caltrans Phase { MS4 Permit, visit the State Water Resources

Control Board af:
http:/iwww.waterboards, ca. goviwater_issues/programs/stormwaier/caltrans.shtmi.

For more information on the Phase | M84 permit and who it applies to, visit the State
Water Resources Control Board at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.goviwater_issues/programs/stormwater/phase_ii_municipal.sht
mi

Industrial Storm Water General Petmit
Storm water discharges assaciated with industrial sites must comply with the regulations
contained in the Industrial Storm Water General Permit Order No. 2014-0057-DWQ.

For more information on the Industrial Storm Water General Permit, visit the Central Valley
Water Board website at;
hitp:/iwww.waterboards.ca.govicentralvaliey/water_jssues/storm_water/industrial_general_

permitsfindex.shtmi.

Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit
If the project wili involve the discharge of dredged or fill material in navigable waters or
wetlands, a permit pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act may be needed from the

* Municipal Permits = The Phase { Municipal Separate Storm Water System (MS4) Permit covers medium sized
Municipalities {serving between 100,000 and 250,000 people} and large sized municipalities (serving over
250,000 people). The Phase il MS4 provides coverage for small municipaliies, including non-traditional Smal!
MS4s, which include military bases, public campuses, prisons and hospitals.



Infiltration Gallery Testing Project -4- 29 August 2017
Stanislaus County

United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACOE). If a Section 404 permit is required by -
the USACOE, the Central Valley Water Board will review the permit application to ensure
that discharge will not violate water quality standards. If the project requires surface water
drainage realignment, the applicant is advised to contact the Department of Fish and Game
for information on Streambed Alteration Permit requirements.

If you have any questions regarding the Clean Water Act Section 404 permits, please
contact the Regulatory Division of the Sacramento District of USACOQE at (916) 557-5250.

Clean Water Act Section 401 Permit — Water Quality Certification

If an USACOE permit (e.g., Non-Reporting Nationwide Permit, Nationwide Permit, Lefter of
Permission, Individual Permit, Regional General Permit, Programmatic Genieral Permit), or
any other federal permit (e.g., Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act or Section 9 from
the United States Coast Guard), is required for this project due to the disturbance (ie.,
discharge of dredge or fill material) of waters of the United States (such as streams and
wetlands), then a Water Quality Certification must be obtained from the Central Valley
Woater Board prior to initiation of project activities. There are no waivers for 401 Water
Quality Certifications. :

Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs)

Discharges to Waters of the State : :
If USACOE determines that only non-jurisdictional waters of the State (i.e., "non-federal”
waters of the State) are present in the proposed project area, the proposed project may
require a Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) permit to be issued by Central Valley
Water Board. Under the California Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act,
discharges to all waters of the State, including all wetlands and other waters of the State
including, but not limited to, isolated wetlands, are subject to State regulation.

Land Disposal of 5rédge Material : :
if the project will involve dredging, Water Quality Certification for the dredging activity
and Waste Discharge Requirements for the t_and disposal may be needed.

Local Agency Oversite : '
Pursuant to the State Water Board’s Onsite Wastewater Treatment Systems Policy
(OWTS Policy), the regulation of septic tank and leach field systems may be regulated
under the local agency's management program in lieu of WDRs. A county
environmental health department may permit septic tank and leach field systems
designed for less than 10,000 gpd. For more information on septic system regulations,
visit the Central Valley Water Board's website at: '
hitp:fwww. waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_ issues/owts/sh_owts_policy.pdf

For more information on the Water Quality Certification and WDR processes, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at: _
http:/fww.waterbcards.ca.govfcentraivalieyfhelp/business_helpfpennétz.shtml.



Infiltration Gallery Testing Project -5- 28 August 2017
Stanislaus County

Dewatering Permit

If the proposed project includes construction or groundwater dewatering fo be discharged
to land, the proponent may apply for coverage under State Water Board General Water
Quality Order (Low Risk Generai Order) 2003-0003 or the Central Valley Water Board's
Waiver of Report of Waste Discharge and Waste Discharge Requirements (Low Risk
Waiver) R5-2013-0145. Small temporary construction dewatering projects are projects that
discharge groundwater to land from excavation activities or dewatering of underground
utifity vauits. Dischargers seeking coverage under the General Order or Waiver must file a
Notice of Intent with the Central Valley Water Board prior to beginning discharge.

For more information regarding the Low Risk General Order and the application process,
visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:

ht’tp:flwww.waterboards.ca.govlboard__decisions/adopted_orders/water_qualityl2003lwqo/w
qo2003-0003.pdf

For more information regarding the Low Risk Waiver and the application process, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at:

http:f/www.waterboards.ca.gov!centralvalteylboard__decisians!adopted_orderslwa‘wersirS-
2013-0145_res.pdf

Regulatory Compliance for Commercially {rrigated Agriculture

If the property will be used for commercial imgated agricuftural, the discharger will be
required to obtain regulatory coverage under the Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program.
There are two options to comply:

1. Obtain Coverage Under a Coalition Group. Join the local Coalition Group that
supports land owners with the implementation of the [rrigated Lands Regulatory
Program. The Coalition Group conducts water quality monitoring and reporting to
the Central Valley Water Board on behalf of its growers. The Coaliticn Groups
charge an annual membership fee, which varies by Coalition Group. To find the
Coalition Group in your area, visit the Central Valley Water Board's website at:
hitp://www.waterboards.ca.gov/ceniralvalley/water_issuesfirrigated_lands/app_appr
ovalfindex.shiml; or contact water board staff at (916) 464-4611 or via email at
Irrl.ands@waterboards.ca.gov.

2. Obtain Coverage Under the General Waste Discharge Requirements for
Individual Growers, General Order R5-2013-0100. Dischargers not participating
in a third-party group (Coalition) are regulated individually. Depending on the
specific site conditions, growers may be required to monitor runoff from their
property, install monitoring wells, and submit a notice of intent, farm pian, and other
action plans regarding their actions to comply with their General Order. Yearly
costs would include State administrative fees (for example, annual fees for farm
sizes from 10-100 acres are currently $1,084 + 36.70/Acre); the cost to prepare
annual monitoring reports; and water quality monitoring costs. To enroll as an
Individuat Discharger under the Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program, call the



Infiltration Gallery Testing Project -6- 29 August 2017
Stanislaus County ,

Central Valley Water Board phone t:ne at (916) 464-4611 or e-mail board staff at
Il ands@waterboards.ca.gov.

Low or Limited Threat General NPDES Permit

if the proposed project includes constructlon dewatenng and it is necessary to discharge
the groundwater to waters of the United States, the proposed project will require coverage
under a National Pollutant Dfscharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. Dewaterlng
discharges are typically considered a low or limited threat to water quality and may be
covered under the General Order for Dewatering and Other Low Threat Discharges to
Surface Waters {Low Threat General Order) or the Genera!l Order for Limited Threat
Discharges of Treated/Untreated Groundwater from Cleanup Sites, Wastewater from
Superchiorination Projects, and Other Limited Threat Wastewaters to Surface Water
(Limited Threat General Order). A complete application must be submitted to the Central
Valley Water Board to obtain coverage under these General NPDES permits.

For mare information regarding the Low Threat General Order and the application process,
visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
http:/!www.waterboards.ca.govlcentralvai!ey/board_decisionsladopted”orders!genera!_ord
ers/r5-2013-0074.pdf

For more information regarding the Limited Threat General Order and the application
process, visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
http:l/www.waterboards.ca.gow’centraivaf[eyfboard__decisionsfadopted__orderslgeneral,_ord
ers/r5-2013-007 3. pdf

NPDES Permit

if the proposed project discharges waste that could affect the quality of the waters of the
State, other than into a community sewer system, the proposed project will require
coverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. A
complete Report of Waste Discharge must be submitted with the Central Valley Water
Board to obtain 2 NPDES Permit.

For more information regarding the NPDES Permit and the application procéss, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at:
http:!/www;waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/heEplbusiness_helplpermita.shtml



Infiltration Gallery Testing Project -7- 29 Augusi 2017
Sianisiaus County

If you have questions regarding these comments, please contact me at (916) 464-4644 or
Stephanie. Tadlock@waterboards.ca.gov.

LT

ie Tadlock
Environmental Scientist

cc:.  State Clearinghouse unit, Governor's Office of Planning and Research, Sacramento



Comment Letter 7

sEVF ”'u#az,
b 4

T op m\ﬁ“s

%

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

GOVERNOR'S QFFICE of PLANNING AND RESEARCH
STATE CLEARINGHOQUSE AND PLANNING UNIT

Maryrzsd e

aOVERND,,

EDMUND G. BROWN JR. KEN ALEX

GOVERNOR

DirECTO
September 7, 2017 *

Michael Brinton

Stanistaus Regional Water Authority
156 South Broadway, Suite 270
Turlock, CA 95380

Subject: Infiltration Gallery Testing Project
SCH# 2017082019

Dear Michael Brinton:

The enclosed comment (s) on your Mitigated Negative Declaration was {(were} received by the State
Clearinghouse after the end of the state review period, which closed on September 5, 2017. We are
forwarding these comments to you because they provide information or raise issues that shouid be
addressed in your final environmental document.

The California Environmental Quality Act does not require Lead Agencies to respond to late comments,
However, we encourage you to incorporate these additional comments into your final environmental
document and to consider them prior to taking final action on the proposed project.

Please contact the State Clearinghéuse at (916) 445-0613 if you have any questions concerning the

environmental review process. If you have a question regarding the above-named project, please refer to
the ten-digit State Clearinghouse number (2017082019) when contacting this office.

Sincerely,

Sé’{; {organ

Director, State Clearinghouse

Enclosures
cc: Resources Agency

1400 10th Street  P.0.Box 3044 Sacramento, California 95812-3044
{916} 445-0613 FAX (916) 323-3018 www.opr.ca.gov

7-1



siinee  State of California — Natural Resources Agency EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Govermor

LRANe DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE CHARLTON H. BONHAM, Director
i Central Region

¥ 1234 East Shaw Avenue

) Fresno, California 93710

{5589) 2434005

X
www. wildlife.ca.qov \b‘“@é\\
EAN %

September 1, 2017

Govemgr
Michael Brinton, Interim General Manager smofpmmgmh
Stanislaus Regional Water Authority SEP
156 South Broadway, Suite 270 086 2017

Turlock, CA 95308 ST‘QTECLEARWGHGUS
»E

Dear Mr. Brinton:

Subject: Infiltration Gallery Testing Project (Project)
State Clearinghouse No. 2017082018

The California Depariment of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) reviewed the Initial Study/Mitigated
Negative Declaration (IS/MND) from the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority for the
above-referenced Project pursuant the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and
CEQA Guidelines.” We appreciate the opportunity to provide comments and
recommendations regarding those aspects of the Project that COFW, by law, may be
required to carry out or approve through the exercise of its own regulatory authority under
the Fish and Game Code.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION SUMMARY

The Stanislaus Regional Water Authority (SRWA) propases to test the condition and
operation of Turlock Irrigation District's (TID's) existing infiltration gallery, construct a wet
well, and instalt ternporary pumping facilities to ascertain if it is feasible to proceed with the
Surface Water Supply Project, a separate water supply project being considered by
SRWA. The proposed Project would include excavation of an area to access the
infiltration gallery pipes; construction of a wet well and associated facilities adjacent to and
connecting with the existing infiltration gallery; air purging and test pumping of the gallery
pipes to dislodge sediment; construction of settling basins; pumping of river water through
the galley and into setliing basins to inspect and test infiltration gallery and pump capacity
and water quality; and disposal of the water, once any entrained sediment has settled out.

CDFW JURISDICTION

CDFW is California’s Trustee Agency for fish and wildlife resources, and holds those
resources in trust by statute for all the people of the State. (Fish & G. Code, §§ 711.7,
subd. (a) & 1802; Pub. Resources Code, § 21070; CEQA Guideiines § 15386, subd, (a).)
CDFW, in its trustee capacity, has jurisdiction over the canservation, protection, and
management of fish, wildlife, native plants, and habitat necessary for biologically

1 CEQA is codified in the California Public Resources Code in § 21000 et seq. The "CEQA Guidelines” are
found in Title 14 of the Califomia Code of Regulations, commenting with § 15000.



Michael Brinton

Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
 September 1, 2017

Page 2

sustainable populations of those species. (/d., § 1802.) Similarly, for purposes of CEQA,
CDFW is charged by law to provide, as available, biological expertise during public agency
environmenta! review efforts, focusing specifically on projects and related activities that
have the potential to adversely affect fish and wildlife resources.

CDFW is also submitting comments as a Responsible Agency under CEQA, (Pub.
Resources Code, § 21069; CEQA Guidelines, § 15381.) CDFW expects that it may need
to exercise regulatory authority as provided by the Fish and Game Code. As proposed, for
example, the Project may be subject to CDFW's lake and streambed alteration regulatory
authority. (Fish & G. Code, § 1600 et seq.) Likewise, to the extent implementation of the

Project as proposed may result in “take” as defined by State law of any species protected -

under the California Endangered Species Act {CESA) (Fish & G. Code, § 2050 ef seq.),
related authorization as provided by the Fish and Game Code will be required.

CDFW has jurisdiction over fully protected species of birds, mammals, amphibians and
reptiles, and fish, pursuant to Fish and Game Code §§ 3511, 4700, 5050, and 5515. Take
of any fully protected species is prohibited and CDFW cannot authorize their incidental
take.

CDFW COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

CDFW offers the comments and reéom.mendations below to assist the SRWA in
adequately identifying and/or mitigating the Project’s significant, or potentially significant,
direct and indirect impacts on fish and wildlife (biological) resources. -

Table 2.7 Permits and Approvals: CDFW recommends that a general discussion of the
~ CESA Incidental Take Pemmit and Fish and Game Code § 2081 be included in this table.

Table 3.4-3 Special Status Wildlife Species: CDFW recommends that white-tailed kite
(Elanus leucurus) be included in this table. . . L

Page 3-36: State Laws, Regulations, and Policies: CDFW recommends that this
section of the ISMND include a discussion of Fish and Game Code § 1600 et seq.

Swainson’s Hawk and White-Tailed Kite:

Specific impacts: The Swainson’s hawk (Buteo swainsoni; SWHA) is a species listed as
threatened pursuant to CESA. The species has the potential to nest in riparian habitat and
other mature trees located within 0.5 miles of the Project boundary. Suitable foraging
habitat, including dairy pasture, occurs within a 10-mile radius of the Project vicinity.
Suitable nesting and foraging habitat for the fully protected white-tailed kite is also located
within and adjacent to the Project boundary.

Without appropriate avoidance and minimization measures, potential significant impacts
include nest abandonment, which may resutt in reduced nesting success such as reduced
health or vigor of eggs or young, in addition to direct mortality. Any take of SWHA without




Michael Brinton .

Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
September 1, 2017

Page 3

appropriate incidental take authorization would be a violation of CESA. Incidental take of
white-tailed kite cannot be autheorized and would be a violation of Fish and Game Code §
3511

Mitigation Measure BIO-5: This measure states that if construction occurs between
February 1 and August 31, surveys for SWHA or white-tailed kite shall be conducted, and
surveys will cover a minimum 500-foot radius around the construction area. The measure
also states that if nesting SWHA or white-tailed kite are detected, 500-foot buffers around
active nests will be established unless a qualified biologist determines that smaller buffers

- are sufficient to avoid impacts on nesting raptors CDFW recommenc!s changmg BIO- 5 to

incorporate the following recommendations.

If Project activities will occur while active white-tailed kite nests are present, COFW
recommends implementation of a minimurn 500-foot no-disturbance buffer with no
reduction in buffer radius.

To evaluate potential Project-related impacts to SWHA, COFW recommends that a
qualified wildlife biologist conduct surveys for nesting SWHA following the survey
methodology developed by the Swainson’s Hawk Technical Advisory Committee (SWHA
TAC, 2000), including ali survey periods in the protocol regardless of whether Project
activities begin before all surveys have been completed. CDFW requests the results of
these surveys, including a report of surveys to date at the time of Project impiementation
and a final survey report at the completion of all surveys.

CDFW recommends that if Project activities will occur during the SWHA nesting season
(March 1 through August 31), and active SWHA nests are detected at any time within the
Project site or a 0.5-mile buffer, a minimum no-disturbance buiffer of 0.5 miles around each
nest be implemented until the breeding season has ended, or until a qualified biologist has
determined that the birds have fledged and are no longer reliant upon the nest or parenta[
care for survival. f a 0.5-mile buffer is not feasible, take authorization through the..
issuance of an [TP, pursuant to Fish and Game Code § 2081(b) is necessary to comply
with CESA.

CDFW appreciates the opportunity to comment on the 1S/MND to assist the SRWA in
identifying and mitigating Project impacts on biological resources. Questions regarding
this letter or further coordination should be directed to Annette Tenneboe, Senior
Environmental Scientist {Specialist), at (559) 243-4014 extension 231 or

Annette. Tenneboe@wildlife.ca.gov. .

Sincerely,

Julie A. Vance
Regional Manager



Michael Brinton

Stanislaus Regional Water Authority
September 1, 2017

Page 4

REFERENCES
SWHA TAC, 2000. Recommended Timing and Methodology for Swainson's Hawk Nesting

Surveys in California’s Central Valley. Swainson’s Hawk Technical Advisory Committee,
May 31, 2000.

1 T TS A

SIS | SR P VIS




Th- Mlach

Stanislaus Regional Water Authority Mitigation Monitoring
and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

The following mitigation monitoring and reporting program (MMRP) summary table includes the
mitigation measures identified in the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority’s (SRWA's) Infiltration
Gallery Development and Testing Project initial study/mitigated negative declaration (IS/MND}. For
each mitigation measure, this table identifies monitoring and reporting actions that shall be carried
out and the monitoring schedule. This table also includes a column where responsible parties can
check off monitoring and reporting actions as they are completed.

As lead agency, SRWA will be responsible for ensuring that mitigation measures identified in this
1S/MND are fully implemented. However, some mitigation measures would be implemented by the
contractor(s) on behalf of SRWA. Contract documents for the proposed project will identify the
abligations of the contractor, including relevant mitigation measures. SRWA will require that the
contractor provide SRWA with documentation that it has adequately implemented its contractual
obligations, including applicable mitigation measures.

Thus, in the descriptions of the mitigation measures provided in the table which follows, while SRWA
may be the only party referenced in implementing a mitigation measure (i.e, where the measure
states "SRWA shall”), this is intended to be inclusive of the contractor’s role in implementing certain
mitigation measures during construction or as part of design.

ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS USED IN THIS MIVIRP

CDFG California Department of Fish and Game
CDFW California Department of Fish and Wildlife
CEAT Contractor Environmental Awareness training
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act
CRHR California Register of Historical Resources
dbh diameter at breast height
GHG greenhouse gas
IS/MND initial study/mitigated negative declaration
MLD Most Likely Descendant
MMRP mitigation monitoring and reporting program
NAHC Native American Heritage Commission
NMFS National Marine Fisheries Service
PRC Public Resources Code
SWPPP Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan
TCR tribal cultural resource
USFWS J.5. Fish and Wildlife Service
VELB valley elderberry longhorn beetle
WPT western pond turtle

Infiltration Gallery Testing Project 1 September 2017

IS/MND



aNwn/si

2107 Jequiandss 133l02d Sunisa] AtsjED UOREIHLU|
SABp GT UBY}L $52| Oul seale
UOI3ONJISUOD JO 3934 00T
UOI3INJISUOD ulyam syueld Aueqlap)d *aplaag wioysuoq Alsqap|a
240499 = jo suonedo| Ayuspy Aafjep uo syoeduw} pioay 03 saunseapy Juswaqduu) €014
"Su11531 Jo Jeah
3U1 10} suopuUod (e2180(01g pue 2180j0upAY B4} UC paseq
ysij snieis-|eads Uo s19940 9SISAPE JBIpURISONS Ul Jjnsal
10U [j1m 1eY] poliad YoM e Ajuap! 01 {M4aD) 21IPIM
"0€ Jaquisldes pue ysi4 Jo Juawpedaq eluiolied pue (SAM4SN) 32jAIaS
puEe T aunr usamlag BJIPHM PUE ysid *S'N “(SAAIN) 201A1BS saliaysly aulie
palanpuo ag jouued [BUOIIBN U] Y1im JNSuo? f|eys YAAYS ‘0¢ Jequiaidas
guidind Jje p pouad Sunssl pue T judy ugamiaq palanpuod ag jouued Suidind Je
aaneusale ue Ajiauapl 03 J} “sade)s uswdojanap annIsuas pue uoneldiw Suiumeds
UoINIISUoD M40 PUB ‘SAMASN SHIAIN pluowes yead ploae 0} 0f Jequieldas pue T judy
1049% U3tm JNSLIOD 0] YANHS Lu2IMIaq polad 3iom ayy o1 Aisjed syl Jo BuiBind Jje yuwi|
LOINISUOD 08 Joquaidss pue (18Ys {5)4039R13U02 53} PUB YAAYS ‘2jqISED) JUSIX2 Ay} 0]
guunp T |udy usamiaqg o1 AJs||ed -ysi4 snie3s-jernads
pue 310j3g = 243 Jo Suigand J1e ywi uo speduw| ZIWIUIA puUe ploay 03 SuiBing Jiy anpayds T-018
sazinosay jpaibojorg
paJinbay auop
A3ionp a1y
pasnbay auoN
5324053y A1Sa.404 pun ainiiniLiby
palinbay sUoN
saayisay
SiERIt] a|npayss uonRdyY
pue ajeqg : ainsesi uonesnn
|
uopaduios Sunojvo Suoday pue 3ulioliuo

wesdoid Suiioday pue

BunioyuolN uolesIHN

AllloyIny Ja3ep [euo|SaY snejsiuels




ANW/S!

L107 sequandss 138f01d Bupisay As3||en uonesyu
‘(auswdinba
1910 B ul syedpiued (jeys Bumow Jo Bsn ssajated ySnosyy yieq Aeme Juiddiiis
[2uuosiad UopINIIsuo) ~3'a} sqnuys 3uidawiep ploae 03 WIS AlaqisppP
1218 ALISGIIP(D JO 195 10199 G UIYHMm 1no2o {|im Buimouwt op “paezey iy
S UILIM 330 [ji Sumow aonpad 0} [udy ydnoayl Ajnf woldy inaso Aew Buimopy 3
ON "RJEZEL 241} 9INP3J 03 "15Np dZIWIUIW 0F Huy|
[udy-Ainr o1 Bupmows Juli paads unoy-iad-3||w-gT B JuaWa|dw] pue peOL 559308
Jsnp SZWILIW 341 uo s|eAtaiul 21993..3s Je sduing paads jejsu] "
01 Uduwi 6T 01 spaads *{Suipeojun 3ulnp aseq peod 19Mm
|| pue peot $59208 89} 18np szuuiunL 03 Jauuew e uj pealds pue sqniys
ay3 uo sdwng paads ||eisu) Aisaguopia wolj 199) 00T UBYZ 2J10W SUOCIIRI0| D18a1e)S
(8uipeojun 1€ 2JeNS peod $§59308 2] 0] aseq s1edeidde peojun P
Buunp aseq peol ‘pPeOJ SS2208 3] JO 1994 001
18m “8'8) 1snp azjwujw UiyuMm sgnays Allaguapia paysijgelsa jje jo Adoued ay)
0} JouUUBLW B U} peasds 1o aundup ay3 wouj Jang 1064-0z7 Y PUB JOPLIOD
pue sqnJys Aliagiap|a peOoJ $S3308 3yl Suipnoul ‘S31IAIISE UOIIIMIISU0I
woJj 1934 00T ey sjow guunp papioae aq o3 seaJe ||e Sejj pue ajuaq I
HotRnAstoo mmwn_ mwmmmgmm.mzvmoucn PPer ! eI ?
Buunp (Ajnf-ysie A} uoseas
pue ai0jag "DAOGE PalEe]s @|nd 100} W31 97134 3Y3 pioae 03 Aleniged-1sndny unnp
LOIINIISU) -00T 9Y1 YHM S2UBPIODIE U| sgnays ABgIap|3 Jo 1954 DOT UIYHM JR300 pinom eyl
: punoy aue syueld Alsagqiop|e S2I1AI10E LOIIDNIISUDD 3|NP3YIS ‘Bjqises) JuaXs syl 0l g
210428 2J3Ym sease dej) pue aou4 .
LONONIISHO . . sqniys ssoyy jo Adouea
: a|qIsea) pue ‘swajs ‘aseq ay) 8u)ydesdoioyd Buipnpu ‘seale
210424
juaIxa ay) o) Aienagad U0130N4ISU0D JO 188} 00T ulyum siuejd Ausqlaple
uoIIINIISUOD -1sn8ny Buunp sailanoe 40 UOIHPUOD pUB SUOIIEIO0f aY] 1UBLINIOP ‘UDIIINIISUCD
guung UO[IINIISUOD D NPaYs Bupuswwoo 01 Joud sAep ST UBY1SSI| ON B
HO{IONIISU0D "UOIIINIISUOD isainseald soueploae 1A
210499 Bupuswiwod 03 Jold Buimoj|o) ay3 1uawajdusl jeys (5)1019e13u00 S1 PUB YARYS
steu] afhpayds UORIY
:M““M_Mahnou Suuicliuow Suiioday pue SuL0IIUOA) RINSEIN UaREBRIN

welSolgd Suizioday pue

Bulsonuopy uonediin

Aioyiny fajepn [euoiday snesiuels




anNwy/si

£T07 1aqtudidas 138fodd Buigsa ) Ass||ED uoRRIIU|
pue papaau se adeusis pue 3udusj uteuiely aloud
pasodotd 343 JO $139449 SSI9APE LION} UOIIINIISUOD
- AleSs399U UIYM Jo uonejdwod uodn seaue Jaying 123104d 01 SNURUOY Y
‘paruswiaidul 29 Jim "Payiou 3q [|IM SMISN pue Ajreipaig
syuejd aajeu aleudosdde do3s |jim HI0M ‘panissqo ale sgniys Alaglappe
Yim uoneasdan uo s3oedw 41 "UOIIIPUOD GRIYS AJJD0JDP|D BUILIEXD 0}
-3 PUE jOJ3UG3 UOIS0IR (Anr-yate |y} uosess 143y g13aA 241 Bulnp suaipadsuy)
uoanLIsuad-1sod pue 2115 Apj2am 10npuod |im 1s180jo1g paylienby |
papasu se ageudss pue ie|d Auagaapls Aue JO 1934 00T WIYUM Pasn aq [Im
Sunuay ysnouys pajaajold
jue|d 1504 $1 J0 9)123q 3y} WLt IYBIW JeY] S|EIILIBYD
aq ||Im Sease Jaying . . . )
J3U30 10 ‘51921413434 ‘SIPIDIQISY ‘SIPIZIIBSUI ON I
'panIasqo aJle sqnys .
UGIIINIISUO0I JO UORINP 3Y] 10} PAUIBIUIEW Bq [[IM
Aursguiapie uo soedus . . .
susis ay, , wauosudwl pue ‘sauly ‘uoizndasold 0
3 SMASN 19EIU0D pue . p
eu 1w pue (AN 122[gns aie SI01BJO|A ‘PAPUSWE S8 ‘E/ 6T JO 10V Saldadg
Hom ey |jim pue (Aing palaBuepu3 syi Aq padaloud s| saads siyl "paqanisip
-Ya4eIA) uoseas Wi g13A . ‘
3( 10U IsnW pue ‘s9dads pausiealyy e ‘sj39aq
241 3upinp suolpaadsu)
uwioy3uo| Auagiapls Asjjea sy Jo 1eliqey st eale
81Is Apjj@am 1onpuod .
S/30jo1q paEnb v SIL [, (UONEULIOU BUIMO}|Of DY} YUM B3I JUBPIOAR
lita 35150101q pail! 3y} Jo 28pa ay3 Buoe 129} 0G Alead sudis 1oa13 |y
-juegd Alusqlap|s Aue jo .
sqniys Allaglapie pue g3A d03
1934 00T utyaim jueyd 150y 53INSE3Wr Uo|
1129101d pue asueproae o1sads aaUa9gal
51 40 9))99q ALieg4ap|a sy
[t sueyd 8315 pue suoneaydads Sueauigua ayy
uhiey JyBiw 1ey) sjeasusyd .
) siuawalinbas asayl yum Sulh|dwos Jou oy sapjeuad
JOYI0 JO ‘Su3Z1|1149)
. ) a|qissod ay3 pue sjue|d Asagiape sy BuiSewep
SapI21g4ay ‘SIpIdIIBsUL
PIOAE 0] P32U 3] 31LIIUNWILLOT ||eYs |¥3) ayy jueld
40 9sn ay Ngiyoid
150y Auiaquaps 511 199104d 0] paau syl pue g13A 2yl
‘E2J4e 3JUEPIOAR 3] 10 SNIRIS Y3 INOGE SMBID YoM 1INIISHI [|IM 13D Syt
Jo a3pa a3 Buoje 193y 05 (LyaD) Bululed | SsauUalemy [BIUSUILICIIAUT J0IIRIIU0D
Aonas pajrals aq ||eys sudis e ul a1edidipted ||eys puuostad uononisuoy 8
stenitl ajnpayas uonsy
pue a3eq : ainsea|a] ucnedIAl
| SBunysoda i R
uonaidwo ULIOHUOA 114oday pue Suriojiuopw

wesSolid Buloday pue

duioyuoly uopeBIN

Aloyiny Ja1ep [eUOI3aY Snejsiurlg




aN/s

2102 Jequiaidas 122f0.44 Bunisay AsjjeD uoEI L
-33}is B UO paseq Jaynq
aAljeuIRljE Ue AJijuapl
Aew js|3ojolqg pai|end
‘padps|j aaey
SunoA |;3un pauleluiELl
aq ||Im sJayng asay
‘punoi aie spJiq Suiisau Jl
51S9U punole paysi|qe1sa ‘|emAdns 1o} aied [ejuaded Jo 1sau sy uodn jueysa 198uo|
aq jjim sauliassed palsy| ou pue apgow Ajjng aJe s3ulj8paj) |UN Jagng 3yl UIYUm
-Uou J10J Jayng ¥-00T 2IUDWIWIOD JOU {BUS HIOM ‘MICD YIIM UCIIBINSUOD U} puB
e pue saulassed sniels uolien|eaa 31J13ads-21is & UO PBSE] JBJIN( SAIIBLID]|E UB
-|etoads pue sioxdes palsy| Ajiuspl Aeuws 1s180101q payijenb v ‘saurtassed paysi[-uou oy
-uou Jo) Jayng Y-00€ 1929} Q0T pue sauuassed snieis-|e1aads pue sioldes pais)|
511990 138U0] 10 -UouU 10§ 128} QD€ 218 syIpim Jayng aendolddy "padpayy
$439M 7 JO JIOM P31E[S 3ABY BunoA Byl |pun uw:_mﬁ.:mE pue 1saU ay) punoie
-1o8foud u asde| e i uieSe paysigelss aq {|eys Ja4ng e ‘punoy aJe spJiq Supsau J|
UOoIIONASUDD pa3anpuos aq ||Im Asalng ‘paIBIluIRI 3G Ued
alojag - 3dom 138{04d B10jaq Pa3INPUCD 24 [|BYS ASAINS Pasnioy
WoANNSUOD 1sn3ny pue ¢T Asengad ‘_mﬁo_\“m .mmhMu“o h.mm:o_ LM mvmmmm__s rdl 8 vm._osm pa1e|as-18foud
Bulnp UoamIaq Uidaq saniAne Hwﬂsm _E_M.M_ mw_wu.““ MMQMWMMM ”M“_M_“m_mmwv_ﬂm_ﬁ; Nm._(__“r_h__dﬁ
pue alojag BUIGINISIP-PUNCIZ e ‘T¢ uw“:m:d.‘ pue T Azenugaq cmm>.>um_n_ wamw.&_EoU
UGINIISUCH 40 Bulieap uopejasan $313lal30e BulgLnisip-punoJdd Jo Suues|d uoeasan y
: 3 uels juom 03 Jolud E : ’ : :
31099
S3IIM 7 UIyIM Aaalns *SaInsesap
LOJ1INIISUOD paiq Burjssu e 1onpuod asueploay Juswadw| pue T¢ 1snSny pue T Adeniga4
alosag 1Ieys 1s13o0jo1g paiyjeny U29M19q IO/ 10) SABAING paig Sunsan 1anpuoc) £-0ld
‘Aiessaoau
usym ‘syuejd aaneu ajelsdosdde ym uonelagan
-1 pue {0J3U0D UQ|5043 uoNIIsUod-1sed Juswa|duy
SIeRIUL a|npayds uoHIY 3
:WMM_MHMU Suniojuopy Sunsoday pue Sulouuoy SINSEIN UORERIA

weJsdoid Suiseday pue

Aupojuop uonednn

Ayloyiny saiep |euoiBay snejsiuels




aNIN/SI

10T Jlequiaidas 1alold Bunisa) Alajien uonesjyu)
P3|]149) pUE 5|00} puey SuISn PRIBABIXD 3( {|BYS SMOLING
198} 09T pue ‘uoseas ‘alqIsea) 219U "SaINANDE Buignisip-punold Aue alojaq
Buipsalq ay3 Suunp SMOLING Wol) Palledap sARY 5|MO 1B ULIBUOD 03 Yaam
193} 959 JO WnuAuiW T 104 Ajiep palojuow ag ||eys BaJE YJOM I ‘SSOURIJUD
B y3m smoung paidnooo MOMINg Ul s1oop Aem-auo SuljjeIsul Ag UOINIISUOD
pungcie paysljqeisa 10 193) 09T UIYHM SMOLING W01} PAapN|Ixa g ued s|mp
3q ||eys siayng ‘punoy ‘pauawaduw aq Aew senbiuyos) uopeao|as salssed {1g
aJe s|mQ Suimonng i 1sn3ny y3noayl T Auenigagd) uoseas Builsau syl Jo apisIng
: snsny yanod
ucHRINLSUCT TA mahwwv“commwmsmczmww 3 .commmm dulpa3.q-uou
SuLng 341 SULINp PaPIOAE 3G 2yl Buunp {s1a3aWw QOT) 1994 09T pue ‘uosess Suipaslg
) . 31 uLinp (51938W Q0Z) 1994 959 JO WnWILW e 3q ||BYs
uopanisuod lIEYs 'paRaalap 4l 'sMmoling SMO1ING PaIENI20 punole s1ayng (ZT0Z ©4aD) vorpbiiny
21042 Aue 03 soueqinisig MO BuimoLing uo Loday ffo1s syt ul papiaosd soueping
UOIINIISUOD ‘sAanins uop3onisucoiald UM 20uepIode Ul smoling pa1dnaso punole paysygels?
al0jog 131)e sAep o€ aq (|eys stayng (1€ Isn8ny ysnouyy T Aenigad)
UEY] 240w Jo) papuadsns uoseas Fulisau ayl Buling PIPIDAE 24 [feYS SMOLIng 01
uoipn.AsUo3 10 pake|ap aie sanADe 22ueCIN]SIp ‘pa1daIap aik MO Suimo.ing J] ‘pakaninsal
Buung Suiginisip-punoJg 24 |[BYs a}s 8u3 ‘sAaains uoinsuodsld ayy Jaye
UOIINIISUOD 41 suopad 3q {|Im sAaaing sAep Qg uely) 240w Joj papuadsns Jo pakejap aie sajiAIe
CYTIET (uoISIaA Bulgunisip-punoJd ji “(UoISIOA JUaLIND 40 ZTOZ [94aD]
LOI32N1SU0D U840 40 ZTOZ 944D) mrwmw PUE Ysld 40 yﬂmEtmamm BULLIOJIeD) UORDBLIA MO
8uung woRDBRIN MO BuimoLng umoding uo Loday ffb1s syl ul paysijgelss sjosoyold
: 4o 1oday ffors o YLM 2IUERIOIIE U] PIIDNPUO2 3] [feys s|Mm Suimoling
U0{3oNJIsuod 1o} sAeAins ‘sapiafse Buigdnisip-punoas Supeiul aloeg
uj paysijqesa sjosolold
9405°d YHM 2IUBPIOITE U] S|MO simO Suimoaing uo syedwf aZIWIUIA JO PIOAY
UC[INAISUOD Buimouing Joj shanuns 0} sanbiuyda] UoIEIODY SAINIY 10 3AISSEd JusWI|dw|
alojaq uonanIsuol-aad Jonpuo) pue ‘s1ayng ysijgeisy ‘shoains |mo Suimolding 3onpuoc) 019
‘MJQD Yim uoieIfnsuod
Ul puB Uoen[eAs Jylaads
SieRll apnpayos uondy 3
:MMM#MHMU Sunioyuopny Sunuoday pue Supojiuop SINSEIIN UOREIRIN

weJsSoid Suipoday pue

Suponuop uoneRINN

Auoyiny Ja3ep [euoiSay snejsiuels




ANW/SI

LT0T Jaquisdas 19foid Sunsa) Aia|jen voneyu|

Jo uoleals
MOLING MBU 553558
o1 uejd Juswafeuew
pue Bunojuow Wswsiduw|
‘uoseas u|pasig-uou
unp papioae 2g 1ouued
smo.LIng paidnodo I SiMo
2y3 Jo aduel |estadsip ayl
uiyim Je3lqey juadelpe
ue u} pue senbiuyoal
uojedI0[as anissed
JO uoejuawa|du a10jeq
Joam auo uones TiT
212 PIUEYUI 10 pateals
aq ||eys SMoLING MaN
‘uonednadoal uaaaad

0} pa|jijaJ pue sjoo] puey "MdQ2

Buisn pajeaedxa aq |[eyYs 1o |eacidde sy1 01 199[gns ‘UoizeSnIW 3yl JO SSIUIAIJOBYD

SMOLING ‘B[AISE) AIDYM ay] ssasse 0] pajuaa|dw) 5q |jeys ue|d Juswedeusw

ue Suliojiuows e ‘pa
-saUBLUS P Ble31] pa1ea4d 10 pasUBYUS St 1BHGEY
MO Buimoling J 's|mo ay) Jo aBuel |esI1adsip yl UIyIm
moJing ul pajeisul ale ,

1e31gey Juade(pe ul ‘sanbiuyda) uonedo|as aassed Jo
si00p Aem-auo Ji Sel|AI0E

uoijeIuaB|dwy 210§9q }29M JUO DOIIEL T:T B 1B Pa3UBYUD

Buiqunisip-punous i
10 pajeaJss aq ||eys SMoLIng mau ‘uoseas Suipaaly
Aue 3.043q smo.ing -uou 3y} SULINp PSpIoAe 2 JOULEBD SMOLINg paidniao

wiol} payedap sAeY SiMo MNP PPl q apat i
2U3 LWLIJUOD 03 ¥33M T 40

eyl Wiy 1 1404 "MoLINg
Ajlep eaue jJom JOHUOY

3Y1 apisul s|ewiue Aue 10J 3InoJ adesss ue ulelulew

‘uoseas 01 uoljeAedXa SULIND SjBUUNT 3Y) ojul panasul 34 ||BysS

duipaslg-uou ay3 Suunp adid an3se|d a)qIxa|; 10 SUGIIIBS ‘uojiednddoad Juasaud 0y

sierl a|npayss uonIy
pue a3ed m:_:wu_“o_z Sunitoday Lm Suntoniuoy snseay uonesnIN
uonadwo) 1o} ! p 1103

weiBoig Supoday pue

Supojuoy uoeSaIN

Ajloyiny Jo1epn eUOIERY SNE|SIURLS




ANIN/SI

£10Z Jequuaydag 13lold Bunisat Aajes LORBL]
340)ag SINOY 7 PUE 210)3q
sAep +T 15130|01q payljenb *BJNL PUOd UISISBAA U0 s1aedw] BZIUIUNAS
uol312NJ3su0d Ag paianpuos aq jjeys 10 pIOAY 0] SRINSEBA Jatua|dul; pue ‘sisap punote
240499 = SABAINS UOIINNSUODald siajng ysijge1sy ‘SASAING UOHIINIISHOIB1d 3ONPUO)) 9-0ld
‘|eAlAdns Jof aied [elualed
10 158U 2yl uo JuelaJ J28uoj ou ale pue paspay} aney
'Pa8p3iy gunod ayz 1ey3 pauuislap sey 1s18ojo1q payljienb e (1un
aneY Bunod a3 Jeyy pauleluiew 2q |{BYsS stang "AHAIIIE UBLINY PUR 3Si0U O
pau|L4a31ap sey 151801019 . .
S[aAB| aulfeseq pue ‘Alouial BuiBelo) jo suonedo] qysiay
paiyjenb |13un paulejuew .
159U ‘Aydes3odos Jo uolleraBaa Aq papinoad siayng
Sq lIels siajng |ednieu jo asuasasd syl apn|pul azis Jayng Suluiuaiep
UOIPNASUOD uaym paJspisuod ag o0} 5103084 ‘sioldes Bupisau uo syedu)
A paroaye Ajasianpe 1o PIOAE 03 JUBPIYNS B4 {|IM SISHN I3]|eWs 18yl SBUILLISISP
paidnusip ag o1 AjayI) 1ou 1st3ojotq payijenb e ssajun 1834 00S 24 1M sisau
5| Buipasuqg 18y} 24nsul BAI1DE pUNOIE 513)iNg "uolianisuco Ag pajoaye Ajsianpe
03 JUBIDILNS BJE JBL) S1SBU Jo paydrusip a¢ 03 A|9yY 10U 51 Buipaaiq 18y} ainsua
BAI2E PUNOJE PBUSHGR1S 01 JUBI21}4nS B4e JBY] S153U DAIIDE PUNOJE PIYSI|QRIS
34 [jeys siang ag [jeys siayng ‘patasiap a4e a1 pPa|Iel-aliyAA JO YMEH
aliw-5'0 ‘paroalap ale 5, uosulems FUNSSY J| "eale UOHIIMIISU0D Y] pUnoJe snipel
uoRnisUe Y PaYILI-2UYAA 20 YMmEN 100J-00S WNWIUILE B J2AQY [|IM SADAING *PRIINPUOD 3q
3ulng s,uosulemg Sunsau §| I[eYs a1y Pa|Iel-allyM pue JmeH 5 uosuiems 4oy sAamnins
Uo[oN1ISUCD “T€ 15N8NY pue T ‘T€ 1SNBEny pue T AJengad uUasmlag SIN2J0 UOIINHISU0D §
210898 ® | fienigeq usamiaq sinaoo ’ -
g=4 12q a1y pajlel-auym
UO(IPNIISUOD UOR2NIISUCD JI PJNPUOD pue jymeH s,uosuiems uo speduw) aZiwiEg 10 pIOAY
21099 = 2q ||eys sAsaing 01 s1ayng ysijgels3 pue shaaing Jjoydey Bugisen onpuo)d 5-0ld
"MA @) Jo jeacidde
03 1oa[gns ‘uoediw
uoiejuaaduwi
SIER a|npayos uonay
:MMM_MHMU Sunonuop Sunproday pue Sulojiuciy BINSEIA UOREBRIA

wexdoid Suipsoday pue
Surio)uolN Uo[1eSINA

Apoyiny Jaiepm |euoi8ay snejsiuels




aNIN/SI

/107 faquiaidss 1afoid Bunssl Asajjes uoneyug
Aanuns ay) -uoseas Ajuialew Sulnp sjeq Jo UoKIalap
9ziWXew 03 ST Ajnr pue T Ael usamiaq 1si8ojolq jeq
ushPNRSUO3 -(uoseas Ayulatew) paiyienb e Ag paonpuos aq jjeys Asans uooniisuodad v
s10j34 ST Anf pue T AejA} U9amiaq ‘sjeq
UoRINISUC shanuns 3anpuod o} istdojolq snjejs-|epads uo spoedwif ZIWIUNA] JO PIOAY 0 SOINSEIN]
840429 leq pajjjjenb e uelay Juawa|dw| pue SASAINS UCIIINIISUOIBL] JINPUC) L-019
‘Is130|0lq paylienb
e Aq aAl1oeUl pawsap S| 158U 33 0 158l a3 wol) padiaws
aaey s3ujjyoley HIUN BBJIE UOISN|IX3 AY) U} 0USUILOD
0] pamojfe aq 10U |im uonanIIsuo) Suisusy Aelodwa
Ylim paniew Apea|D aq ||im Ss1agng RIUBgnIsp |enuajod
JO seale Aue pue ]sau al) usamlaq paysHqeiss ag |jeys
Jaynq sdoueqINISIP-OU 100J-05 B ‘SABAINS UoIdNIsucIald
FuUNP BSJE HI0M 3] Ul PAIJIIUSPL S11S3U LdM e d|
"153U DAIIOR B3 "$3}14n3 JO UoNE30B. pue ainided ayy Sulzlioyine
punoJe 1ayng soueqInIsp MJQD Wwoly BuipuelsIapun JO WNPUBIOWSLL PieA &
-0U 100}-05 & YsIjqelsd ssassod (|eys 1580|oiq ay3 ‘s2pInl @Acw 03 palyjienb aq o]
‘{1sn3ny o1 yoie) "alis 108fo.id BY1 JO WENSUMOD 10 Wesl)sdn AjPieIpawi)
‘BuiAanins uoldniysucodald 1eligey a|qelns ol Aem s, LUiey Jo Ino 15180|01q paylenb
Bupnp eale yJom Yy Ul 91 Ag pa1e20|8d BY [|IM JO UOIH|OA UMO 1ISU) UO 3AER| 0]
polIUDpP! 18 §1SBU DAIDE §| P2MO||E 3q ||IM B2JR UCIINIISUOD BY UIYHM PUNSY S1dM
*BBJE UGIIINIISUOD . .
SU1 UM pUnoy pajuswajdui ag (|eys sainsesw Buimo||o; ay3 ‘shanins
s Loijongsuodald uLnp paslasqo aue S153U 4133 0 S1dM
uoI3INIISUO3 59[34n1 Aue 91BD034 pUE . .
41 "{spuejdn jusde[pe pue ‘spue|lam JuUaBiswa Jalemysal)
EeICT] ainides o} uonezioyine f .
108 A3 1BIUOD seale uetledi “2°|) SISIXS 1E1ICEY S|GEUNS SIYM
UO[INIISUOD SBILIAIIDE UONINASUOD JO LTS DU 34043 SIN0Y 7 pue
8ulmnp 'S3|}AI0R a40jaq sAep T 15180|01q payljenb e Aq pajonpuod ag jjeys
pue a10)ag UOI1ONJISU0D JO 1ie)S U} {LdM) 3jan1 puod uIaIsapn 104 SARAINS UORINIISUOIIY
sjenu
a|npayds uonoy
pue sieq Sunioyuoy Sunuoday pue Suploluo Banseaiy uoResIN
uenajduwon S : o

weldold Bunioday pue

Suuioyuo vonesinn

Rloyiny 1s1ep 1euo|Say snesiuels




anNn/st

10z J3quiaydas 109f0ud Buiisa] As|jRS uone)|iul
"siedh g Jaye sSunue|d Apoom
40 jealauns 1u2243d G9 JO WINWIUW & SUNSUS 0] pPRJojjuow
pue pauleuiew aq j|eys seale peiadanay Jaleals pue
‘sieah £ Jaye sSujueid ygp sayoul $ JO 9311 BAIlEU J0J TIE 0} BSEBI3UI ||IM O1el
Apoom Jo |eaiains S|yl ‘onles T:T e 1e pase|das aq |[eys AHAII0E UOIIINIISUO)
946G JO WINWILIW B 3INsua 10 J|nNsaJ Se panowail 1o padewep ale Jey} Jaleaus Jo
0] sea.e pajelaBanal {ugp) wB1eYy iseR1q 1B i3)BWEIp SBYIU] {7 JO sadads Apoom
JOUOL pUB uleIuIeA aAlleu Jo syuepd Auy "spaem aAjjEU-UOU 1O JUBWYIROIZUD
- 1usnbasgns J1wi| o3 sa1neds saneu syeudoidde
o 10 4GP S3YIUI Y7 40 5334 -9}s Ulim peleladanal aq jjeys uoljelaSan aaljeu Jo seale
RANIISU0D : UIL1IM S|10S pg4n]sIp ‘Lo1oniisuod 3o uonedwod uodn
oYY . BAI}RY JOJ OIE TIE B pUR
‘ol3ed T:7 € 1k paoejdal 9q *uoIINIISu0)
uolINAsuo3 [[iW Ugp sayoul ¢ Jo sjued Suunp pagqinisig SeRIUNWIWIO) [eINJEN DAILISUIS
13YY = sappads Apoom aaieN pue 1e1qey uenediy uiyum uoneiasanay Juswajdw) 8-01d
"JUBWUOPUEQE }S004
S5NE3 10U PINOM 1BY] [BAI] B 0F DIUBGJNISIP 33 Ziwiuiw
‘uoseas
{{m 1241 151801010 Jq payyljenb e Ag padojaaap sainsesw
Ayuwiziew 3uunp adpug ays .
: 42430 Jo ‘uoilanssuol Jo (s} eah ays Sunp (ST AInT-T Ae)
Japun AjaIlae HojdNIISUOD
U0seas Alluialeus oyl 03 Jolid aus 15004 9Y31 WOy S1eq
DZIUILW 1BpR|DUL SBUNSEBW i
Bulpnpoxa ‘uoseas AlulaeWw a1 Bunp 38pLig 2w Japun
asay} "pajuswaidw e
{2144e41 3onu3 Buipnput) Avianoe BoRINIIsSUY Fuiziuuw
(£-019 2insediy uolesIA
apn[out Aew saInseaw Yyang “3soo.t ay) uo sypedu)
ug paysigelsa) 1scol
aziwijuiw 03 paruswa|dw) pue padojBAap a4 (|IM S2INSEAW
ay] uo spedul ZIWuIW . .
213199ds usy) ‘uononAsuod Aq paldaye ag Aew pue ‘15004
0} SRUNSEDW 1BY] 3UNSUl A . .
, JlUI21eW JEq B SE ‘pasn ag 0] Ajax)| st 4o ‘pasn Buag
paidna30 9Je SBUN1NLS i .
s1 a8plq 3y] 1ey) saulwielap 1s180|01q 18q 8yl §| "Asans
UOHIaNJISUCD "agpug 23u3diaws /15004 JySiu e pue (spunos Jo ‘s|laws ‘Buiuiels
Sulnp peoy 1239 Jo sAsAaINs ‘ouen3 ‘Aouednaoo 88} Bsn 1eq Jo suolied|pul 40} 8pLg
pue aJojeg = | 1oNpuoDd [jeYs Jsidojolq 3eq 3y} adsuy 01 ABAINns uep)sapad awilAep e JO 1SISU0D ||BYS
sjefiu]
Bnpayds uondy
Pue a1eq Sunoyuo Sunsoday pue 3uloyiuoy a.nseai uone3nIN
uonajdwod e i} P T

wesdosd Bunodey pue

Surionuopy UoHESIIN

Ajuoyiny Jsiep |euctSay sne(siuels




anNw/si

/107 Jequimrdag 19{0ld Junisa) A1si|eD uoReAIUl
3 ‘590143 URILIDWY DAIIEN PUB YAMYS UM UOIIRNSUOD Ul
pado|anap ag |pm saunseaw uonesiniw (3)z €801z uonIss
ssulepino (YD3ID) 10V Alijend) |ElUaWUOIIAUT BIULOHED
81815 10 T'HZ05 UDn9as (DYd) 20D $221n0say dljqnd
P W pauiiuapl eualus ANjIqISIS ay) 123W $32IN0sA Ay}
UOIONIISU0 BI0JAY 10 Aue | "ojenidoadde se ‘Aiolsty jeanjaanyaue 10 ‘AJO3siy
$3qLI1 UBDLIBULY SAEN pUE ‘ASojoaeyole u| spiepuels jeuolssajold s Jouau| Ayl
YARYS YIM UCIIEFNSLOD Uf 40 AIB12123S 'S YT 193W OUM S[ENPIAIPUI AG paI2npuos
padojeAsp aq jjim saInsesw 3( J{BYS SUOIIEN|BAS 82UN0SaY "HHYD Y3 Ul Uoisnjul
uoReSILL ‘PBIBAcIUN Joy Aniqidije so) palen|eas aq |jeys ays 1oaload ayy uigim
3. $924n0531 [2INYND Jj Uo11aN135U02 SULINp PaJIA0IUN $92IN0SAI [BINYND Y
"(Q)y9ZTST UoHIeS "PAINEIIOI 2 [[BYS YAYS pue
saulfPpInD YDID 31l 199} 0§ 15E9] 18 JO SNIPeJ € UIYIIM PUE pulj 3U] JO UOHREO0|
Y31 JUD3SISUOD SaJnseall ay) 18 A|3jeIpaww) papuadsns aq [jeys JJOM SaI3IANIe
uoiedipw Juswaidul uoRINASUoI 19load pasodoid Supinp palajuncous
‘enayliz AjljigiBye 19aw 24 ‘SUlBLWD] [EIN)IDHYIIE IO ‘SUIBWDI UBLLNY S1IBIIE BID
$82.UNn0sal paJarodun -2110351Y ‘SI0BHME BUOIS PUNOIF 10 payel} ‘||2Ys 10 3Ucq Jo
suoIIEN|EAD SILNOLLE |[BNSNUN ‘S21Nn1ea) [e4ndonJtis Sujpn|ou ‘saainosal
UOINIISUOD 334N0S31 19NPUOD jeany|n2 Aue Jj "sjeliajewl |e3S0|03RYIIL PALING JIA0OUN
uung 0] spJepuUE]S S, J01I3IU| BY) 03} jeljuar0d ay) sey (peos ssaooe ay) “8'3) sajivey wefold
j0 ABJ2I23S 'S'T 93 S390W pasododd ay1 Jo SWOS JO UOIDNIISUCD ‘YNSaU B S "9IBLINS
uoRoNIsuUo3 OUM [ENPIAIPUL paiyI(enb PUN0JS 2Y1 UO JYQISIA BB SBOINOSBI |BIMNS [ 10N
Buping e Ule1ad ‘pasanoaun
UoRINIISUOD 2Je $22IN0S3J [BINYND §| 'sadunosay qI8l3 J0) saunsesiy
SuLIng . uonedN sepdoiddy Juswaldw) pue ‘Axiqisia (YHYD)
pajajunoiua aJe sasinosal $304N0SIY |EINOISIH JO 13SIFBY BIUIOJI[ED JO) S3DIN0SAY
UoIPNIISUOD [B4n3 N2 Al JUBAS ay) ul JEANYND PIYIIUBP] || SIENJEAT ‘PRIBA0ISIQ SIY
duung SIUALOE UOIINLISUOD J el S32IN0S3Y |eININD i A|DIRIPSLILY UOLINIISUOT puadshns T-4J
53240053y [DININD
sjeniuj
ajnpayas uonasy
pue a3eq Sulioyuon Buytoday pue Sulioiuol B.nseaiy uoneS
uopia|dwod e : e

wedsdoid Bunuoday pue

Supojuoly uoREBIN

Ayoyiny 1aiep jeuoiday snejsiuels




ANI/SI

LT0Z Jaquiaidas 71 19014 Funsa) Aso||eD UL
[13UN BUWASS1 JOU [{BUS YI0M “YMHS Y1im LOIIeYNSUoD Ul
pue {010z ABo|01uoa|Rd S3BIGDIIBA JO A191D0S) S804n0say
*SBLUNSL HJOM (pa1Bojojuoalbg 01 syaoduif asianpy fo uonpBIIN
910Ja0 YMYS W04y palinbad PUD JUBLWISS3SSY 8y 10f SaInpadold piopunis ay)
3G | UOHEBZIIOYINY = | 10 s3UlfapIng 2yl 8uimoljo) ‘ueid justuieas) e dojaasp ||eys
-3|qIse3} 30U 5| BaUEPIOAE 1s130j03u03|Ed SU3 ‘D|CISEDL JOU 51 DDUEPIOAR §] "' 9ZTST
J1uejd Juswiea; e uoR23S SaUIRPPINGD YD) 218§ pue Z'gROTT uoiliag
dofeasp jleys 15150]01U03[ey Jdd YHM 3oUBRpLODOE Ul pajuswiaidull g ||eYs uoiieSiw
‘821nosa+ |edi8ojojucaled anbjun e afewep pjnod 1afosd
‘payuawaidul pasodoad ay3 18yl pauwiialap s Ui Jl {010z ASojoluoaied
34 ||eys uonedniw 9121q3LIaA J0 A191008) sa2unosay (poibojojucapg
‘@2unosal |edjSojojuoajed 03 s12pdw 3s13ApY fo LUOIIDBINIAI PUD JUAWSSISSY
anbjun e 0} agewep 3yl 10f $31nPa30id pIopUnIS Ul pauyap se “1s18ojojuoajed
9s5ne3 0] pauillialap payljenb e Ag paienjeas aq ||8Ys UOIINIISUOD
51309(0.d pasodosd oYy §| = Sulinp ssaunosal jeaiSojojuoaled Jo Atanoasip Auy
*AIan02sIp
ay3 salen|eAs 1s150|01u0aed ‘PRLIOU B4 |[BYS YMYS
paiyienb 1eyy a1nsu3 m pue ‘91s ay3 103304d 0] papasu 1USIKS IYI 03 20 ‘2US
Aloacosip 3yl JO 1984 08 UIYNM AjSieipatuw] papuadsns
YMUS 30 {|EUS J40M ‘UOIIINIISUGCI BULIND PaJSA0ISIp ale
uonanJIsued Anou pue ‘ays 3ya 131040 | 15515101 eiBojozucajed Jo sway Aue J) "39ens punois ayy
suung = 03 Popasli 3Ua3xa a3 03 U B[GISIA A[1IESSTI2U J0U 24E S20IN0S3J |BDIS0[0IU0B|EY
1O ‘a1 AJDADISIP 40 193} 0§

LOIoNJISUDD
" suun q s UILIM S30IARE cw_uuzbmcﬁ Aressadap se saunseay
) HEY "paianossip uoneSnA feudoaddy 3uswsjdwi pue ‘sadinosay ayl
UoINIISU0D st wall |eo1dojojucaled J0 d3uedyuBis ayU) IEN|RAT ‘PIIIA0ISK] AIY 522IN0SAY

o1dold = BIUDA3 BUI U « je2150101u05 e J1 Aj9IRIPIWIL] UOIIINISUO) puadsng T8
"sawnsal
uoNIIsSUd arojaq (gl 9z TST UOIIIaS SaL1aping yoID
21215 Y3im asuepLtodde u pajuswa|dw pue ‘aieudoidde
SIenit ajnpayds uonaIy
:M“M_MWMU Surioyuowy 3unsoday pue SuliojuoN Bansesi uonesI

weidoud Buipoday pue

Sunojuop voneAN

Auoyiny Jalep [euoiSay snesiuels



ANIN/SI

£107 Jaquimydas 13fold Buiysa; Aajen uonen|u|
3padsais pue AJuSip yym pajeas] pue uonelo| paysaiold
€ 0] PaAOLLRL ade sulellal syl eyl alnsua 01 QTN syl Yum
HJOM ({BYS 22UBISapP S1 0 YAYS Spood aaeig paleosse
Aue pue sujewal a3 Jo uoisodsip pue Juswileas
paainbes asodoud pue 2315 ayl 12adsu| 03 sinoy gy I1se9| 18
SI QTN Ym uoeIadoo) aney jeys (HHYN) uoissiwwo) 2881148 uedLIBWY SAEN
ay) Aq pajeusisap Q1IN 9YL “{QIN) 3uspuaosag AN
"Spo03 aAeJ3 pajeloosse IS0 & Ay3uapi ([2US JHYN 2U3 ‘86°£605 UORDDS 9p0D 's3y
Aue pue sulewsJ sy} jo ‘qnd o suoisiaatd ayl yum aauepioase U -{[3]osos voidas
uonisodsip pue Juawieasy ap07) Alajes pue Yyl es) uorieuiwiaisp 1ey) Supew
asodoud pue 3315 a3 10 sunoy fz ulyim suoyd Ag JHYN aU3 1983U0D IshL
adsu; 03 sunoy gy 1589 18 3YS JO 3y ‘UBILISWIY SAIIEN € JO B50U] BJE SulRwat 9y}
uaais pue payliou aq jleys 141 Sauiwlalap Jauos0] 243 i ([qls 050 uotoas apod
uosiad siy3 Yyoiym uodn Ayajes pue yijeaH) spue| 21e1s Jo 31eALd uo AUDAOISIP
HOMINIISUCD ‘AN B AJIIUSPI {BYS DHYN £ J0 axjou UIAl933J JO SN0 8 UIYLM SUIBLISS UBLLNY
! Suung “UOIRUILLIISP 10 $91J8A025)P [je aupLeEXa 01 palinbaJ st suouo) ay)
O139NJ3SU03 1e43 Supjetu Jo sunoy ‘paliiou ag {jeys Jauoto) AJunoD) syl pue suIews] 3y} Jo
o || e suoud i or | 139 00T 9 s ¢ o sl s
: 341 10BIUOD JSHW BYS 10 BY : : :
UOIIINIISUOI ‘UedlIBY SAIEN B 1O 35043 'P3MO0]|0} 37 |{eys 9pO) Adjes pUE yjeaH ejuioled
Suung 3. SUBWIBI PRISAODSID §| 21 JO §°050/ UOI13096 Jo sIuawWRiNnbal 3y3 ‘seRIAIe
UOHINIISUOS BULINP PRJSACISIP BJE SUIBLUSL UBWINY }|
suoljedizads *19U0107) AJUng)
pue sueld 2Y1 39BIU02 PUR YJoM J|BY -3po) A1ajeS pUE I3jeaH ejuLoj|e)
jo uopeseda.d ‘P3JB3UNODUS 3.8 sulBWRd ay3 j0 suolisincld ajqedlddy Juawajdwy pue pasanoIsiq
8uung UBLLNY JBY] JusA9 343 Y| 3JY SUIBLISY UBWINY JI AJSIEIPAWIL] UOPISNIISUO]) JeH 4
‘patuswajduwy ale 1s18o0j0ju0aed
paljlfenb ayj wioJj paAlS03) SUOIIEPUALILLIOIA
Aue pUB YAYS W) PRAIRIAI S| UCIIRZIIOUINE
v.u”m“w“_n SInPatds Honav ainseay uonesSimA
uonajdwion Suliopuoins Sunnioday pue Suliojiuoly

weJtdoud Bujnioday pue
Suponuoiy uonedin

Risoyany Jajepn [euo|8oy snejsiuels




L10Z J3quisidss

T

anN/st

139f0.d Buisa Aagjes uonen|yu)|

LOIIINIISUoD
21094 «

UOI32NI35U02
21038 =

LOI1aNIISU0D
210499 =

UOIDNLSLOD
210499 =

UoI1NIISU0D
8ulinp pue 510)39 »

LO|J2N43SU0D
Supng «

UOINIISUOD
3UUNG w

LOI3oNIISU0D

Suppoesy pue Buiptodsal
104 ssao4d dojanag

*‘$21N$0}2 aue| pue
‘sInOaP ‘sSSP Jolew Jo
Sujwiy Buipiedal jsuuosiad
Ala4Es 21|gnd pue siaumo
Auadoud Juaze(pe AjioN

*sJo88e|) |013u0d
Jl44eJ] J0) PIOU 1BN[BAT

*53INSeaL
|osu02 o1yjeu) Juawa|dw)

‘SIUBWNJ0P
12RO BY] Uy paplodad
24 [1IM 53IN0J |NeY paiuap

‘UOIIINIISHOD
Sunp pajuswa|dw)
51 ue|d Judwaseuey
J1JJBJ} UOIIINIISUDD

pue sduy ypnay Jolew jo Bulnpayos Sulpnjpul
‘sainseall 043400 el sasusyaldwod uswadl] .

"SIUALUNIOP JDRIIUOD BY] Ul PAPI0IBI 3] [|IM

S2IN0J [NEY payiuap) ‘A1a4es pue ‘UoiReINaAY d1ylel)

ueLnsapad pue fejnajyan uo syedidl azituiu 03

pauSisap aq [jim SRIN0J PayIIUapPI 2] “speod Agieau

U0 J13JE1) B(IGOWIOINE PUE YIN4) UIIMIS] SI0IYUOD
1LY 03 S3IN0J [NeY %oNJ} UOHONISUOI AJIURP]  w

salnseaw BuImoljos syl ‘o3

paliuy| 8q 10U ||IM INg ‘@pnjaut |[eys uejd sy UOHINIISUDD
Suunp pajuawsajdui s) uejd Ul 18y DINSUS ||BYS
{4030E23U0D UGIIINIISUOD BYY JO) YANYS “AIUNOY) Sne|sIuelS
Ylim pajeulpiood aq |{eys ueld siyy jo uoieluaiuadu
pue Wwawdo|aaag ‘siepuodsas AdusBiowa 10 SS3I3E
fenbape ainsua pue spaezey Alayes a14el [epuaod
2INpaJ 0] se jjom se ‘suejd asuodsad AsuaBiowa (edo)
Ylm 2ouaJajsalul [eluslod sanpad o) ueld Juswafeuew
J1JjeJ] UOINIISUOD e usWwsjdw pue aledaud

J019BIIUOD UO{IDNJISUOD BY) JeY) a1inbal ||2ys YAYS

‘ue|d Juawadeueipn

Suung » BU3 1BU3 9INSUD J|IM YAAYS = J1jjed] UOIINIISUO) B Juswsjdwy pue asedasd | T-SNVYL
SIDLIDIDIAI SNOPIDZDH PUD SPIDZD

paJdinbay auopn
. SUOISSILUT SPD) 3SNOYUSID

paJsinbay auop
sjjos pup Abojoan

sjepiu
uonajdwod B * M

weidold Suioday pue
BuLOJuOIN uoIeBIIN

Ajloyiny 1a1epn [euo|Say snejsiuels




anIn/st
L7107 Jaquaidass 51 18fosd Bunsal Asaj|es uonesyyu

|im seale 9del0)s/3ndels

1eY3 suonedyoads ‘uonepunu|
uoloNLsuod pue s3ujmesp Ui 03 Palgng sealy azuauIp pue ‘ulejdpooly
210424 = uoINASUCI-UL BPIADIY = ays jo apisinQ sealy aeloys pue Suifeys ayeaoq | T-OHAAH

Auponpy 431000 pup AbojoipAy

*UORIPUOY UORINJISU03.d 4133 0}

padiedal 3q ||BYS SIIIIYIA UOIINIISUOT Ag paBewep

SpEOY "PaIIBLI0 PUE PILIIUBP] 3G UBD SYINIY

[ney o1 ajgeInglue suqap 10 agewep Aue el 0s

$33N0J jNeY Joj Pasn SPRoI JO UOPUOD 3} JOYUOLY

0} SUOISIACd BYelA “UOIINIISUOD 1afoad Jaye pue

D10J2( SDIOIYIA UOIIINIISUOI AG PISN BG PINOM ey}
S33IN0J ||E 10} SUOIHPUOD JUdWaARd peol JUBWNJ0Q  w

PUs Iy

U0 Ja8euew e SUY1 10§ UO)IBLLIOM| I2BIUGD dNoY

-2 3504 “laSeuew ajel) 3Ys-U0 Ue JO UOLIEILIIUSPI

Buipnjoul ‘Ayanpe ueidnasuod ol Sujuienad sanss)
Bunyoeuy pue o0y Bulpuodsal Joj sseocid e dojpasg

'S8INS0[0 aue| pue ‘sinolap

‘saiaAlap Jofew Jo Buiwiy Bupaedal jguuosiad
*UOIIDNIISUOT J0) PIsn Alajes ol gnd pue siaumo Apsdoad jusoelpe AJIION
S93NO0J ||B IO} SUOI)PUOD

‘poad UCIIINIISUOD BY}
juaWwaAed peos JUBWNI0g =

Jo uoiuod swos Jo |je Buunp s1nod |ney ay} Buoje
"9}is uo Jageuew 5U011295433U1 AD)| 1B 1O PEOY J93D) L0 |0JIU0D DBl
2134843 AY] JOJ UOIIRLUIOHUE Auesodway Jo 51983e} apincad 01 pasu oy} s3en|eAl  «

PEWO2 INOUYT 1504 = *SI9ALP 40} S3U0D pue ‘(paJinbas

*AJARI2E UONONIISU0D §1} saunpasoid sinsop aue| ‘(pasnbai J1) sudis unolap

01 pajefRJ sanss| pue Sujuiem ‘sinoy dijjess yead pIoAR 01 SBUSAIRP
SE
uopajdios Hoyuoi 1 g P LojuoN

weldold Bunoday pue
Supojuoy uoReINN Ajoyiny Jarep [euoiSay SnejSiuelS



anw/si
/107 Jaquiaydas o1 1030044 Buisa ) A13||eD uoneay Ul

asion

paJtinbay auop

5324N0S3Y [DIUIN

paJinbay auop

Buuupid pup asn pupi

"a1edozdde se ‘dddMS
313 o1 pajetodiodut 54 os|e j|BYS S2INseIW asay |

*9]BI1S(NS UISeq 3L 921|1qels 01 53NSEIW 1330
1o 3sn Jo ‘{Bunieysdanad pue Sulyly “9°1) uiseq uoiIuIIBP
3U31 BUIUCISSIWLIO3ap 3pnpul ABW S 1 “pajepunul

21E SSIUID.S 9] 1BYL JUDAS 3L Ul SI31em Idelns

0} PAdeydsIp J0U aJe SJUBLLBIUCD JBYI0 10 JUUHPIS
1BY) 24nsud 01 {(Ldy USnoJyl 12qo10) uoseas Aulel ay
$0 195U 3y} 03 J01d PIZLIDIUM 20 |HiM “UlSeq UDIIUDIap
pasodoud ayy pue ‘a1s 13a(oud ay) 01 yled [euoISsYy aA0iD
X04 WOL) PEOJ SS3208 BL) S8 YINS 4aAIY dUWINjON] SY3

ul moyd yBiy Jo spolsad Suunp uopepunu 0y 192{qns pue
‘uie|dpooy} 5Yl UIYUMm paledo| saiijves 1aafoad ‘uolippe u|

“I12A1 3Y1 o1} palisodap aq 01 SWay asay)

BSNED 10U {[IM SMO|} YB1Y Jo uonepunu) asaym ueidpool)
8U1 JO SPISIN0 PB1EI0| 3 [|IM ‘SILUBA|0S pUE ‘SuedLign|
‘sjany Suipn|oul ‘sjelsiew pue ‘sued uaswdmba ‘sajaysa

‘uiejdpools UOIIINIISU0D JOf seaJe afes03s/Buldels jeyl suoiiedijnads
a1 JO apisIno palelo| aqg pue SBUIMEIP UOIIDNIISUGD U 4nbad [|BUS YAYS
SIeRiul a|npayas uondy
pue ajeqg : ainseay uonesmin
dunojiuo Suntoday pue Sullojuo)
uonaduwion {HOjUOIN [} P HOtUOW

wesdold Suioday pue
Zunojuopy uoiedinw Ajloyiny Jajep [euoiSay snejsiuelS




ANIN/SI

£ TOZ saqwaidas LT 329{0ad Burisa] A19j|eS uonReLHYY|
“T-3SION Jnses
uolreSIiN Ul pauyInc i
SRINSE UoHEZIMILIL ug| SAIHSUIS-ISIOU W d o
asiou ypm Adwiod pugj SAIISUIS-95I0U WioJj 9|qear3oe.d se jey se paledo]
oq |leys iuswdinbs SupesausB-asiou Aseuopels o
‘ajqissod
uaym sialLieq az)(1in (winwixeus senuiw
G aw3 Bulipr 271} 9sN U 30U USUM YO 3NYS g [|BYs
3|qIssod UayM s2.nS0jaUS Assuiyorw pue juswdinba 3unessusd-asiou s|iqopy  'q
Supnpadl-asiou az||in
ajqeanoesd uaym ‘uawdinba o sadAy asoyy
Jwewdinba asjou-moy azyn « | 104 lGEIIEAR AjlpeaJ 2Je JRY} S3IN3ED) |0JIUeD Bslou
pue spnoJys yym paddinba aq ||eys (siosseidwod
UOI}2N4ISUOD S9SN pUB| BARISUSS | e ‘siapiam-ole “8'9) uswdinba  a8exoed,
Suung -2sl0u woyj ajqissod se ABME | gy 4o apiqol "UoRILIIRds AJojoe] [BUIBLO PIIXE
iej se uawdinba Bunesdudd | 1o yeaw jeyy uopipuod Sunesado pood up sainjes)
UoLINASUOD -3510u AJBUOIIE]S 91820 )
SuLing ! 11e} 1 Bupnpas-ssiou 1o ‘spjRiys ‘spnosys Jayloc Aue
’ WALIXEW S3INLLL pue ‘sreudordde alaym ‘SIDauB|S 1S|L-HE Sisiynw
UoHINIISUoD S JO 3WII B|PI U HLIM yum paddinba aq jjeys ssuiSua UORSNGUIOD (euII]
suung 3SN U1 10U UBYM AJBUlydeu Juisn sopiysa pue juswdinbs Bupdnpoad-asiou |y e
uoI1dNJIISUOD pue wawdinba Bupereusd
Suning ~9510U BIGOW L0 1NYS :Buimoyjoy a3 ‘03 palLI| g J0U {]IM Ing ‘@pn|ou}
Aew pasuswseldwr sq Aew 3jeyy saunsesiy {[ANIN/SI]
Uo§IINIISUCD SIBUBIS | popesepag amieSaN paleSIN/APMIS [BIMU| SIY) 4O €
duwng 18|Ul-11E DUB SIBIYNWI SB | _av-c ajqe}) JUSWS[T ISION UDJd [DIaUID AJUNOD SNDISIUDIS
UONONSUOD yons juawdinba mcm:mqwmu 3Y3 J0 tz-Al 91981 Aq padinbal sjaaa| ay3 0} ease 1oafoid ayy
Suung -OSIOU UM 53ULdUI | 1)) agi0u pajeaJ-UoI3ANIISUOD JWilj 0} saunseaw Supnpad
’ UoISRQIOD [BUIBIUI BUISN | _5g10u Juawajdl 01 (SJ0IPEAUCD s3I 2AnbaI jBYS YARYS
uoiIdNIISUOD s3]21yaA pue juawdinba
210454 dupnpoJd-asiou [fe dinb3 'S2Inses|y ucianpay asion juawadwy | T-ISION
s{eniuj
apayas uonoy
PUE S3€Q Supoyuo Suploday pue 3upoljuo 3.nseaiy uoneInIN
uonaidwon Holuo ! d P Hojuo

wesoid SBupuoday pue

Supojuo|A uoREBIHA

Aoyiny 181epA [eUOISRY SnejsiuRlS




ann/s|
£107 Jequizidas 87 13f0.d Buiisa) Aafjes uoleayuj

jled |euoiday sA0ID X04 1€ SjUsLddURYUS/SIuWRACIdw
pasodoud ypm s1a13u0d [enuaiod Aue Ajizuapt o3 Ayuno)
3Y1 YIm Jnsuod os|e jjeys JO10eIIU02 S) 10 YAAYS ted
34N5U3 0] JUBWRdS] 9] 0] paulelulew sl $$a278 1Y) 2insus 0] Juawliedaq
uoIINNsUod uoneailay pue syded AJUnoD SNEJSIUELS BYT YMm SaiIAloe

Honea1Isy pue UOI19N1ISUOD B)EU| BYS Jojoenu
210409 sS4 Auncy snejsiuels 13on.y 1EUIPIOOY [|BYS JOJIRIILOD SH IO YAYS

UOIIINASLEOD BUY YHM SBIHARIE "Juswedaq uoneal2y pue syieg Ajunod
alojdg  « UO[IINAISUOD AIBUIPIOOT  » SNe|SIUeS YHM SBIIAIIOY UCIIINIISUOT IJRUIPICOT) 1334

LonRaInJIsuod
1099

uonnaInaYy

pasinbay auoN

$aIIas Jgnd

palinbay suoN

buisnoy pun uonpndod

"UQISSILLSURL PUNOS %204q 03 $3)1d3203S [BllalRW Jo
(utea4a3) saunjesy Jauueq Sunsixa az)n Jo sasn pue
DAIYSUIS-SSIOU PUB SIUNOS SSIOU USIMIRY Stallieq
PNIISUOD ||Bys JOIOBIIUOD Byl ‘Bjqedmoeid udym )

Juawdinba Buijeisuad
-9510U  AJRUOIIRIS punoie  saunsoppus  Fupnpal
-3510U 85N |[BYS I010BIU03 SYI ‘B|geapeld usypn e

"(4oAup a)id o peaisur Sis |jup “8'3) sjAl)
asiou Jamo| sa1e1auad eyl Juawdinbs uoionIIsuod
J9919s  |[eys Joloesjuod syl ‘sqespoead  uaypn p

S{eniu|
pue ajeq
uonajdwo)

a[npayas uondy

Supoyjiuop Sunuoday pue Sulojiuoly 2.nSeal UORESIA

wesgold Buitloday pue
Buonuoy vopeSiw Adoyiny Jalepm |euotay snejsiuels



LT0Z Jequndes

61

anNn/si

109f0ud Bunisa) Alajes uonesu

uonanisu0d

Suunp pue a1043g x

uolonIIsuos
Fuung »

uecidNIISU0D
Buung =

UoHPNIISUOD
Supng w

SiUu=sUn2op
JaeJ3U03 3y} Ul papJodal
aq] [|im S8INOJ [NEY PaYIUAP] =

"UOI1oNJ3sUoD
Sulinp pajuswsidw
ST ue|d Juswadeuey
2iJ4B1] UOIINIISUOD

241 1BY] B4NSUB [[IM YMHUS =

Yam paieulp4o0d 3q |eys ueid siy} jo uonejuawa|duy
pue juawdofaas(] "ssapuodsal Asualiaws Joj ssaooe
ajenbape ainsud pue splezey Alajes 2ijed] |epualod
aonpad 01 sk ||am se ‘suejd ssuodsal AduaBiawa jeoo)

YUMm 20UBIRLIRIUL eliU10d sonpal o) ueld Juawadeuew
JHe) UoiIINIIsU0D 2 Juswidw pue aledald
J01IBIUGD UOIINIISUOD aU) Jeyl aainbad [|eys YANYS

‘uefd Juswadeuelp
J1e1) UOIINIISUOY e Juaa|dw pue aJedald

T-SNVHL

aiffol] pup Uoliniiodsunsy

‘sjUaWaA0Id I

959y} jo ssaldoud

2] 0 559008 Ja1183

40 juana1d JoU fIm d1sen
LOIINASUCD paje|al
-132fo4d 313ym S3NPIYIS
112y} 91BUIPJO0D

lieys Awnop ay

PUB YMYS ‘PauilIIap
94B SIOIPU03 J|

»Jed

241 0} SjUBLIIIURYUS
/siuawaaoldu|
pasodosd 3yl yum
$191juod Aue Ajuapl ol
Aunod ayl yum ynsuo)

‘sal3lAI0e FaUBUSIUIRW
auiLhod 10y ssaxie

"sjuawasosdil 359y jo ssaltBoud ayy 10135 10 Jusassd
10U §j1Mm D14Je] UolonIIsuod pajejal-1aalosd 1Byl Yyans
$3[AP2YDS J19Y] 91BULPIOOD [|BYS AJUNOD 3L} PUE YANYS
“1o8loid pasodoud ay3 10y pouad uonanlisuoa au Suunp
pauued aJe sjuswaacsdwl § (£ TOZ AIUNOD SNESIUR)S)

sieniu|
pue a1eq
uoiajdwos

anpayas
SulzoHuoN

uondy

SunJoday pue 3ulioyuolp

24nsesiA uoneSmA

welSo.d Suipoday pue

Bunioziuoly uoleSiMIN

Ajiouiny 131ep) [BUOIESY SNEjSIUR)S



anNw/si

£T0Z J12quialdss 0z 13fold Sunsa] As||e uoneijiu)
ays ayy
uo JaBeuew eIl Ayl J0) UORBULION 12EIU0D NOY
-$2 1504 "Jageuew 31jje4] 3JS-U0 U JO UoedIUSpI
duipnjaul ‘Aytanoe uoponisuod o] Sululead sanss
Bupjoeuy pue o1 Buipuodsal Jojf sseooid e do[@ARg =
'SDINSO|2 sue| pue 'sIno1ap
‘salianliap Jofew jo Buiwny SuipseBal jsuuossad
A13)es agnd pue siaumo Anadoud Juadelpe Ao
‘UO[2NJISUOD 10) pasn 1sjes Nand p H } lpeAmon =
$TINOI [|B 103 SUDIIPLOD "‘pouad uo11anIIsu00 ayy
JusWwaAed PEOJ JUSWNI0Q = 40 uolod awos 4o jje Suunp 3noJ |ney ay3 Suoje
SUOII95193U) ADY 1B 10 PEOY JOID U0 |0JIU0I DIYjE]
215 Uo JeSeuEw 1 1l Aoy 3 peQy 1895 U0 jo43 et
Merodway Jo siad8e)) apiaold 0] posu ayj 21enBAT  x
Ji41e1) 943 SO} UOITBULIOL
10BJUOD INOY-H7 150d = *SJ3ALIP 10J SBU0D pue ‘{padinba
31} saunpaooud ainsop aueg| ‘{palinbau 1} sud|s Jnoyap
‘AJARDE UOIIONIISUOD .
pue Buluiem ‘sinoy oijel) yead ploAe 0] SALIIAKIP
0} paje|aJ sanssi
pue sdui3 yonJ3 Jofew jo Buinpayas Suipnjou
Suppoedy pue Suipuodsad .
S2UNSEILUL {0IIU0D J1)4e) PAISUSYaLduiod Juawaldw|
10} ssa204d dojaaaqg =
"SIUPWINDOP JJe41U03 BY1 Ul papI0dal ag ||im
*$24NS0 due} pue } . .
, , $31N04 [ney paljluap| 'A1JES PUE ‘UOIIEINIID 2i4jel)
$IN013p ‘sallanap Jolew Jo
LOIINASUOI 210499 uepiisapad pue Jejnaiyaa uo syoeduw sziwuw o)
Bulwy 3uipiedal jauuosiad
paUBISap aq JjIm $3N0L PILIIUSPI 3Y] “speod Agleau
Uo{IaNI1sU0I Alajes o1|gnd pue siaumo
UOo Jjjed] 3)iqowoine pue 33N usamiaq s11jJuod
8i0}3g = Auadoud yuaselpe AJIION »
W 01 $2INAJ INEY MINJY UOMINISUCD AJJUSP| =
LD[IINIISUO0D 's19838)4 |013U0D
: is3inseaw Suimo||o4 9y ‘03
alcjog J1jJB4] JOJ PIOU DIEN|BAT = .
paliuli] 8g 10U [jIMm Ing ‘Spn|au) |jeys ueld ay} "uci1anisuod
Uuo{1aNJI5u0d "saunsesul Sutinp pajuawwa)du; st ued ays 1eY) 2UNSUD ||BYS
2101599 » [011U00 DRl Juswaldwii w | (40IDBIILOD UOITINIISUOD B3 10} YAAYS "ALUNOD) sne|siuels
sleniul a|npayds uonay
pue ajeq : asnsesy uone3mn
Suno)uo sunyioday pue 3upzojiuo T
uona|dwor Hojuow HHodaH p HOHUOIN

welidoid Suipoday pue
Bunonuo uoIRBIN

Aulouany 121epp eUOISaY shejsiuels




aNIN/SE

L107 Jaquaidas 114 133f014 Bunsa) Aia|jen uoen|yu;
padojaAap aq jIm sainseaw 3 ||BUS SUOIEN|BAS 324n0SaY “HHYD B4 Ui Loisn|du}
uoIeSIIW ‘PaIsAcILN Joy Aiqidns 1oy palen|eas aq jjeys a1s 199foad sy uypm
3B 532N0S3J [2ANYNI J| uo{3INIISUO3 SULIND P3J3A0IUN S32IN0SAL [BINYND ||V
(q)p"9ZTST uonoes ‘PB12BIUGD 3Y J{RUS YAAYS pue
sauljaping yo3d 21rls 193} 05 1522] 12 4O SNIPEJ B UIYHM PUB PUIL} SU] JO U0|3ED0]
LM JU215I5L0D SaInseatu a1 e Aj@iepawiwi papuadsns a4 |[BYS YJJom ‘Sailalioe
uonesiw uswsajdw uonanIIsuod 13fold pasodold 3uiinp pasajunoous
‘epa)10 Ajigi8ie 198w ale ‘sulewial |BIN1IRYLIE JO ‘SUIBWIRL UBWNY ‘S1oRiIe BID
$82In0S8l PAIBACOUN §I = | 5ue)siy ‘SRR BUOIS PUNOUS 10 payely ‘||2Ys Jo auoq jo
SLoIeNjens sjuncwe {ENsSNUN ‘sauniesa} jeanianls Supnioul ‘saainosal
UORINLISUOD 921N0S3J 12NPUO? [e4nynd Aue §| ‘sjeitaiew [e180|0aBYIIE PaLINg JBAGIUN
Suung 0} SPJEPUELS 5,JOLI3IU| DY) 01 |enuajod sy sey (peod ssadde 3y) “8:3) salyyoe) 1aiosd
’ 40 AIRIB193S S°) Y} S199W pasodoad Sy} JO BUIOS JO UOIIINIISUOD ‘YNSAJ B Sy "adBpNS
uonRINAsUGd OUM [ENPIAIPUL paLJijenb pUnoi3 3Y3 U 3|gISIA 9JE SBINOSAI [BININD || 10N
8uung B Ule]dJ ‘paiaacaun
UONIINIISLOD 346 S92UN0SaI [eINYND J| "$924n0say 3|q181[3 Joj seunsesn
suung uonediuy sendosddy wewsidw pue ‘Aqi8n3 (YHYD)
) ‘Paialunolus sJe 593.1n0sal $33JN0S2Y |EII0ISIH JO 1215180 BIUIOj|ED 104 SA2IN0SDY
uonINHsued [e4n3|ND AUB JUSAS BY3 U} |eanyn) paynuap| ||y 21en|jeA3 ‘paliancas|q iy
Buung SIMUAILIE UOIINASUGO HBH x| gaaunosay [esnyjn) §1 AjaieIpatuwl] UoRINIISUo) puadsng T-¥d
5324n0Say joinnod jaqLit
"UOLIIPUOD UOH3NIISU0DS.d 11511 0}
pauiedal aq j|eys sa{3iyan Uo11aNIISU0I Ag padewep
SpPEcY "pPa}ialiod pue paiIuep! ag ued syand}
{ney o3 a|geINquUIIe sugap Jo afewep Aue Jey) 0s
$31N0J NEY JOJ PISN SPEC] JO UOIHPULD B3 JOPUCLY
01 suoisiaoad el “uoiaNIIsuod efoid Jaye pue
210J9( SIYIIYIA UOINIISUOI AQ pasn aq pINom 184}
$33N0J |8 JOJ SUOIHPUOD JUSWSAR DROJ JUBWINIOY  »
SIERI) anpayds uonay
pue s3ed Aurionuow 3unsoday uLm Surtoyuo 2.NSESIN UOREIRIIN
uonijdwo) o ; T

welSoud Buipoday pue

Suiojiuoiy ucnesnin

Aoyany 1a1ep jeuc|day snesiuels




anNw/si

£107 Jaquardag [44 123f0ug Suigsa) Alajfen) uonesjiyu)
1SO|N B AJIUSPI |[BUS DHVN SY3 '867Z60G UOI303S 3p0D "say
‘gnd Jo suojsiaoid syl ylim asuepioaze uj ‘{[2]osos uondas
uonisodsip pue juswiless apo) Alajes pue YijeaH) uoneuiulsiap 1ey; suew
asodoad pue ays 3y} Jo sinoy $z uiyum auoyd AQ DHYN 9y 193U Isnw
13dsuj 01 sunoy gy 1ses) je 2Ys JO ay ‘Uealiawy SAIEN B JO 95041 ale sulellal aul
UIAIE pue palji3ou aq [{BYs 1BY3 Saulualep Jauolo) ayl J ([g]$ 050/ uo13Ias 3pod
uossad siyl yoiym uodn AyajeS puE yieay) spue| 21e1s 10 ajeAld U0 AIA0ISIP
UoIINLSUOD ‘AT B AJ3USPL|[BYS DHYN = e j0 80ij0U BulAI908. O SINOY 8f UIL3IM SUIBLIDL UBLLINY
{ Suung ‘uoHRUILIBIEP JO SBLIDAODSIP ||B suiwexa o) patinbail s1 Jauoio) ay)
uolINIIsSULd 1ey3 Bupjew Jo sinoy "Paljitou ag |[eys J3uolo AlJunod syl pue suleuial ayl Jo
g || TGS | 5P 00LLS sl ity s i el
: 243 19RILOI ISNLL BYS 10 3Y ! ! fenueiod
UCRINIISUOD ‘UBILIBLY DAIEN B JO 350Y) "Pamo||o} 3q |{eys apo3 A1ages pue yljesy etulojie)
Suung 3R SUIRWS P3IAA0DSIP ] Y1 0 5050/ V0I03S Jo sjuawalinbal ay) ‘sanaioe
UO[NIISU0D BULIND PIISADISIP DU SUIBLUAS UBWINYG §|
suotesijoads "13u0107 Aluno)
pue sue|d 23 J2EJUCT pUE SLIOM JeY *apo?) A19JeS pue YieaH eluloie)
jo uojjesedsid ‘PRJIIIUNOIUB BJE SUIBLIA. a1} Jo sUOISIACL djed(ddy Juawadw pue pa1aaoIsig
duung UBLINY 3243 JU2A3 DL U| = aly sUIEWaY UewnH J1 AjS1BIPSWW] UOIIIRIISUDY) HEH €4
‘SOWNS3L
uo[aNIISUOD Blojaq (Q}F 97 TST UOIIIAS SaUl3ping YDID
91815 Ylim Soueplodde ul pajuswajdwl pue ‘ajendoldde
11 's8Q11] UBDLIDWIY SAIIEN PUE YAAYHS YUM UOJIRASUOD U
padojanap aq ||Im seunseaus uonedinw ‘(8)z €80T T UO1IS
saulspING {yD3D) 19Y AlenD |EIUBWILOIIAUG BUIOH{ED
91815 40 T'¥Z0S U01II3S (JHd) P07 SaInosay Jf|qnd
"sawInsal Ul payiuap! eled AlIqI31|S 2] 199W SPOINOSAT B}
UOJIOMIISUOD 340434 Jo Aue | "erendoidde se ‘Alolsiy |eIn1oanydIe Jo ‘A03SIY
S0} UBDIIBWY SAIIEN pUB ‘ABojoaeyd.e uj spJepue)s |euolssajold s, Joualu] 3y}
VAYS YUM UOIIBYNSUOI Ul Jo Ale1audas S 9Y1 199W oYM S|BNPIAIPUI AG PRIINPUGCI
ﬁmM_wﬁ_n_ 2INpaLIS tondy ainseay uoneSmA
uonsidwion dupnojuow Bunoday pue Sulioyjjuoln

weJlSoud Suioday pue
Buliogiuo uonedmiN

Aloyiny 1a3em [euoiSay snejsiuels




AaNw/sI
LT0Z Jaqundas £z 133[01d Buiisa] Al3||ED UOHEIY UL

painbay auoN

SWI3)SAS 3IIAI3S PUD SN

"128dsaJ pue ANuSip Yyiim paless) pue uofiedo] payraiold

B 0] PpoAOwal sl sutewss ayl JEY] aJnsua o ¢ aU1 Yim
}I0M jleys 23uBISap SH JO YMHS 'Spood aaeld pajeldosse
Aue pue sulewsl sy} Jo uoijisodsip pue Juawieal;

asodaud pue s1is 8] Joadsul 03 sinoy giy 1Ses] 18

*paanbau
SI QTN YHm uolessdoo) w

‘spoof anei8 pajeldosse 2ARY {|Bys (DHYN) uolssiwwioy) a8e)iaH URDUBLIY AAIEN
Aue pue sujewal ay) jo 2y1 Aq pajeusdisep g A 2yl (QTIN) uspuadsag Al
s|eniu
_..E_m Sm_a SInpatas HonRv iNseaN uoned i
Sunouuopy Sunucdoay pue Suniojiuop T
uona|dwo)

wetdold uioday pue
Supojtuoy uoileBiN Alloyiny Jajep |euoiSay sne(siuels




aNW/sI
LT0T +aquialdag T Pafold Bunsa] Asaj|en uoIBIIU|

yuppq Yy Ajjpuopuaju} a6od spy |

weldold Bunloday pue
guisoluo Uonedin Ajioyiny Jsiepn jeuciSay snejsiuels



STANSLUS REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY

BEFORE THE BOARD OF THE STANISLAUS REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING A MITIGATED RESOLUTION NO. 2017-xxx

3
NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND MITIGATION }
MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR }
THE INFILTRATION GALLERY TESTING PROJECT 3}
3

WHEREAS, the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority (the “Agency”) desires to
conduct research, testing, and temporary operation of the Turlock Irrigation District’s
(TID’s) existing infiltration gallery and to ensure it functions as designed, and to
develop and collect baseline water quality data and information for water withdrawn
through the infiltration gallery (the “Proposed Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Proposed Project would help the Agency to ascertain if it is
feasible to proceed with the Surface Water Supply Project, which would be
considered in a future environmental impact report if the Agency chooses to pursue
that project; and

WHEREAS, SRWA prepared an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration
(MND) to provide a transparent and comprehensive evaluation of the Proposed
Project, and the MND describes the Proposed Project in more detail; and

WHEREAS, the Agency, as a “lead agency” under CEQA, has prepared this
resolution to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) (Pub.
Resources Code, § 21000 et seq.); and

WHEREAS, consistent with CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines, a mitigation
monitoring and reporting program (MMRP) has been prepared by the Agency for the
Proposed Project (Exhibit A) (see Pub. Res. Code, § 21081.6, subd. (a)(1); CEQA
Guidelines, § 15097); and

WHEREAS, the Agency will use the MMRP to track compliance with mitigation
measures imposed by the Agency, and the MMRP will remain available for public
review during the compliance period.



RESOLUTION 2017-XXX
Page 2 of 3

NOW, THEREFORE, THE AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS DOES HEREBY
RESOLVE, ORDER, FIND, AND DETERMINE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Board hereby finds and declares that it has reviewed and
considered the MND together with all comments received during the public review
process in evaluating the Proposed Project, that the MND is an accurate and objective
statement that fully complies with CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines, and that the
MND reflects the independent judgment and anatysis of the Agency.

SECTION 2. The Board further finds and declares, after considering the record
as whole, that (a) although the Proposed Project could have significant effects on the
environment, mitigation measures described in the MND have been incorporated into
the Proposed Project that avoid the potential of significant effects or mitigate the
effects to a point where clearly no significant effects would occur; (b) there is no
substantial evidence, in light of the whole record before the Agency, that the
Proposed Project, as revised with the incorporation of mitigation measures, may have
a significant effect on the environment; and (c) no new significant impacts as defined
by State CEQA Guidelines section 15073.5 have been identified after circulation of the
MND, and that recirculation of the MND is therefore not required.

SECTION 3. On behalf of the Agency, the Board approves the MND together
with the minor revisions set forth in the errata listed in the September 15, 2017
memo from Michael Stevenson to Michael Brinton.

SECTION 4. Pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21081.6, the Board
hereby approves the mitigation measures as described in the MND and MMRP; adopts
the MMRP attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A; and directs staff to implement the
mitigation measures in the design, implementation, construction, and operation of
the Proposed Project.

SECTION 5. Based on the entire record before the Agency, including all written
and oral evidence presented to the Agency, the Board hereby approves the Infiltration
Gallery Testing Project, with all the mitigation measures and the MMRP as set forth in
this document, and the Board authorizes and directs Agency staff to proceed with
project implementation. However, approval of a contract for the construction and
operation of the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project requires subsequent Board
approval.

SECTION 6. The Board directs Agency staff to prepare and file a Notice of
Determination with the Office of Planning and Research and the Stanislaus County
Clerk as soon as practicable and no later than five (5) working days after the date of
Proposed Project approval as set forth immediately below.

SECTION 7. All the recitals in this Resolution are true and correct and this
Agency so finds, determines and represents.

SECTION 8. The Interim General Manager is the custodian of the records of the
proceedings on which this decision is based. Records are located at the SRWA offices
located at 156 South Broadway, Suite 270, Turtock, CA 95380.



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular
Regional Water Authority this ___ day of

AYES:
NOES:

NOT PARTICIPATING:
ABSENT:

RESOLUTION 2017-XXX
Page 3 of 3

meeting of the Board of the Stanislaus
, 2017, by the following vote:

ATTEST:

Tish Foley, Board Secretary



ftem 78
Board Synopsis

STANISLAUS REGIONAL

" WATER AUTHORITY September 28, 2017
From: West Yost Program Management Team
Prepared by: Andy Smith, West Yost Associates

. ACTION RECOMMENDED:
. ACTION RECOMMENDED:

Resolution: Approving the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project (aka Raw Water Pump
Station Phase 1) Plans and Specifications and Authorizing Advertisement
for Bids.

The resolution would approve the following:

With regards to bidding for the construction of the Infiltration Gallery Testing Project
(aka Raw Water Pump Station Phase 1 Project) (the “Project”), the resolution directs
the Interim General Manager to proceed with bidding of the Project for a planned
start of construction in 1) February 2018 or 2) a later date in Summer 2018.

With regards to bidding for the construction of the Project, the resolution approves
the following items:

1. The Near Final (95%) Design Plans and Specifications prepared by West Yost
Associates and authorize and direct the Interim General Manager to accept the
Final Design Plans, Specifications, and Engineer’s Cost Estimate for the Project
and seek public bids for such project; and

2. The minimum prior successful project experience requirements of the General
Contractor and the Ground Improvement Subcontractor as the objective
measure of experience requirements which must be met by a Bidder to be
deemed a responsible and/or responsive Bidder for further consideration of an
award of the Contract for the Project. These requirements are included as
resolution Exhibit A; and

3. The protest process during the Bid period with particular consideration given to
the above minimum experience requirements. The Bid Protest Procedures are
included as resolution Exhibit B.

. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE:
The Infiltration Gallery Testing Project (aka Raw Water Pump Station Phase 1 Project)

(the “Project”) will be the first capital improvement project of the Agency’s Surface
Water Supply Program (the “Program”). The Project will include the construction of a



Agenda Synopsis
September 28, 2017
Page 2 of 4

concrete wet well to facilitate access to and testing of the existing infiltration
gallery, as well as ongoing raw water quality monitoring. The wet well will be
incorporated into the Raw Water Pump Station that the Agency plans to complete as
part of the Program. Design and construction of other Program facilities are planned
to begin in August 2019. Construction of the wet well is anticipated to last 18 to 24
months. To support Program design efforts and minimize schedule conflicts with the
Program’s design-build contractor, it is necessary to begin construction of the Project
as early as possible in 2018. Due to a variety of issues (discussed in more detail
below), the start date for construction may significantly impact the construction
duration and the projected finish date.

Starting construction before February 15th would avoid potential delays due to the
presence of nesting birds, for which significant regulatory constraints are in effect
between February 15th and July 15th of each year. By starting construction before
February 15 (the start of the regulatory constraint window), any birds that establish
nests during this February 15 to July 15 constraint window will be determined to have
become habituated to construction impacts and therefore not subject to mitigation
measures. On the other hand, construction during the winter or spring months may be
impacted by high levels of flow in the Tuolumne River {due to natural rainfall runoff
and discharges from Don Pedro Reservoir), and the existing breach in a dike
separating the adjacent Nazareno property and the river; this breach is not planned
to be repaired until Summer 2018, If river levels approach those seen in February and
March of 2017, portions of the Nazareno property are expected to become inundated,
potentially affecting the Project contractor’s access to the site. As such, the
Technical Advisory Committee (the “TAC”) is seeking Board guidance on the preferred
start date for Project construction. Advantages and disadvantages for early and later
start dates are provided below.

Advantages & Disadvantages for Construction Start Date Prior to February 15%

s Advantages:
o Relatively advantageous start date for contractors, based on feedback from

potential bidders

o Avoids nesting bird restrictions, including potentially significant delays if nests
are found in or directly adjacent work area

o Sufficient time for major contractor submittals prior to major sitework

o Limits major ground disturbing activities to dry season and shoulder months

o Increases likelihood that Project is completed before wet weather arrives in
2019

o Increases likelihood that Project is completed before start of design-build
contract

¢ Disadvantages:
o Work in February through approximately April of 2018 may be impacted, and
potentially delayed, if high Tuolumne River levels result in inundation of
Nazareno property




Agenda Synopsis
September 28, 2017
Page 3 of 4

Advantages & Disadvantages for Construction Start Date After July 15%

o Advantages:
o Significantly reduces likelihood of delays due to high river levels and Nazareno

property inundation

o Farly construction activities (e.g., placement of access road, ground
improvement) are confined to dry season

o Assuming NTP is issued prior to start of site work, sufficient time for major
contractor submittals prior to major sitework

+ Disadvantages:

o Any preliminary site work conducted prior to July 15" would require
preconstruction nesting bird surveys

o Increases likelihood of wet well excavation being affected by wet weather

o FEarthwork activities may be complicated and/or delayed by onsite of wet
weather in late 2018

o Increases likelihood that Project is not completed before start of design-build
contract

o Due to potential that work extends into 2020, temporary easement(s) (e.g.,
Nazareno property) would need to be extended beyond 2019

The Authority intends to accept bids for the construction of this Project during the
month of November 2017. Due to the complexity and scope of this critically
important Project, which must be completed in a timely manner to support the
schedule for the rest of the Authority’s Program, the TAC recommends the Authority
adopt a resolution requiring that minimum prior related successful project experience
requirements be required for General Contractors and Ground Improvement
Subcontractors seeking to bid the Project. In consultation with the Authority’s Design
Engineer for this Project, West Yost Associates, the TAC is recommending the
experience requirements set forth in the Near Final (95%) Design Plans and
Specifications be adopted as the minimum standard to be met, for a Bidder and
certain key subcontractors to be eligible to be considered responsible and responsive.
These requirements are found in Section 00400, Bid Form - Attachments A and B, of
the Near Final (95%) Design Plans and Specifications.

In consideration of a prospective Bidder or Sub-Bidder’s possible disagreement with
the recommended minimum prior related project experience requirements for the
General Contractor and/or Ground Improvement Subcontractor or any other aspect of
the Authority’s bid process for this Project, the TAC recommends that the Authority
adopt the Bid Protest Procedures for the Bid Process as set forth in the attached draft
Instructions to Bidders. It is the TAC’s opinion that these suggested Bid Protest
Procedures will provide a fair and prompt process to resolve disputes regarding the
bidding process and award of the Contract. Failure to have such a prescribed bid
protest process could impair the Authority’s ability to carry out its purpose of
constructing this Project in a timely manner to support the Surface Water Supply
Program schedule. The Bid Protest Procedures are found in the attached Section
00100, Instructions to Bidders, of the Near Final (95%) Design Plans and Specifications.



Agenda Synopsis
September 28, 2017
Page 4 of 4

4, FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT:

With respect to construction start dates, delays to the work under either the early or
later start scenarios may incur additional engineering and/or construction costs not
currently budgeted in this Project. The Design Engineer believes that the early start
date will result in an acceptable level of interest and competition among bidders. It is
currently unknown whether a later start date would reduce interest among bidders,
however the summer months are typically much busier for the types of general
contractors being targeted for this Project.

The will be no increase in the Agency’s authorized budget for the Design Engineer,
West Yost Associates, to prepare Bid Documents consistent with above TAC
recommendations. There would be unplanned costs related to staff time and outside
consultants should a potential Bidder or Sub-Bidder protest the minimum prior related
project experience requirements for General Contractors and/or Ground Improvement
Subcontractors or any other aspect of the City’s bid process for this Project. The
Design Engineer believes these unplanned costs would be controlled to some degree
with the proposed Bid Protest Procedures found in the draft Section 00100,
Instructions to Bidders.

5. INTERIM GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

The Interim General Manager concurs with the TAC’s recommendations regarding
approval of near-final Project plans and specifications and the incorporation therein
of minimum project experience requirements and bid protest procedures.

6. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: N/A

7. ALTERNATIVES:

The Authority could elect to not use recommended prior related successful project
experience requirements for General Contractors and/or Ground Improvement
Subcontractors as part of its determination of a responsible Bidder for award of the
Contract for this Project. The TAC does not recommend this alternative on such a
critically important project for the Authority as these aspects of the Project are
especially critical for a timely and successful project.

Alternatively, the Authority could elect to formally pre-qualify General Contractors
and/or Ground Improvement Subcontractors pursuant to California Public Contract
Code 20101. This formal pre-qualification process generally takes 90-100 days and
the Authority would incur additional costs not currently budgeted in this Project and
would delay overall Project completion.



STANISLAUS REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY

BEFORE THE BOARD OF THE STANISLAUS REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE
INFILTRATION GALLERY TESTING PROJECT
(AKA RAW WATER PUMP STATION PHASE 1)
PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND AUTHORIZING

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS RESOLUTION NO. 2017-xxx

OIS T SO R U )

WHEREAS, the Stanistaus Regional Water Authority (the “Authority”) finds it
desirable to utilize supplementary general conditions to ensure the Infiltration Gallery
Testing Project (aka Raw Water Pump Station Phase 1 Project) (the “Project”) is
completed in a timely fashion, and will adequately address challenging geological and
groundwater conditions; and

WHEREAS, Authority staff recommends that the Board approve and utilize such
supplementary general conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Authority intends to solicit bids for construction of the Project
during the months of October and part of November 2017 to meet time-sensitive
construction deadlines; and

WHEREAS, the Project plans and specifications are currently at the 95% level,
and minor modifications will still be needed to make the plans and specifications
complete;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE AUTHORITY BOARD DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, ORDER
AND DETERMINE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Authority does hereby order that minimum project experience
requirements for General Contractors and Ground Improvement Subcontractors be
adopted for the Project as set forth in Exhibit A, incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 2. The Authority does hereby order that specific bid protest
procedures be adopted for this Project, as set forth in Exhibit B, incorporated herein
by reference.

SECTION 3. The Project Plans and Specifications are approved, and the Interim
General Manager shall seek public bids for such Project.



SECTION 4. The Interim General Manager is authorized to finalize and make any
necessary adjustments to the project plans and specifications prior to or during the
bid period.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of the Stanislaus
Regional Water Authority this ___ day of September, 2017, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
NOT PARTICIPATING:
ABSENT:
ATTEST:

Tish Foley, Board Secretary



EXHIBIT A
EXCERPTED FROM SECTION 00400 (BID FORM) OF

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS Name of Bidder:

ATTACHMENT A
CERTIFICATION OF BIDDER’S EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS

PROJECT: Raw Water Pump Station, Phase 1

The undersigned Bidder represents that it is duly licensed, competent, and knowledgeable and has
the special skills on the nature, extent and inherent conditions of the work to be performed on this
project. Bidder further acknowledges that the conditions inherent in the construction of particular
facilities may create, during construction, unusual or unsafe conditions hazardous to persons and
property. Bidder expressly acknowledges that it is aware of such risks and that it has the skill and
experience to foresee and to adopt and implement protective measures to adequately and safely
perform the construction work with respect to such hazards. The prospective Bidder’s
qualifications and responses to the questions set forth below are part of the Owner’s evaluation of
the Bidder’s eligibility to receive the award based on the Bidder’s responsibility and
responsiveness. The Owner has determined that only Bidders meeting the mandatory minimum
experience and qualification requirements set forth below will have the requisite quality, fitness,
capacity and experience to perform the highly complex and vital construction work on this Project.

A. QUESTIONS REGARDING BIDDER’S RESPONSIBILITY AND FITNESS TO
CONTRACT FOR THE WORK.

If the Bidder answers “Yes” to any of questions 1 through 9 below, the Bidder must provide
on a separate sheet a complete, detailed explanation of all of the facts and circumstances
concerning the reasons for answering “Yes”, and shall provide written documentation
supporting its response.

1. Has your company’s contractor’s license been revoked at any time in the last five years?
[] Yes [ INo

2. Within the last five years, has a surety company completed a contract on your company’s
behalf, or paid for the completion of a contract to which your company was a party, because
your company was considered to be in default or was terminated with cause by the project
owner?

[]Yes [INo

3. At the time of submitting this minimum qualification questionnaire, is your company
ineligible to bid on or be awarded a public works contract, or perform as a subcontractor
on a public works contract, pursuant to either California Labor Code section 1777.1 or
Labor Code section 1777.77

[]Yes [MNo

4. At any time in the last five years, has your company, or any of its officers or partners been
convicted of a crime involving the awarding of a contract for a government construction
project, or the bidding or performance of any federal, state or local government contract?

[J Yes [JNo
West Yost — October 2017 A-1 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station

Phase 1



Name of Bidder:

5. Has your company or any if its owners, officers or partners ever been found liable in a civil
suit for making any false claim or material misrepresentation to any federal, state or local
public agency or entity?

[] Yes [ No

6. In the last five years, has your company been denied an award of a public works contract
based on a finding by any federal, state or local public agency that your company was not
a responsible Bidder?

[] Yes [No

7. 1In the last three years, has your company been debarred from bidding on, or completing,
any government agency or public works construction contract for any reason?

NOTE: If there is a pending administrative or court action challenging a debarment, you
need not include that debarment in responding to this question.

[] Yes []No

8. As aresult of your company’s actions or inactions, has the federal EPA, Region IX, a local
California air quality management or air pollution control district, Regional Water Quality
Control Board, or State Water Resources Control Board successfully and finally assessed
penalties either against your company, or against an owner for violations occurring on a
project on which your company was the contractor, three or more times in the past three
years?

NOTE: If there is a pending administrative or court action appealing a penalty assessment,
you need not include that penalty assessment in responding to this question.

[]Yes [INo

9. As aresult of your company’s actions or inactions, has the federal EPA, Region IX, alocal
California air quality management or air pollution control district, Regional Water Quality
Control Board, or State Water Resources Control Board successfully and finally assessed
a single penalty either against your company, or against an owner for a violation occurring
on a project on which your company was the contractor, for a penalty amount over
$100,000 in the last three years?

NOTE: If there is a pending administrative or court action appealing a penalty assessment,
you need not include that penalty assessment in responding to this question.

[] Yes [ 1No

B. MANDATORY MINIMUM EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS

The Bidder has been engaged in the contracting business, under the present business name for

years and has experience in work of a nature similar to this project which extends over
a period of years (Bidder must show at least eight (8) years of related experience). Work
of similar nature is described below.

The Bidder, as a Contractor, has never failed to satisfactorily complete a contract awarded to it,
except as follows: [ |N/A [ ] Yes, if yes, explain on a separate, signed sheet:

West Yost — October 2017 A2 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



Name of Bidder:

Pursuant to the Owner’s Resolution #2017-XX, dated September 28, 2017, entitled “Resolution of
the Board of the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority, approving the Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1 Project Plans and Specifications and Authorizing Advertisement for Bids”, for the Owner
to consider the Bidder a responsible Bidder for this specific procurement, given the complexity
and importance of the timely and successful completion of the Project to further interests of the
Owner and its member agencies, the Bidder must provide all information required below
demonstrating that it has performed the following:

1. At least $50 Million in construction volume on no more than seven (7) projects
completed since January 1, 2010 on one or more of the following types of projects:

a.  Water or wastewater treatment plant; or
b.  Municipal stormwater or sewage pump station; or
¢.  Power or industrial plant project; or

d.  Flood protection improvement

2. Among the projects listed in (1)} above, at least $5 Million in construction volume on at
least two (2) projects which included shored excavations equal to or deeper than 15
feet.

3. Among the projects listed in (1) above, at least two (2) projects which included
concrete water-bearing structures deeper or taller than 10 feet, with volumes of at least
100,000 gallons.

The Bidder can include project(s) currently under construction, but only the total amount paid by
the Owner(s) as of September 1, 2017 on uncompleted project(s) can be included in this
summation of construction volume. The Bidder is allowed to list up to a maximum of seven (7)
projects of the types listed above, that combined, will add up to at least $50 Million in completed
volume of work. Any projects listed below which are not as defined above will not be considered
by the Owner in meeting this pre-requisite experience requirement. For example, pipeline projects
are not considered a treatment plant or a pump station.

If the Bidder is a Joint Venture of two or more companies, each participant in the Joint Venture
shall meet this prior project experience requirement and provide project information for each Joint
Venture participant in the format found below.

Bidders are to complete this form and not attach their own form to the Bid Form.

West Yost - October 2017 A-3 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



Name of Bidder:

Project #1 Name:

Owner:

Construction Cost:  $

Shored Excavation Depth (if any): feet
Volume of Concrete Water-Bearing Structures (if any): gallons
Construction Time: calendar days

Owner’s Representative:

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

Project #2 Name:

Qwner:

Construction Cost: §

Shored Excavation Depth (if any): feet
Volume of Concrete Water-Bearing Structures (if any): gallons
Construction Time: calendar days

Owner’s Representative:

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

West Yost — Qctober 2017 A-4 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



Name of Bidder:

Project #3 Name:

Owner:

Construction Cost:  $

Shored Excavation Depth (if any): feet
Volume of Concrete Water-Bearing Structures (if any): gallons
Construction Time: calendar days

Owner’s Representative:

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

Project #4 Name:

Owner:

Construction Cost: &

Shored Excavation Depth (if any): feet
Volume of Concrete Water-Bearing Structures (if any): gallons
Construction Time: calendar days

Owner’s Representative:

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

West Yost -- October 2017 A-5 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station
Phase |



Name of Bidder:

Project #5 Name:

Owner:

Construction Cost:  $

Shored Excavation Depth (if any): feet
Volume of Concrete Water-Bearing Structures (if any): gallons
Construction Time: calendar days

Owner’s Representative:

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

Project #6 Name:

Owner:

Construction Cost:  $

Shored Excavation Depth (if any): feet
Volume of Concrete Water-Bearing Structures (if any): gallons
Construction Time: calendar days

Owner’s Representative:

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

West Yost — October 2017 A-6 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



Name of Bidder:

Project #7 Name:

Owner:

Construction Cost:  $

Shored Excavation Depth (if any): feet
Volume of Concrete Water-Bearing Structures (if any): gallons
Construction Time: calendar days

Owner’s Representative:

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

Total Construction Volume of listed Project(s) above: $

PROJECT MANAGER EXPERIENCE - To be submitted with Bid.

The Bidder shall name below the Project Manager who will be assigned to this Project and will be
personally present on-site full time during construction. Bidder shall submit past completed
treatment plant, pump station, power or industrial plant or flood protection improvement project
experience of this person. List three (3) such completed projects below where the individual
named below held the position of Project Manager. The demonstrated experience of the Project
Manager must have been within the last ten (10) years. The projects listed must be of the same
types of projects required of the Bidder. Among the listed projects, the following must be
demonstrated:

1. One (1) project must have a contract amount greater than $4 million.
2. One (1) project must include shored excavation deeper than 20 feet.

3. One (1) project must include a concrete water-bearing structure at least 15 feet in height

Name of Project Manager:

Number of Years of Total Construction experience as a Project Manager assigned to the types of
projects as defined above: years

Number of Years as a Project Manager for your Company: years
West Yost — October 2017 A-7 SEWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station

Phase 1



Name of Bidder:

Project #1 Name:

Qwner:

Construction Cost: §

Shored Excavation Depth (if any):
Volume of Concrete Water-Bearing Structures (if any):
Construction Time:

Owner’s Representative:

feet
gallons

calendar days

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion (must be within the last ten [10] years):

Duration of Project (in months):

Project #2 Name:

Owner:

Construction Cost:  §

Shored Excavation Depth (if any):
Volume of Concrete Water-Bearing Structures (if any):
Construction Time:

Owner’s Representative:

feet
gallons

calendar days

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion (must be within the last ten [10] years):

Duration of Project (in months):

West Yost — October 2017 A-8
693-14-16-02 Bid Form

SRWA and TID
Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



Name of Bidder:

Project #3 Name:

Owner:

Construction Cost:  $

Shored Excavation Depth (if any): feet

Volume of Concrete Water-Bearing Structures (if any): gallons
Construction Time: calendar days

Owner’s Representative:

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion (must be within the Jast ten [10] years):

Duration of Project (in months):

This form is to be fully completed and submitted by the Bidder with the Bid. Bidder is not allowed
to provide a substitute form of similar information.

The Owner will check project references listed to verify information provided along with skills
and capacity represented by Bidder. It is very important that the Bidder verify that all contact
information is current for each name listed above.

Failure of the Bidder to provide current and valid project contact information, all
information required by this Attachment A certification, and/or failure of the Bidder to meet
both the pre-requisite Company and Project Manager experience may be grounds for the
Owner to determine the Bidder to be non-responsive and/or non-responsible and therefore
ineligible for contract award.

C. FINANCIAL INFORMATION- DO NOT SUBMIT THE FOLLOWING
INFORMATION WITH YOUR BID! The three lowest Bidders shall submit, within three
(3) business days following the bid opening date, the following information demonstrating
that the Bidder has sufficient financial resources to provide all work necessary to complete
the Project, including construction, start-up, and warranty services.

1. Bidder must provide the following document to assist the Owner in determining the Bidder’s
financial condition:

a) A copy of a complete financial statement audited or reviewed by an independent CPA with
accompanying notes and supplemental information. A financial statement that is not either
reviewed or audited is not acceptable, Financial statement must be 2016 or later.

2. Bidder must provide a letter from its Surety or Surety Broker which certifies that Bidder’s
current bonding capacity is sufficient for this Project based on the Bidder’s Bid and the terms of
the Contract Documents.

West Yost — October 2017 A9 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



Name of Bidder:

3. Bidder shall identify each claim filed against it in the last five (5) years by any project owner in
arbitration or litigation seeking in excess of $100,000 and which (i) the project owner prevailed;
or (ii) the resolution resulted in the project owner receiving an amount equal to or in excess of 55%
of the amount asserted. For each such claim, Bidder shall provide the project name, date of the
claim, name of the claimant, a brief description of the nature of the claim, the court in which the
case was filed and a brief description of the status of the claim (pending or, if resolved, a brief
description of the resolution and the amount of the resolution). Are there any pending claims
against your company that should you lose the claim(s), would adversely affect your financial
position or your ability to meet your obligations if awarded the contract for this project? If so,

please explain.

Claims Filed Against Bidder

Project Name:

Date of Claim;

Claimant Name:

Court:

Status of Claim:

Explanation:

Bidder shall identify each claim filed by it in the last five (5) years against any project owner in
arbitration or litigation seeking in excess of $100,000 and which (i) the Bidder lost; or (ii) the
resolution resulted in the Bidder receiving an amount equal to less than 50% of the amount
asserted. For each such claim, Bidder shall provide the project name, date of the claim, name of
the project owner, a brief description of the nature of the claim, the court in which the case was
filed and a brief description of the status of the claim (pending or, if resolved, a brief description
of the resolution and the amount of the resolution). Are there any pending claims by your company
against a project owner that should you lose the claim(s), would adversely affect your financial
position or your ability to meet your obligations if awarded the contract for this project? If so,
please explain.

Claims Filed By Bidder

Project Name:

Date of Claim:

Claimant Name:

Court:

Status of Claim:

Explanation:
West Yost — October 2017 A-10 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station

Phase 1



Name of Bidder:

To the extent permitted by law, all financial information provided by Bidder that is marked
“Confidential” or “Proprietary” shall be handled by the Owner as non-disclosable in accordance
with California Public Records Act (Government Code section 6250 and following). The Owner,
upon receipt of the requested financial information shall treat the same as confidential and take
such reasonable measures as to protect it from public access. If the Owner receives a request,
whether via the Public Records Act and/or via a judicial process that seeks the publication and/or
production of said information, Owner agrees to provide notice in writing to the entity whose
information is sought to afford them an opportunity to challenge the third party's access and/or to
seek to quash the judicial process which seeks the publication and/or production thereof.

VERIFICATION AND SIGNATURE

I, the undersigned, certify and declare that I have read all the foregoing answers to this Statement
of Qualifications Questionnaire. I also certify and declare that I have personally reviewed and
approved the information provided for the Company Experience, Project Manager Experience,
Company Safety Information and Financial Information. I certify and declare that the foregoing is
true and correct.

Signed this day of , 20

Bidder’s Name

Authorized Signature Date
Title of Signator

END OF CERTIFICATION OF BIDDER’S
EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS

‘West Yost — October 2017 A-11 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station
Phase }



Name of Bidder:

(THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)

West Yost — October 2017 A-12 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



Name of Bidder:

ATTACHMENT B

CERTIFICATION OF GROUND IMPROVEMENT SUBCONTRACTOR’S
EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS

(To Be Submitted within three (3) Business Days after the Bid Opening Date)

PROJECT: Raw Water Pump Station, Phase 1

Important Note: To be eligible for an award of Contract, the Bidder must submit to Owner with
its Bid this signed Certification from the Ground Improvement Subcontractor listed on Bidder’s
DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS. If the Bidder does not list a Ground Improvement
Subcontractor for the ground improvement work, then Bidder must submit to Owner with its Bid
this signed Certification of Bidder’s experience and qualifications to self-perform the ground
improvement work with the understanding that all references to Ground Improvement
Subcontractor in this certification shall mean Contractor, and Contractor shall possess
independently the minimum standards of experience and qualifications set forth below. The Owner
has determined that only Ground Improvement Subcontractors meeting these mandatory minimum
experience and qualification requirements will have the requisite quality, fitness, capacity and
experience to perform the highly complex and ground improvement work on this Project. Failure
of the Ground Improvement Subcontractor or Bidder to meet or comply with the requirements of
this certification, including, but not limited to, the mandatory minimum experience requirements
and qualifications required herein, may be grounds for the Owner to determine the Bidder as non-
responsive and/or non-responsible and ineligible for contract award. None of the requirements
herein are to determine pre-qualification to bid on the Project, but are part of the Owner’s
evaluation of bids received.

The undersigned Ground Improvement Subcontractor certifies that it is, at the time of bidding, and
shall be, throughout the period of the contract, licensed under the provisions of Chapter 9, Division
3, of the Business and Professions Code of the State of California, to do the type of work
contemplated in the Contract Documents. The Ground Improvement Subcontractor shall further
certify that it is skilled and regularly engaged in the general class and type of work called for in
the Contract Documents.

The Ground Improvement Subcontractor represents that it is competent, knowledgeable, and has
special skills on the nature, extent, and inherent conditions of the work to be performed. The Ground
Improvement Subcontractor further acknowledges that there are certain peculiar and inherent
conditions existent in the construction of the particular facilities which may create, during the
construction program, unusual or peculiar unsafe conditions hazardous to persons and property. The
Ground Improvement Subcontractor expressly acknowledges that it is aware of such peculiar risks
and that it has the skill and experience to foresee and to adopt and implement protective measures to
adequately and safely perform the construction work with respect to such hazards.

West Yost — October 2017 B-1 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station
Phase }



A,

Name of Bidder:

QUESTIONS REGARDING GROUND IMPROVEMENT SUBCONTRACTOR’S

RESPONSIBILITY AND FITNESS TO SUBCONTRACT FOR THE GROUND
IMPROVEMENT WORK.

If Ground Improvement Subcontractor answers “Yes” to any of Questions 1 through 7
below, the Ground Improvement Subcontractor must provide on a separate sheet a
complete, detailed explanation of all of the facts and circumstances concerning the reasons
for answering “Yes”, and shall provide documentation supporting its response.

1.

Has your company’s contractor’s license(s) been revoked at any time in the last five years?

[]Yes [INo

Within the last five years, has a surety company completed a contract on your company’s
behalf, or paid for the completion of a contract to which your firm was a party, because
your firm was considered to be in default or was terminated with cause by the project
owner?

[] Yes [_1No

At the time of submitting this Certification of Ground Improvement Subcontractor's
Experience and Qualifications, is your company ineligible to bid on or be awarded a public
works contract, or perform as a subcontractor on a public works contract, pursuant to either
California Labor Code section 1777.1 or Labor Code section 1777.77

1 Yes [ INo

At any time in the last five years, has your company, or any of its owners, officers or
partners been convicted of a crime involving the awarding of a contract for a government
construction project, or the bidding or performance of any federal, state or local
government contract?

[] Yes [ 1No

Has your company or any of its owners, officers or partners ever been found liable in a
civil suit for making any false claim or material misrepresentation to any federal, state or
local public agency or entity?

] Yes [ ]No

In the last five years has your company been denied an award of a public works contract
based on a finding by any federal, state or local public agency that your firm was not a
responsible Bidder?

[]Yes [INo

In the last three years has your company been debarred from bidding on, or completing,
any government agency or public works construction contract for any reason?

NOTE: If there is a pending administrative or court action challenging a debarment, you
need not include that debarment in responding to this question.

[] Yes [INo

West Yost - October 2017 B-2 SRWA and TID
6593-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station

Phase §



Name of Bidder:

B. GROUND IMPROVEMENT SUBCONTRACTOR MANDATORY MINIMUM
EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS

Pursuant to the Owner’s Resolution #2017-XX, dated September 28, 2017, entitled “Resolution of
the Board of the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority, approving the Raw Water Pump Station Phase
1 Project Plans and Specifications and Authorizing Advertisement for Bids”, for the Owner to
consider the Bidder a responsible Bidder for this specific procurement, given the complexity and
importance of timely and successful completion of the Project to further the interests of the Owner,
the Bidder must list a Ground Improvement Subcontractor on Attachment C of the Bid Form that is
properly experienced in work of similar nature to this project. To demonstrate such required
experience, the Ground Improvement Subcontractor must provide all information required below
demonstrating that the Ground Improvement Subcontractor has performed at least $5 Million in
ground improvement construction volume on at least ten (10) projects completed since January
1, 2010 for the following types of projects where the Ground Improvement Subcontractor
completed the ground improvement portions of the project:

1. Projects with shored excavations deeper than 20 feet; and,

2. Projects where ground freezing, jet grouting and/or sheet piling comprised the primary
temporary shoring system.

The Ground Improvement Subcontractor can include project(s) currently under construction, but
only the total amount paid by the Owner(s) as of September 1, 2017 on uncompleted project(s) can
be included in this summation of electrical and instrumentation construction cost for purposes of this
certification. The Ground Improvement Subcontractor is required to list a minimum of ten (10}
projects of the types listed above, that combined, will add up to at least $5 Million in completed cost
of ground improvement work. Any projects listed below which are not as defined above will not be
considered by the Owner in meeting this mandatory minimum experience requirement.

If the Ground Improvement Subcontractor is a Joint Venture of two or more companies, each
participant in the Joint Venture shall meet this prior project experience requirement and provide
project information for each Joint Venture participant in the format found below.

Bidders are to complete this form and not attach their own form to the Bid Form.

Project #1 Name:
Owner:

Ground Improvement Construction Cost: 5
Shored Excavation Depth: feet
Primary Temporary Shoring System:
Construction Time: calendar days
Owner’s Representative:
Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:
Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:
Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:
Date of Substantial Completion:
Duration of Project (in months):

West Yost — October 2017 B-3 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



Project #2 Name:

Name of Bidder:

Owner:

Ground Improvement Construction Cost:
Shored Excavation Depth:
Primary Temporary Shoring System:

feet

Construction Time:

Owner’s Representative:

calendar days

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

Project #3 Name:

Owner:

Ground Improvement Construction Cost:
Shored Excavation Depth:
Primary Temporary Shoring System:

feet

Construction Time:

Owner’s Representative:

calendar days

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

West Yost — October 2017 B4
693-14-16-02 Bid Form

SRWA and TID
Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



Project #4 Name:

Name of Bidder:

Qwner:

Ground Improvement Construction Cost:
Shored Excavation Depth:
Primary Temporary Shoring System:

feet

Construction Time:

Owner’s Representative:

calendar days

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

Project #5 Name:

Owner:

Ground Improvement Construction Cost:
Shored Excavation Depth:
Primary Temporary Shoring System:

feet

Construction Time:

Owner’s Representative:

calendar days

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

West Yost — October 2017 B-3
693-14-16-02 Bid Form

SRWA and TID
Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



Project #6 Name:

Name of Bidder:

Owner:

Ground Improvement Construction Cost:
Shored Excavation Depth:
Primary Temporary Shoring System:

feet

Construction Time:

Owner’s Representative:

calendar days

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

Project #7 Name:

Owner:

Ground Improvement Construction Cost:
Shored Excavation Depth:
Primary Temporary Shoring System:

feet

Construction Time:

Owner’s Representative:

calendar days

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

West Yost — October 2017 B-6
693-14-16-02 Bid Form

SRWA and TID
Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



Project #8 Name:

Name of Bidder:

Owner:

Ground Improvement Construction Cost:
Shored Excavation Depth:
Primary Temporary Shoring System:

feet

Construction Time:

Owner’s Representative:

calendar days

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

Project #9 Name:

Owner:

Ground Improvement Construction Cost:
Shored Excavation Depth:
Primary Temporary Shoring System:

feet

Construction Time:

Owner’s Representative:

calendar days

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months):

West Yost — October 2017 B-7
693-14-16-02 Bid Form

SRWA and TID
Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



Name of Bidder:

Project #10 Name:

Owner:

Ground Improvement Construction Cost: $

Shored Excavation Depth: feet

Primary Temporary Shoring System:

Construction Time: calendar days

Owner’s Representative:

Owner’s Representative Telephone No.:

Engineer or On-Site Construction Mgr:

Engineer or On-Site CM’s Telephone No.:

Date of Substantial Completion:

Duration of Project (in months}):

Total Construction Volume of listed Project(s) above: §

Important Note: Any projects found on Ground Improvement Subcontractor’s completed
projects list which are not as defined above will not be considered by the Owner in meeting
this pre-requisite experience requirement, It is very important that Ground Improvement
Subcontractor provide current and valid project contact information for all projects listed
above. All information should be checked for accuracy before completing this Attachment.

C. BONDING PROFILE

At the time of submission of the bid the Ground Improvement Subcontractor shall have an
unencumbered bonding capacity equal to at least 100 percent of the Ground Improvement
Subcontract cost for this project.

Current Total Bonding Capacity:

Current Unencumbered Bonding Capacity:

To verify the above information, the Owner will contact the Ground Improvement Subcontractor’s
surety. The Ground Improvement Subcontractor shall authorize its surety to release this
information.

Surety:

Contact Person for Insurance Company:

Telephone Number:

Signed this day of 520

West Yost — October 2017 B-8 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station

Phase 1



Name of Bidder:

If the Bidder (Contractor) is satisfied with the financial capability and capacity of the Ground
Improvement Subcontractor as required for the performance of the work on the Project, the Bidder
may indicate such by signing below and the Ground Improvement Subcontractor will in such case
not be required to provide the bonding information listed above.

Bidder acknowledgement of Ground Improvement Subcontractor’s financial capability and
capacity and waiver of bond information:

Name of Bidder Date

Bidder, Signature Printed Name of Person’s Signature

GROUND IMPROVEMENT SUBCONTRACTOR VERIFICATION AND SIGNATURE
1, the undersigned, certify and declare that I have read all the foregoing answers to this Statement
of Qualifications Questionnaire. I also certify and declare that I have personally reviewed and
approved the information provided for the Company Experience Information. I certify and
declare that the foregoing is true and correct.

Signed this day of , 20

Ground Improvement Subcontractor’s Name

Authorized Signature Date:

Title of Signator

Valid CA Contractors License No.

License Classification

Expiration Date

END OF CERTIFICATION OF GROUND IMPROVEMENT SUBCONTRACTOR’S
EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS

West Yost — October 2017 B-9 SRWA and TID
693-14-16-02 Bid Form Raw Water Pump Station
Phase 1



EXHIBIT B
BID PROTEST PROCEDURES FOR RAW WATER PUMP STATION, PHASE 1 PROJECT
(EXCERPTED FROM SECTION 00100 OF PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS)

1. BID PROTEST PROCEDURES
A. Pre-Bid

If any potential Bidder believes that any part of the form or content of the Contract
Documents, including, without limitation, the bidder experience and qualification
requirements, is vague, ambiguous, gives an unfair advantage or unfairly limits
competition, such Bidder must give notice and protest on such grounds to the
General Manager as soon as practical, but in no event later than ten (10) days before
the original noticed date for receiving Bids. The General Manager shall, within seven
(7) days upon receiving any such protest(s), review the same and provide a written
response thereto.

Any pre-bid protest shall include:

(1) The protest document shall contain a complete and detailed statement
of the factual and/or legal basis for the protest and, with respect to
any authority relied upon, a copy of said authorities shall be provided.

(2) The protest shall identify the specific portion(s) of the Bidding or
Contract Documents that form the basis for the protest.

(3) The protest shall include the name, address, telephone number, and
email address of the protestant, and if applicable, the person
representing the protesting party.

The procedure and time limits set forth in these bid protest procedures are
mandatory and are the Bidder’s sole and exclusive remedy in the event of a pre-bid
protest related to the form or content of the Contract Documents. Failure to comply
with these procedures shall constitute a waiver of any right to further pursue the
protest, including, without limitation, filing a bid or award protest on the grounds
applicable to a pre-bid protest, filing a Government Code claim or filing legal
proceedings.

B. Bid or Award Protest

Any protest relating to any particular Bid opened by the Owner or the award of the
Contract must be submitted in writing to the General Manager before 5:00 p.m. on
the Fifteenth (15th) business day after the Owner has received and opened bids.

The initial protest document must contain a complete statement of the basis for the
protest, and all supporting documentation. The protest must state the facts and
refer to the specific portion(s)-of the document that forms the basis for the protest.

EXHIBIT B, PAGE t OF 2



The party filing the protest must have actually submitted a Bid for the Work. A
subcontractor of a party submitting a Bid for the Work may not submit a Bid protest.
A party may not rely on the Bid protest submitted by another Bidder, but must timely
pursue its own protest.

The protest must include the name, address, telephone number, and email address
of the person representing the protesting party.

The party filing the protest must concurrently transmit a copy of the initial protest
document and any attached documentation to all other parties with a direct
financial interest which may be adversely affected by the outcome of the protest.
Such parties shall include all other Bidders who appear to have a reasonable
prospect of receiving an award depending upon the outcome of the protest, and
delivery to all such parties must be in a manner to ensure their receipt on the same
day the protest is filed.

The Owner will give the protested Bidder seven (7) days from the date the protest
is filed to submit a written response. The responding Bidder shall transmit the
response to the protesting Bidder concurrent with delivery to the Owner.

The procedure and time limits set forth in this paragraph are mandatory and are the
Bidder's sole and exclusive remedy in the event of a Bid or award protest. The
Bidder's failure to comply with these procedures shall constitute a waiver of any
right to further pursue the Bid or award protest, including filing a Government Code
Claim or legal proceedings.

The Owner will review all timely protests prior to award of the Contract. The Owner
will issue a prompt decision on the protest. The Owner will not be required to hold
an administrative hearing to consider any protests, but may do so at its option.
Nothing in these procedures for protesting a particular Bid or award of the Contract
will be construed as a waiver of the Owner’s right to reject all bids.

EXHIBIT B, PAGE 2 OF 2



